
 

 

 
Agenda for New Homes Bonus Panel 
Tuesday, 19th March, 2019, 10.00 am 
 
Members of New Homes Bonus Panel 
Councillors: D Barrow (Chairman), M Allen, D Barratt, P Diviani, 
S Grundy, D Hull, G Jung, C Pepper and T Wright  

 
Venue: Clyst Room, Blackdown House, Honiton 

 
Contact: Christopher Lane; 

01395 517544; email: clane@eastdevon.gov.uk 

(or group number 01395 517546) 
Monday, 11 March 2019 
 
 
 
1 Apologies   

2 Notes of previous meeting  (Pages 3 - 4) 

3 Declarations of interest   

 Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making 
declarations of interest 
 

4 Communities Together Fund Rules  (Pages 5 - 11) 

5 Budleigh Food Event £2,687.28  (Pages 12 - 56) 

6 Honiton transport to dementia support £4,000  (Pages 57 - 82) 

7 Lympstone flood resilience project £7,700  (Pages 83 - 101) 

8 Newton Poppleford air ambulance landing site £6,490.36  (Pages 102 - 124) 

9 Ottery St Mary Dementia Action Alliance and outreach £10,390  (Pages 125 - 
194) 

10 Seaton Walkers leaflets and information £2,921.60  (Pages 195 - 215) 

11 Stoke Canon footpath £1,960  (Pages 216 - 231) 

12 Uplyme air ambulance landing site £2,783,02  (Pages 232 - 255) 

13 Upottery playing fields footpath £6,250  (Pages 256 - 296) 

14 West Hill football goals £1,581  (Pages 297 - 325) 

15 Seaton Majorettes  (Pages 326 - 344) 

 
 
 
 

East Devon District Council 

Blackdown House 

Border Road 

Heathpark Industrial Estate 

Honiton 

EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 HONITON 

Tel: 01395 516551 

Fax: 01395 517507 

www.eastdevon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

Agenda page 1

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/


Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, any members of the 
public are now allowed to take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and 
report on all public meetings (including on social media). No prior notification is needed but 
it would be helpful if you could let the democratic services team know you plan to film or 
record so that any necessary arrangements can be made to provide reasonable facilities for 
you to report on meetings. This permission does not extend to private meetings or parts of 
meetings which are not open to the public. You should take all recording and photography 
equipment with you if a public meeting moves into a session which is not open to the public.  
 
If you are recording the meeting, you are asked to act in a reasonable manner and not 
disrupt the conduct of meetings for example by using intrusive lighting, flash photography or 
asking people to repeat statements for the benefit of the recording. You may not make an 
oral commentary during the meeting. The Chairman has the power to control public 
recording and/or reporting so it does not disrupt the meeting. 
 
Members of the public exercising their right to speak during Public Question Time will be 
recorded. 
 
Decision making and equalities 
 

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic 
Services Team on 01395 517546 

Agenda page 2

http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/


EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Notes of a Meeting of the New Homes Bonus Panel held at

Knowle, Sidmouth on Thursday 25 October 2018

Present:

Also Present:

Apologies:

Officers:

Councillors:
Dean Barrow (Chairman)
David Barratt
Paul Diviani
Simon Grundy
Tom Wright

Councillor Phil Twiss, Devon County Council

Councillors:
Mike Allen
Douglas Hull
Geoff Jung
Christopher Pepper

Officers:
Ali Eastland, Locality Development Officer, DCC

Jamie Buckley, Community Engagement and Funding Officer
Chris Lane, Democratic Services Officer

The meeting started at 10:00am and finished at 10.45am.

*1 Minutes
The notes of the previous meeting of the New Homes Bonus Panel held on 14 May
2018 were confirmed as a true record.

*2 Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

*3 Communities Together Fund Application Form and Guidance Notes
for2018/19
Members received the Communities Together Fund application form and guidance
notes for 2018/19

4 Communities Together Draft Scoring Template
Members received the Communities Together Fund Draft Scoring Template for
2018/19 which was for discussion.
During discussion the following points were highlighted:

 There is £194.000 available in 2018/19, in addition there is £30,905.60, which
is ring-fenced for Exmouth and this funding would be distributed by a ‘Dragons
Den’ style event.

 In response to a question, it was confirmed that contributions in kind could be
considered as match funding on a case by case basis.

 Crowdfund East Devon had been agreed by Council the previous evening.
 There is expected to be considerable interest in this year’s round of funding,

with a large number of applications for funding received.
Agenda page 3

Agenda Item 2



New Homes Bonus Panel, 25 October 2018

 There was the possibility of Devon County Council providing additional funding
for schemes through their Community Chest on Crowdfund UK.

RECOMMENDED: that the draft scoring template as presented in the report be
approved.

Agenda page 4



Communities Together Fund 2018 /
2018 / 2019

Rules

Communities Together Fund- An Introduction

Devon County Council and East Devon District Council have allocated a sum
of money to be given in grants through the Communities Together Fund. This
fund exists to encourage communities to work together; identifying new ideas
for their mutual benefit. Projects should benefit, enhance and make a
difference to communities.

Projects are more likely to be funded if they involve organisations working
together. This could include voluntary and community groups, clubs, town and
parish councils, community interest companies or registered charities. All
applicants must demonstrate how they have explored opportunities to work
together with others on the proposed project.

Projects must benefit two or more town or parish council areas within Devon.
For example, this could be factors such as residents of neighbouring parish
attending your project, or the project being delivered in multiple locations in
different parishes.

Exmouth, as part of a pilot scheme, are managing their own funding so must
not be included when counting how many town or parish council areas your
project benefits. Although we will consider applications that include a small
benefit to Exmouth as well as a larger benefit to two or more other town or
parish councils, where there is a significant benefit to Exmouth or where
Exmouth is the only beneficiary you must apply to the Exmouth fund through
Exmouth Town Council.

The funding is available initially for this year only, there is no guarantee of it
being available in future years.

How much can you apply for?

 There is a total funding pot of about £195,000. This made up of £1.10
per elector in East Devon, plus the unallocated funding from the
Parishes Together Fund which money was allocated to in the same
way.

 You can apply for a maximum of £30,000 and a minimum of £400.

 A minimum of 20% of the total costs of your project must be funded
from other sources. For example, for a project that costs £10,000 in

Agenda page 5

Agenda Item 4



total, you can apply to this fund for a maximum of £8,000 and must
have a minimum of £2,000 of the money to pay for the project from
elsewhere. You should have at least the vast majority of your match
funding in place before applying to us, preferably all of it.

 If the organisation paying for the project is VAT registered and is able
to claim back VAT, you must only apply and claim for the net amount
(total amount minus VAT).

 We’ll pay grants upon receipt of invoices and receipts for the project as
outlined in the application form unless you agree an exception with us
in advance.

 There is likely to be a lot of competition for the funding, so not all
projects will be funded. Have a good think about how much you really
need and what other funding you might be able to find from elsewhere.

Who can apply
Four types of organisations can apply:

1. Town and parish councils. Your project must benefit two or more
town or parish council areas in East Devon, excluding Exmouth who
are managing their own funding. Each application must be submitted
jointly by two or more parish or town councils with one application form
submitted by a lead parish or town council. In addition you must make
the relevant East Devon District Councillors aware of your project. To
find out about which EDDC Ward Members cover your area:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/who-is-my-councillor/

The following can also apply, as long as they have a governing document,
which needs to be sent with the application:

2. Charities registered with the Charities Commission. You’ll need to
send in accounts from the previous financial year.

3. Properly constituted and regulated Community Interest Companies
registered with Companies House. You’ll need to send in accounts
from the previous financial year.

4. Voluntary and community groups and clubs where someone like a
town or a parish council has agreed in writing to be accountable for the
project and the funding, and bankroll it. Please send evidence with your
application. The accountable organisation will need to send in relevant
documents.

Organisation types 2, 3 and 4 please note;
 All projects must benefit two or more town or parish council areas.

Exmouth, as part of a pilot scheme, are managing their own funding so
must not be included when counting how many town or parish council
areas your project benefits.

Agenda page 6



 You must have the written support of at least one of the town and
parish councils for the areas that would benefit from your project (not
including Exmouth). You must send this in with your application. When
you contact the relevant town or parish councils you must also contact
the relevant East Devon District Council Ward Member(s) to let them
know about your project, so for example if you are emailing the town or
parish council then copy in the Ward Member.
To find out about town and parish council areas and how to contact
them: http://www.eastdevon.gov.uk/parish_and_town_councils.htm
To find out about which EDDC Ward Members to contact:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/who-is-my-councillor/

What we will fund

 Projects that benefit two or more town or parish council areas within
East Devon. For example, this could be factors such as residents of
neighbouring parish attending your project, or the project being
delivered in multiple locations in different parishes. Exmouth, as part of
a pilot scheme, are managing their own funding so must not be
included when counting how many town or parish council areas your
project benefits. Although we will consider applications that include a
small benefit to Exmouth as well as a larger benefit to two or more
other town or parish councils, where there the majority of the benefit is
to Exmouth or where Exmouth is the only beneficiary you must apply to
the Exmouth fund through Exmouth Town Council, which is not yet
open to applications.

 Projects that show communities working together; identifying new ideas
for their mutual benefit. Applications are welcome from community
projects benefiting, enhancing and making a difference to communities.

 All applicants must show that they have explored opportunities to work
with other voluntary and community groups to either identify and/or
carry out the proposed project.

 Grants are for both capital (one off costs of a permanent item, structure
etc) and / or one off revenue costs (temporary items, events, start-up
costs, costs of a time limited project etc.). Can include one off staff
costs / time limited project staff costs.

 All grant money awarded must realistically be able to be spent and
claimed within 12 months of receiving your grant offer letter.

What we won’t fund
 Projects that only benefit one town or parish council area within East

Devon.

Agenda page 7



 Projects where there is a significant benefit to Exmouth or where
Exmouth is the only beneficiary. In this case you must apply to the
Exmouth fund through Exmouth Town Council.

 Unsustainable projects. For example, projects that need to continue
beyond the life of the funding but are unlikely to be able to.

 Projects working with vulnerable people where there isn’t a
Safeguarding Policy and / or appropriately trained staff / volunteers.

 Projects for organisations that have more than 12 months running
costs in reserves.

 Projects where planning permission is required but hasn’t yet been
given.

 Funds can’t be given to help pay off debts.

 Projects that promote religion or politics.

 On-going costs including staff costs or costs for the day to day running
of an organisation, unless this is during a transition phase with
documented evidence of how the project will become sustainable post
transition.

 Regular activity such as grass cutting, ditch and drainage work and
other associated ‘lengthsman’ duties.

 Projects that are the statutory obligation of another statutory
organisation for example Devon County Council, the Church or the
NHS.

 Projects that will have already started before grant offers are made.

 Repeat projects. You can’t apply for funding for the same project twice,
unless there is a compelling business case proving this will help the
change to the project becoming sustainable. We also won’t fund
projects that have previously received funding from the Parishes
Together Fund.

 Funds can’t be given to benefit individuals or private / for profit
enterprises.

 Projects that are eligible for East Devon District Council’s Community
Buildings Fund: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/grants-and-
funding/community-buildings-fund/

What to include as part of your application

 Please send us quotations, tender specifications and evidence of cost
as outlined:

 All projects that will cost under £5,000 must include at least one
written quotation from a contractor (if using a contractor) / supplier.

 If the total cost of your project is between £5,001 and £100,000 you
must provide a minimum of three quotations. For projects

Agenda page 8



between £5,001 and £100,000 you must invite quotations using a
written tender specification containing brief details of the project and
asking for quotations to be submitted to you by a specified deadline.
The same written tender specification must be sent to all
organisations you’re inviting to send you a quote. This is to ensure
all organisations vying for the project have exactly the same
information to use for their quotation.

 If the total cost of your project is over £100,000 you must use a
formal tender process and a minimum of 4 suppliers must respond to
a written tender specification. If you aren’t sure what this involves
please contact us.

 If for some reason you can’t submit the required number of
quotations please send us information / evidence of why this isn’t
possible.

 If your project doesn’t involve any 3rd party quotations please give
us as much detail as possible on how you reached your conclusion
of costs.

 If you are applying as a voluntary or community group, Community
Interest Company or a registered charity you’ll need to send us a
copy of your governing document. You must also send us the previous
year’s accounts for your organisation, or evidence that another
organisation such as a town or parish council will be accountable for
and bank roll your project. Also send us a letter of support from at least
one of the town and parish councils that your project will cover.

 If your project involves work with vulnerable people then send us a
copy of your safeguarding policy/policies and details of how any staff
and volunteers and appropriately trained.

 Please send supporting documents wherever possible. This could
include things such as; details of offers/ grants from any other funder/
organization, photographs, specifications and drawings, extracts from
your Parish Plan(s) or Neighbourhood Plan(s), evidence of consultation
e.g. letters of support, evidence of need for your project.

When to apply?

The closing date for all applications is midnight on Wednesday 16 January
2019. Any applications received after this will not be taken forward and will be
returned to you. The fund is confirmed for this year only. Decisions on
applications will be made at the end of March 2019. This is a competitive
fund, we don’t expect to be able to fund all applications.

Once the deadline is reached incomplete applications will not be assessed.

Agenda page 9



How will we assess your application?

Once the deadline has passed all applications undergo an eligibility check. If
your application is incomplete or ineligible we will not take it any further.

If we have any queries on your application we will send those queries to the
main contact for the application by email. They will need to respond by the
deadline given or we will not take your application any further.

Once your application has been passed as eligible it will be evaluated and
presented to a group made up of EDDC Councillors (the New Homes Bonus
Panel) and a Devon County Councillor, for a decision to be made.

The fund aims to support projects that are:
 needed locally
 of benefit to two or more parish / town council areas
 supported by the local community
 evidencing how they have explored opportunities to work with others
 well thought out and planned
 in receipt of the 20% of project costs from elsewhere

You will be told in writing around the end of March 2019 whether your grant
application has been successful or not. Successful applicants will receive a
grant offer letter which must be signed and sent back to us within one month.

All monies must be claimed within 12 months of receiving your grant offer
letter.

Privacy statement / data protection

Any personal information which you provide will be held and used by East
Devon District Council for the purpose of your grant application. Your
information will be held temporarily by SNAP Surveys Ltd who provide the
software used for the application. Your information may also be shared within
East Devon District Council for the purposes of carrying out our lawful
functions. Otherwise your personal information will not be disclosed to
anybody outside East Devon District Council without your permission, unless
there is a lawful reason to do so, for example disclosure is necessary for
crime prevention or detection purposes. Your information will be held securely
and will not be retained for any longer than is necessary. There are a number
of rights available to you in relation to our use of your personal information,
depending on the reason for processing.

All applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your
application, and details of any funding allocated will be published on the East
Devon District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. Personal
information will be removed. Names and contact details of organisations and
businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects
will need to complete an evaluation form, which will also be published on our
website in the same way.

Agenda page 10



Further detail about our use of your personal information can be found in the
relevant Data Protection Policy and Privacy Notices which can be accessed
online: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy

SNAP Surveys Ltd Privacy Policy: https://www.snapsurveys.com/survey-
software/privacy-policy-uk

Who do I contact?

If you have any queries or to send in your application form and supporting
documents please use the following contact details:
Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council,
Knowle, Station Road, Sidmouth EX10 8HL
Phone (01395) 517569
E-mail jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

Agenda page 11



Name of accountable group: Budleigh Salterton Chamber of Commerce

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? X
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

N/A

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

Agenda page 12

Agenda Item 5



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 7

Comments: The need for more community events features in the Budleigh Neighbourhood Plan which
involved the whole town. The Chambers of Commerce would work with the Lions to carry out the event.
They are also working with the Town Council. May spark off further initiatives they want to work together on.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 4
Comments: It will bring communities together to celebrate local traders and produce as residents will be
encouraged to shop locally for their food and drink. The selling of tickets and buying of food will encourage
people to visit local organisations.

3 The need for the project. 5 3
Comments: A need for such projects has been evidenced in the Neighbourhood Plan. Wil bring communities
together to celebrate. Could result in a similar project each year.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 3
Comments: Project has quotations. There are also queries around the £20 per table cost, plus the cost of
people bringing their own food. However, this £20 would be put towards running a similar event in
subsequent years if successful. But what happens to these monies if a similar event isn’t run in subsequent
years?

Total Score: 25 17

ASSESSOR Comments:

Agenda page 13



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Budleigh Salterton Chambers of Commerce

£3,359.10 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Budleigh Chamber of
Commerce

£671.82 Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 3,359.10

To celebrate the Raleigh 400 years centenary and in response to a request from
members of the chambers of commerce to organise more social events they’d like to
hold a community street party in Budleigh on 6 July 2019. They would invite
residents from Budleigh, East Budleigh and Otterton. Residents would pay for a
table and bring along food brought from local traders. There would be entertainment
around a Raleigh theme.

ITEM SCORE
1. 7
2. 4
3. 3
4. 3

TOTAL SCORE: 17

£0

£0

£2,687.28

Agenda page 14



Agenda page 15



Agenda page 16



Agenda page 17



Agenda page 18



Agenda page 19

jbuckley
Text Box


jbuckley_1
Text Box
£20 for a table

jbuckley_2
Text Box
We would offer some Elizabethan type entertainment to compliment the Raleigh theme. 

jbuckley_3
Text Box
This is because if we don't get funding from you we will need to make sure we can cover costs and do another event next year if successful.



Agenda page 20

jbuckley_4
Text Box
If successful, monies from table bookings will be used by the Chamber to help fund a similar event next year. 



Agenda page 21

jbuckley_5
Text Box
Design of posters and flyers - £405Printing of flyers and posters - £159.10Road closure fee - £75Rolle car park closure - £420Entertainment (Cantiga) - £692Chair and table hire - £1,608Total cost = £3,359.10



Agenda page 22

jbuckley_6
Text Box
Budleigh Salterton Chamber of Commerce

jbuckley_7
Text Box
£671.82

jbuckley_8
Text Box
£2,687.28

jbuckley_9
Text Box




Agenda page 23



Agenda page 24



Agenda page 25



Agenda page 26



Agenda page 27



Agenda page 28



Agenda page 29



Agenda page 30



Agenda page 31



Agenda page 32



Agenda page 33



Agenda page 34



Agenda page 35



Agenda page 36



Agenda page 37



estimate

Bright Blue C, The Studio, Brook House, 1 Station Road, Budleigh Salterton, Devon EX9 6RH | 01395 830820 | trudie@brightbluec.co.uk

ref: Graphic design 1 March 2019

reference no: 2019 / 36

www.brightbluec.co.uk

graphic design and marketing
on-line | on-paper

Budleigh community street party

- Design look and feel for the event
- Apply to designs for A4 poster S/S, DL flyer D/S
- Ticket design
- Printing [B&W] and trimming 100 tickets including perforated stubs

£315-£405

Agenda page 38



Vistaprint uses cookies to provide you with a tailored experience. We recently updated our cookie
policy – by visiting the site, you are agreeing to this use.

View our cookie policy here.

Vistaprint uses cookies to provide you with a tailored experience. We recently updated our cookie
policy – by visiting the site, you are agreeing to this use.

View our cookie policy here.

Home / Select quantity

Please review your quantity

ResellerVistaprint Promotional Products

All
Products

Business
Cards

Photo
Calendars

Marketing
Materials

Signage
& Trade

Show
Displays

Photo
Gifts

Invitations
&

Stationery

Clothing,
Bags &
Promo

Digital
Marketing

Design
Services

Deals

United Kingdom Prices Inc. VAT Ex.

Search

 Have a promo code?

Inc.

 

Help is here.
0800 496 0350 BasketSearch

2

Agenda page 39

https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/privacy-and-security.aspx
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/privacy-and-security.aspx
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?xnid=Home&xnav=Breadcrumbs
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/proadvantage.aspx?xnav=header_reseller
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?xnav=SitesBar
https://www.promotique.co.uk/?utm_source=vistaprint&utm_medium=referral_website&utm_campaign=homepage&utm_content=header_promotab
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/all-products?xnid=TopNav_All+Products&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/business-cards?xnid=TopNav_Business+Cards&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/photo-gifts/calendars?xnid=TopNav_Photo+Calendars&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/marketing-materials?xnid=TopNav_Marketing+Materials&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/signs-posters?xnid=TopNav_Signage+and+Trade+Show+Display&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/photo-gifts?xnid=TopNav_Photo+Gifts&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/stationery?xnid=TopNav_Invitations+and+Announcements&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/clothing-bags?xnid=TopNav_Clothing+and+Bags&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/digital-marketing?xnid=TopNav_Digital+Marketing+Optimizations&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/design-services/graphic-design.aspx?xnid=TopNav_Design+Services&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/offers.aspx?xnid=TopNav_Deals&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/quantity?uto=1&project_id=188e70d4-9a21-44f1-bfaa-c289254589a5&rd=2#here
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/service-centre.aspx?xnav=top
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?no_redirect=1&xnav=logo_mobile
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/cart.aspx?xnav=top


Vertical

Fold
No fold/Flyer

Size
A4

Paper Weight
Standard

Paper Stock
Glossy

See how your value adds up. The more you order, the lower your cost per
piece and the more customers you can reach.

Quantity Price per piece Price

 25 £1.59 £39.78

 50 £0.94 £46.78

 100 £0.67 £67.08

 250 £0.29 £71.83

 500 £0.15 £76.47

 1000 £0.08 £80.96

 1500 £0.07 £109.65
Agenda page 40



Let us help

My Account

Help centre

Contact us

Delivery

Request samples

What we offer

Our products

Upload your designs

Partner with us

Reseller programme

Popular searches

Partner Specials

Our company

About us

Careers

For investors

For media

Company details

Webs

Sustainability

Our policies

Terms of use

Cookies and Privacy

Trademark matters

Patents & trademarks

VAT included

Connect with us Sign up for savings

Refer a friend and get £20 OFF.

Absolutely guaranteed

Every time. Any
reason. Or we’ll make
it right.

4.9

0800 496 0350 |  Home |  Site Map |  Cookies and Privacy Policy |  Terms of Use |  a CIMPRESS company

© Vistaprint 2001 - 2019. All rights reserved.

Email address

 2000 £0.06 £126.52

 2500 £0.06 £143.40

 5000 £0.05 £243.89

 10000 £0.05 £475.89

Approve & Add to Basket

Recommended

Agenda page 41

https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/vp/welcomeback.aspx?txi=18261&xnid=Footer_My+Account_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/service-centre.aspx?txi=16745&xnid=Footer_Help+Center_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/contact-us.aspx?txi=16746&xnid=Footer_Contact+Us_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/shipping?TopicId=65&SubjectId=74&FaqId=155&ParentFaqId=157&link_id=357&txi=16774&xnid=Footer_Shipping+%26+Delivery_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/samples-request.aspx?txi=16748&xnid=Footer_Request+Samples_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/all-products?txi=16751&xnid=Footer_Our+Products_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/propath/choose-product.aspx?txi=16752&xnid=Footer_Design+Uploads_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/ten-plus?txi=16753&xnid=Footer_Partnership+Opportunities_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/proadvantage.aspx?txi=16755&xnid=Footer_Reseller+Program_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/popular-designs.aspx?txi=16757&xnid=Footer_Tags_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/offers.aspx?selectedTab=1&txi=16771&xnid=Footer_Partner+Specials%2fMarketplace_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/about-us.aspx?txi=16758&xnid=Footer_Our+Story_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://careers.vistaprint.com/?txi=16761&xnid=Footer_Careers_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://ir.vistaprint.com/phoenix.zhtml?c=188894&p=irol-IRHome&txi=16762&xnid=Footer_For+Investors_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://news.vistaprint.com/?txi=17703&xnid=Footer_For+Media_About+Us&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/contact-us.aspx?txi=16772&xnid=Footer_Company+Details_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://www.webs.com/?txi=16763&xnid=Footer_Webs_About+Us&xnav=footer
https://sustainability.vistaprint.com/?txi=18326&xnid=Footer_Sustainability_About+Us&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/terms-of-use.aspx?txi=16765&xnid=Footer_Terms+of+Use_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/cookies-and-privacy.aspx?txi=16764&xnid=Footer_Privacy+and+Security_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/trademark.aspx?txi=16767&xnid=Footer_Trademark+Matters_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/patents-trademarks.aspx?txi=16768&xnid=Footer_Patents+%26+Trademarks_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/vat-policy.aspx?txi=16773&xnid=Footer_VAT+Included%2fExcluded_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.facebook.com/Vistaprint.UK
https://www.instagram.com/vistaprint/
https://reward.vistaprint.com/vistaprint
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/satisfactionguarantee.aspx
https://www.google.com/shopping/ratings/account/metrics?q=vistaprint.co.uk&c=GB&v=2&hl=en
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_Home
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/site-map.aspx?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_SiteMap
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/cookies-and-privacy.aspx?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_PrivacyPolicy
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/terms-of-use.aspx?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_TermsOfUse
https://www.cimpress.com/
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/select-options.aspx?project_id=188e70d4-9a21-44f1-bfaa-c289254589a5&alt_doc_id=63DTX-65A28-9N1&mpso_alt_doc_id=63DTX-65A28-9N1&uto=1&origin=1


Vistaprint uses cookies to provide you with a tailored experience. We recently updated our cookie
policy – by visiting the site, you are agreeing to this use.

View our cookie policy here.

Vistaprint uses cookies to provide you with a tailored experience. We recently updated our cookie
policy – by visiting the site, you are agreeing to this use.

View our cookie policy here.

Home / Select quantity

Please review your quantity

ResellerVistaprint Promotional Products

All
Products

Business
Cards

Photo
Calendars

Marketing
Materials

Signage
& Trade

Show
Displays

Photo
Gifts

Invitations
&

Stationery

Clothing,
Bags &
Promo

Digital
Marketing

Design
Services

Deals

United Kingdom Prices Inc. VAT Ex.

Search

 Have a promo code?

Inc.

 

Help is here.
0800 496 0350 BasketSearch

1

Agenda page 42

https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/privacy-and-security.aspx
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/privacy-and-security.aspx
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?xnid=Home&xnav=Breadcrumbs
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/proadvantage.aspx?xnav=header_reseller
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?xnav=SitesBar
https://www.promotique.co.uk/?utm_source=vistaprint&utm_medium=referral_website&utm_campaign=homepage&utm_content=header_promotab
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/all-products?xnid=TopNav_All+Products&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/business-cards?xnid=TopNav_Business+Cards&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/photo-gifts/calendars?xnid=TopNav_Photo+Calendars&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/marketing-materials?xnid=TopNav_Marketing+Materials&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/signs-posters?xnid=TopNav_Signage+and+Trade+Show+Display&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/photo-gifts?xnid=TopNav_Photo+Gifts&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/stationery?xnid=TopNav_Invitations+and+Announcements&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/clothing-bags?xnid=TopNav_Clothing+and+Bags&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/digital-marketing?xnid=TopNav_Digital+Marketing+Optimizations&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/design-services/graphic-design.aspx?xnid=TopNav_Design+Services&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/offers.aspx?xnid=TopNav_Deals&xnav=TopNav
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/quantity?uto=1&project_id=c7e08d4b-fee8-4bf7-b65c-5d8179ef6fa4&rd=4#here
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/service-centre.aspx?xnav=top
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?no_redirect=1&xnav=logo_mobile
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/cart.aspx?xnav=top


Vertical

Fold
No fold/Flyer

Size
DL

Paper Weight
Standard

Paper Stock
Glossy

See how your value adds up. The more you order, the lower your cost per
piece and the more customers you can reach.

Quantity Price per piece Price

 50 £0.65 £32.30
Agenda page 43



Let us help

My Account

Help centre

Contact us

Delivery

Request samples

What we offer

Our products

Upload your designs

Partner with us

Reseller programme

Popular searches

Partner Specials

Our company

About us

Careers

For investors

For media

Company details

Webs

Sustainability

Our policies

Terms of use

Cookies and Privacy

Trademark matters

Patents & trademarks

VAT included

Connect with us Sign up for savings

Refer a friend and get £20 OFF.

Absolutely guaranteed

Every time. Any
reason. Or we’ll make
it right.

0800 496 0350 |  Home |  Site Map |  Cookies and Privacy Policy |  Terms of Use |  a CIMPRESS company

© Vistaprint 2001 - 2019. All rights reserved.

Email address

 100 £0.46 £46.48

 250 £0.20 £49.91

 500 £0.11 £53.30

 1000 £0.06 £56.60

 1500 £0.05 £76.25

 2000 £0.04 £87.70

 2500 £0.04 £99.09

 5000 £0.02 £113.32

 10000 £0.02 £219.68

 20000 £0.02 £415.24

Approve & Add to Basket

Recommended

Agenda page 44

https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/vp/welcomeback.aspx?txi=18261&xnid=Footer_My+Account_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/service-centre.aspx?txi=16745&xnid=Footer_Help+Center_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/contact-us.aspx?txi=16746&xnid=Footer_Contact+Us_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/shipping?TopicId=65&SubjectId=74&FaqId=155&ParentFaqId=157&link_id=357&txi=16774&xnid=Footer_Shipping+%26+Delivery_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/samples-request.aspx?txi=16748&xnid=Footer_Request+Samples_Let+Us+Help&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/all-products?txi=16751&xnid=Footer_Our+Products_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/propath/choose-product.aspx?txi=16752&xnid=Footer_Design+Uploads_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/ten-plus?txi=16753&xnid=Footer_Partnership+Opportunities_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/proadvantage.aspx?txi=16755&xnid=Footer_Reseller+Program_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/popular-designs.aspx?txi=16757&xnid=Footer_Tags_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/offers.aspx?selectedTab=1&txi=16771&xnid=Footer_Partner+Specials%2fMarketplace_What+We+Offer&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/about-us.aspx?txi=16758&xnid=Footer_Our+Story_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://careers.vistaprint.com/?txi=16761&xnid=Footer_Careers_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://ir.vistaprint.com/phoenix.zhtml?c=188894&p=irol-IRHome&txi=16762&xnid=Footer_For+Investors_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://news.vistaprint.com/?txi=17703&xnid=Footer_For+Media_About+Us&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/contact-us.aspx?txi=16772&xnid=Footer_Company+Details_About+Us&xnav=footer
http://www.webs.com/?txi=16763&xnid=Footer_Webs_About+Us&xnav=footer
https://sustainability.vistaprint.com/?txi=18326&xnid=Footer_Sustainability_About+Us&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/terms-of-use.aspx?txi=16765&xnid=Footer_Terms+of+Use_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/cookies-and-privacy.aspx?txi=16764&xnid=Footer_Privacy+and+Security_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/trademark.aspx?txi=16767&xnid=Footer_Trademark+Matters_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/patents-trademarks.aspx?txi=16768&xnid=Footer_Patents+%26+Trademarks_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/vat-policy.aspx?txi=16773&xnid=Footer_VAT+Included%2fExcluded_Our+Policies&xnav=footer
https://www.facebook.com/Vistaprint.UK
https://www.instagram.com/vistaprint/
https://reward.vistaprint.com/vistaprint
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/satisfactionguarantee.aspx
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_Home
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/site-map.aspx?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_SiteMap
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/cookies-and-privacy.aspx?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_PrivacyPolicy
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/customer-care/terms-of-use.aspx?xnav=footer&xnid=Footer_BottomLinks_TermsOfUse
https://www.cimpress.com/
https://www.vistaprint.co.uk/select-options.aspx?project_id=c7e08d4b-fee8-4bf7-b65c-5d8179ef6fa4&alt_doc_id=235TX-65A38-4B2&mpso_alt_doc_id=235TX-65A38-4B2&uto=1&origin=1


 Customer Sign In
 Artist Sign In

1. Home
2. Bands & Musicians
3. Medieval Musicians & Minstrels

Your Festival / Outdoor Event on 06/07/2019 in Devon - Edit search or clear search

Sign In

0

1. Home
2. Bands & Musicians
3. Medieval Musicians & Minstrels

Medieval Musicians & Minstrels For Hire 6 artists are available for your Festival /
Outdoor Event on Sat, 06th Jul 2019 in Devon Edit Search
Find 6 of the best medieval musicians for hire only from Alive Network. From medieval wandering musicians and minstrels specialising in renaissance music to costumed
singers and music groups performing mediaeval music from the Tudor and English Civil War periods, you'll find the perfect accompaniment to your banquet or medieval
wedding in the artist list below. Also see our Medieval Entertainment Collection.

Search for a different artist type...

Entertainment
Medieval Musicians & Minstrels

Event Type
Festival / Outdoor Event

Event Location & Date
Devon

06/07/2019

Change Act Type

Edit search or clear search
Edit search Agenda page 45

https://www.thesilkmill.co.uk/
https://www.alivenetwork.com/login.asp
https://www.alivenetwork.com/artists/default.asp
https://www.alivenetwork.com/
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bands-and-musicians
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/edit-search-form
https://www.alivenetwork.com/clear-search
https://www.alivenetwork.com/login.asp
https://www.alivenetwork.com/account/wishlist
https://www.alivenetwork.com/
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bands-and-musicians
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/collections/medieval-entertainment-hire
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/clear-search
javascript:void(0);


Clear search
5 stars

Read 31 Medieval Musician Reviews

Introduction
Availability Search

Hide the search filters
Show the search filters
Showing 1-6 of 6 matching results
Refine Search (6)
Sort list by:

Popularity Price (Low/High) Price (High/Low) Nearest to Me
Sort by Popularity

Refine your search for Medieval Musicians & Minstrels

Priced between...

£ 100

to £ 15000

Go

Number of members...

1

to 25

Go

Location within...

Any

of Devon

Go
Don't lose your filters Save this search

Available 06/07/2019 £629

The Kings Waits

Medieval Musicians & Minstrels based in Norfolk
Number of members: 2 5 stars - The Kings Waits are Highly Recommended 11 Customer Reviews
Available 06/07/2019 £629
View Full Profile Quick Preview
Add List

The Kings Waits are a group of musicians specialising in medieval and renaissance music. Performing in both contemporary and authentic period costumes and
playing between them over 40 different early instruments.

Find more artists like The Kings Waits
Agenda page 46

https://www.alivenetwork.com/clear-search
https://www.alivenetwork.com/review-centre-style?style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/hirelivemusic/hire_bands_in.asp?area=Norfolk&style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandreviews?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits&available=yes
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits&action=similar


 Add List
View Full Profile

Available 06/07/2019 £692

Cantiga

Medieval Musicians & Minstrels based in Worcestershire
Number of members: 3 5 stars - Cantiga are Highly Recommended 3 Customer Reviews
Available 06/07/2019 £692
View Full Profile Quick Preview
Add List

Cantiga perform historic music and dance from Mediaeval, Tudor and English Civil War periods. Dressed in costume and playing authentic instruments of the day,
Cantiga are a professional, friendly & unique act suitable for all ages!

Find more artists like Cantiga

 Add List
View Full Profile

Available 06/07/2019 £1,006 Agenda page 47

https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Waits&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Cantiga&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Cantiga&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/hirelivemusic/hire_bands_in.asp?area=Worcestershire&style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandreviews?bandname=Cantiga
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Cantiga&available=yes
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=Cantiga&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?bandname=Cantiga&action=similar
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=Cantiga&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Cantiga&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Princes&available=yes


The Princes

Medieval Musicians & Minstrels based in London
Number of members: 3 5 stars - The Princes are Highly Recommended 7 Customer Reviews
Available 06/07/2019 £1,006
View Full Profile Quick Preview
Add List

With an Early Music repertoire ranging from Medieval through Renaissance to early Hanoverian, this eccentric 'Tudor power trio' will bring a rowdy peak to any
party, festival or historical event!

Find more artists like The Princes

 Add List
View Full Profile

Available 06/07/2019 £453

Historical Music

Medieval Musician based in West Yorkshire
Number of members: 1 5 stars - Historical Music are Highly Recommended 2 Customer Reviews
Available 06/07/2019 £453
View Full Profile Quick Preview
Add List

Leeds based, Medieval style performer Historial Music will be perfect for any traditional banquet, festival or wedding.

Find more artists like Historical Music

 Add List
View Full Profile

Agenda page 48

https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Princes&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/hirelivemusic/hire_bands_in.asp?area=London&style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandreviews?bandname=The%20Princes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Princes&available=yes
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=The%20Princes&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?bandname=The%20Princes&action=similar
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=The%20Princes&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Princes&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Historical%20Music&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Historical%20Music&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/hirelivemusic/hire_bands_in.asp?area=West%20Yorkshire&style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandreviews?bandname=Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Historical%20Music&available=yes
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=Historical%20Music&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?bandname=Historical%20Music&action=similar
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=Historical%20Music&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Historical%20Music&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&available=yes


Available 06/07/2019 £3,773 +VAT

Mediaeval Baebes

Medieval Musicians & Minstrels based in London
Number of members: 6 Highly Recommended
Available 06/07/2019 £3,773 +VAT
View Full Profile Quick Preview
Add List

The Mediaeval Baebes are an exquisite & highly acclaimed act who offer unique musical beauty & outstanding talent whilst singing in an impressive array of long-
forgotten languages using both classical & mediaeval instruments.Christmas Songs Online

Find more artists like Mediaeval Baebes

 Add List
View Full Profile

Need help finding the perfect Medieval Musician?

If you would like help selecting the perfect Medieval Musician for your event, simply give us a call or submit the quick enquiry form below and one of our talented
entertainment coordinators will be happy to assist.

Make a Quick Enquiry

01782 740839 Make a Quick Enquiry

9am-5.30pm Mon-Fri

My event details...

Event type:
Festival / Outdoor Event   TBC

Event date:
06/07/2019   TBC

Event location:
Devon   TBC

My budget:
£ e.g. 1250   TBC

Enter your enquiry details...

Any questions?
Enter your enquiry details...

My contact details...

My title
Title...

My first name:
Enter your first name...

My last name:
Enter your last name...

My email address:
e.g. john.smith@gmail.com

Create a password:
Password

My phone number:
Agenda page 49

https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/hirelivemusic/hire_bands_in.asp?area=London&style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&available=yes
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&action=similar
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=Mediaeval%20Baebes&available=yes


e.g. 01782 740839

Best time to call you:
12:00

Your Inbox Deserves Better

Let’s make sure you only get what you want from us! We only send emails now and then, so just tick what you’d like to stay in the loop on:

Discounts, flash sales, or Alive competitions
 Yes  No

Useful planning tips, downloads & ideas for your event
 Yes  No

Latest news, info & services from Alive
 Yes  No

Fear of Missing Out? Opt in and see how you go. It’s really easy to opt out in your account area later, and you can unsubscribe at any time. And just so you’re sure,
we treat your details with respect and would never share or sell them to anyone else.

Submit my enquiry

Available 06/07/2019 £1,384

The Kings Minstrels

Medieval Musicians & Minstrels based in Edinburgh
Number of members: 3 Highly Recommended
Available 06/07/2019 £1,384
View Full Profile Quick Preview
Add List

The King’s Minstrels are a specialist medieval music ensemble based in Edinburgh, and have been performing for events, weddings and corporate functions since
2001

Find more artists like The Kings Minstrels

 Add List
View Full Profile

If you like medieval musicians & minstrels you might also be interested in...

Unique & Unusual Musicians

5 stars

704 Customer Reviews Agenda page 50

https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Minstrels&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Minstrels&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/hirelivemusic/hire_bands_in.asp?area=Edinburgh&style=Medieval%20and%20Historical%20Music
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Minstrels&available=yes
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Minstrels&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Minstrels&action=similar
https://www.alivenetwork.com/basket-add.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Minstrels&available=yes&action=add
javascript:void(0);
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandpage.asp?bandname=The%20Kings%20Minstrels&available=yes
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?style=Specialist
https://www.alivenetwork.com/bandsearch.asp?style=Specialist


Budleigh Salterton & District Chamber of Commerce 
FOUNDED 1907 

OBJECTIVES AND RULES 

1.   Name 

The name of the Association is the Budleigh Salterton & District 
Chamber of Commerce.  It is hereinafter referred to as ‘the Chamber’.  
‘The District’ includes the town of  Budleigh Salterton and the villages of 
East Budleigh, Otterton and Colaton Raleigh together with other smaller 
villages in the locality. 

2.   Objectives 

The objectives for which the Chamber is established are: 

a) For the association of all business people, such as retailers, 
professional businesses, wholesalers and manufacturers. 

b) For the advancement and promotion of commerce and trade within 
Budleigh Salterton and District and to consider and promote all such 
lawful measures, plans and schemes as may be calculated to further, 
improve and secure the trading and commercial interests of the town of 
Budleigh Salterton and its neighbourhood. 

c) To borrow money or raise loans required for the purpose of the 
Chamber, upon such securities as may be determined. 

d)  To purchase, take on lease or in exchange, hire or otherwise acquire 
any real or personal property and any rights or privileges which the 
Chamber may think necessary or convenient for the purpose of its 
business and to engage professional assistance and to remunerate any 
person or persons employed by the Chamber. 

e)  To sell, improve, manage, develop, lease, mortgage, dispose of or 
otherwise deal with all or any part of the property of the Chamber. 

Agenda page 51



f)  To create and foster a spirit of co-operation, goodwill, friendship and 
unity amongst the businesses of the town by meetings and discussions 
and other functions, and to organise social events for its Members. 

g)  To promote the principles of fair trading. 

h)  To subscribe to and support from the funds of the Chamber such local 
charitable institutions and objects as may be deemed worthy. 

i)  To conduct business in a lawful manner as is incidental or conducive to 
the attainment of the above objectives. 

j)  To become a member, partner or shareholder in any organisation, 
business enterprise or company where appropriate. 

k)  To ensure and oversee the effective and efficient management by the 
directors and staff of the activities of Budleigh Salterton Information 
Centre Limited in keeping with that organisation’s need to be financially 
self sufficient. 

3.  Membership 

a)   Ordinary Membership of the Chamber shall be open to all individual 
persons or companies now or formally engaged in business in Budleigh 
Salterton and District, such membership having been approved by a 
majority of those present at an Executive Committee meeting.  A 
membership is not transferable. 

     Associate Membership of the Chamber is open to individuals not 
presently engaged in business in Budleigh Salterton and District only by 
invitation of the Executive Committee and if approved by a majority of 
those present at an Executive Committee meeting. Associate membership 
is for one year only and needs to be reviewed and renewed each year by 
the Executive Committee. 

b)  The Executive Committee shall have power to refuse an application 
for membership without assigning a reason. 

c)   Any Member may be expelled from the Chamber if they have acted in 
such a way as to injure or discredit the Chamber, which will be done by 
way of a resolution of two thirds majority of Members of the Executive 
Committee.  Such member shall be allowed to appeal against their 
expulsion to a General Meeting of the Chamber. 

Agenda page 52



d)  The Executive Committee shall be empowered to elect Honorary 
Members of the Chamber in recognition of past services to the Chamber 
and such Honorary Members shall not be liable to pay the subscription 
referred to in Rule 4 (a). 

e)  Every Member of the Chamber other than Honorary Members shall 
have one vote exercised by a show of hands or secret ballot. 

4.   Subscriptions 

a)  Every Member shall pay an annual subscription of such sum as the 
Chamber shall determine, and a paid up member/business may appoint 
one representative to vote at meetings of the Chamber. Associate and 
Honorary Members shall pay no subscription. 

b)   Any Member unable to attend the AGM will be entitled to lodge a 
signed proxy with another Member. 

c)   All subscriptions shall become due on the first day of April in each 
year and no Member shall be entitled to vote at any meetings unless the 
subscription has previously been paid. 

5.  Committees 

a)   The Executive Committee  shall consist of 18 persons being the 
Officers, namely the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer, Secretary, 
Public Relations Officer and Membership Secretary, together with not 
more that 12 other Members including no more that 4 Associate Members 
at any one time. All Members of the Executive Committee shall have a 
single vote, with the Chairman having an additional casting vote in the 
event of a tie.  The Officers shall be elected for a two year term and the 
Executive Members shall be elected for a three year term.  Re-election is 
permissible without a gap period. 
Nominations must be received in writing by the Secretary fourteen days 
prior to the Annual General Meeting, proposed and seconded by two paid 
up Members.  Should there be any objection voiced by the Executive, 
then the Proposer should be given the opportunity to answer that 
objection.  To qualify for nomination a Member must have attended at 
least one General Meeting. 

At Executive and General Meetings five Members shall constitute a 
quorum.   

Agenda page 53



Any Member, with the exception of Honorary Members, shall be eligible 
to stand for election. 

b)  At the discretion of the Executive Committee a President may be 
elected and may attend any Meeting. 

c)   The Executive Committee shall have the power to appoint such Sub-
Committees as may be deemed desirable and to co-opt should the 
occasion so arise.  Sub-Committees are required to report back to the 
Executive prior to making any financial commitment involving Chamber 
Funds. 

d)   In the event of a vacancy occurring in the Officers during the year it 
shall, if necessary, be filled by the Executive Committee, such 
appointment to be confirmed at the next General Meeting by a vote of a 
simple majority. 

e)   The Treasurer shall keep an account of all monies received and paid 
for and on behalf of the Chamber, and shall pay all accounts approved by 
the Committee.  The Treasurer shall also present to the Members at the 
Annual Meeting a duly examined Statement of Accounts showing all 
financial transactions of the Chamber made up to the 31st day of March in 
each year. 

f)   The Secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of the Chamber 
in a Minute Book to be kept for that purpose, and shall also keep a correct 
roll of Members.  The records of the Chamber shall be kept open on due 
notice for inspections of Members at reasonable hours. 

g)   There shall be an Annual Meeting no later than 30th June of each 
year, with twenty-one days notice to: 

 1. Elect Officers 
 2. Receive the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 
          3. Elect the Executive Committee of the Chamber and other 

Committees as deemed necessary. 
          4. Elect independent Accountants and Legal Advisers 
          5. Consider any other business. 

h)   There shall be a General Meeting of Members at least once per year,  
and five voting Members shall form a quorum. The Executive Committee 
may convene a General Meeting of members to consider particular  
 matters and, upon a requisition in writing of eight or more members, the  

Agenda page 54



Secretary shall convene such a meeting to be held within twenty-one days 
 of receipt of such a request.  

i)   In the absence of the Chairman from any meeting, the Vice- Chairman 
shall preside over the meeting.  In the absence of the Vice- Chairman, the 
Executive Committee shall elect a Chairman to preside for that meeting. 

j)   Nothing in these Rules and Objectives shall prevent the payment in 
good faith of remuneration to any officers or servants of, or persons 
employed by the Chamber, or for any services actually rendered to the 
Chamber, provided such remuneration is authorised by the Executive 
Committee. 

k)   Any member of the Executive Committee who fails to attend three 
consecutive meetings will forfeit their place on the Executive unless 
substantial reasons for such absence can be shown. 

6.  Notices of Motion 

a)    Every Member of the Chamber has the right to submit a Notice of 
Motion in writing to the Secretary which shall be placed on the Agenda of 
the next meeting; provided that such notice has been received by the 
Secretary twenty one days before the date of the meeting. 

b)   No alterations shall be made in these Rules and Objectives except by 
a resolution duly passed by two-thirds of the members present voting at a 
General Meeting of Members.  Twenty-one days notice in writing of any 
proposed alteration shall be given to all members.  Decisions on matters 
of an urgent nature can be made by the Executive Committee. 

c)   A Notice may be served by the Chamber upon any Member either 
personally by leaving it at his/her business premises or by sending it 
through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to such Member at the 
business address or by electronic mail. 

March 2017 

  
    
  

Agenda page 55



  

Agenda page 56



Name of accountable group: Honiton Dementia Action Alliance

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? X
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

N/A

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

They have over a years running costs but have explained why.

Agenda page 57

Agenda Item 6



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 6

Comments: They’re working with TRIP Community Transport, but are mainly commissioning them to provide
the transport. They have support of several parish councils and will work with them to publicise the project.
They are also talking to a similar project in Ottery to share best practice.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 4
Comments: Living with dementia can be isolating, particularly in rural communities. This would greatly
benefit that group by giving them access to dementia support in Honiton once a week.

3 The need for the project. 5 4
Comments: 1 in 3 people over 80 will have dementia. 1 in 3 of us will know someone with dementia. People
in rural communities have difficulty accessing the support that could really help them.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 5
Comments: Honiton Dementia Action Alliance have planned the project well, and it fits in with other work
they’re already doing successfully.

Total Score: 25 19

ASSESSOR Comments:

Agenda page 58



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Honiton Dementia Action Alliance

£5,000 minimum £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Honiton Dementia Action
Alliance

£1,000
minimum

Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 5,000

They run dementia support in Honiton town. Their project is to pay TRIP community
transport to collect people from surrounding villages and rural areas and bring them
into Honiton to take part in the dementia support activities. They do know of people
in rural areas that would come along if they could get to Honiton. If successful they
would pay for it from their own fundraising in the future.

ITEM SCORE
1. 6
2. 4
3. 4
4. 5

TOTAL SCORE: 19

£0

£0

£4,000

Agenda page 59



East Devon District Council and Devon
County Council
Communities Together Fund Application Form
2018 / 2019
Devon County Council and East Devon District Council have allocated a sum
of money to be given in grants. This equates to £1.10 per elector in the
District. The fund exists to encourage communities to work together;
identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit. Applications are welcome from
community projects benefiting, enhancing and making a difference to
communities.

Please read the guidance notes thoroughly before completing the application
form.
All applications must be with us by midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.

IMPORTANT- If your application is incomplete by the deadline, it will not be assessed and will be
returned to you. Please ensure that all sections are complete and any supporting documentation
sent by email or post either before or shortly after submitting your application.

Data Protection
Any personal information which you provide will be held and used by East Devon District Council for the purpose of your grant
application. Your information will be held temporarily by SNAP Surveys Ltd who provide the software used for the application.
Your information may also be shared within East Devon District Council for the purposes of carrying out our lawful functions.
Otherwise your personal information will not be disclosed to anybody outside East Devon District Council without your
permission, unless there is a lawful reason to do so, for example disclosure is necessary for crime prevention or detection
purposes. Your information will be held securely and will not be retained for any longer than is necessary. There are a number
of rights available to you in relation to our use of your personal information, depending on the reason for processing.

All applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your application, and details of any funding allocated will
be published on the East Devon District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. Personal information will be
removed. Names and contact details of organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful
projects will need to complete an evaluation form, which will also be published on our website in the same way.

Further detail about our use of your personal information can be found in the relevant Privacy Notices which can be accessed
online: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy  SNAP Surveys Ltd Privacy Policy: https://www.snapsurveys.com/survey-
software/privacy-policy-uk

Section A - Your contact details

1. Names of all the organisations involved in submitting this application:
Honiton Dementia Action Alliance / Honiton Memory Cafe

If you are a voluntary or community group where someone like a town or parish council has
agreed in writing to be accountable for the project and bankroll it please put both your
groups details and the accountable organisations details.

Please nominate one lead person involved and fill in their details below. This nominated
person will receive all communications about the funding and will receive and be
responsible for any funding received on behalf of all involved.

2. Main contacts name, organisation they represent, and address (including postcode):

Page 4 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 60



3. Main contacts phone number:

4. Main contacts e-mail:

5. Is the lead organisation (the one who will be accountable for the funding):
Although voluntary and community groups and clubs are eligible, they must work with a lead
organisation who would be accountable and must fit into one of the categories below.

A charity registered with
the Charities
Commission

A Community Interest
Company registered
with Companies House

A town or parish council

If the lead organisation is a registered charity, please put your charity number below:
If the lead organisation is a Community Interest Company please put your registration
number below:
We are registered with the CC as a Small Charity XT27238

Page 5 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 61



Section B - Eligibility checklist

6. If you answer 'No' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this
funding:

Yes No
Does not

apply
Does your project benefit two or more town or parish
council areas within East Devon? Exmouth, as part of a
pilot scheme, are managing their own funding so must not
be included when counting how many town or parish
council areas your project benefits.
Does your project show communities working together;
identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit?
Does your project benefit, enhance and/or make a
difference to communities?
Have you explored opportunities to work with other
voluntary and community groups to either identify and/or
carry out the proposed project? For example; town and
parish councils, Community Interest Companies,
registered charities, other voluntary and community
groups.
Do you already have a minimum of 20% of the total costs
of your project from elsewhere?
Are you applying to us for funding of between £400 and
£30,000?
Do you have one written quotation if the total cost of your
project is under £5,000, three written quotes if it is between
£5,000 and £100,000, or five written quotes if it is over
£100,000?
Will any grant money awarded be able to be spent and
claimed within 12 months of receiving your grant offer
letter in around March 2019?
If you aren't a town or parish council, do you have or will
you get the written support of one or more of the parish or
town councils in the area your project will benefit and send
it in with your application?
Have you let the relevant EDDC Ward Councillor(s) know
about your project?
Are you; a town or parish council, Community Interest
Company registered with Companies House, registered
charity, or a voluntary or community group where someone
like a town or parish council has agreed in writing to be
accountable for the project and bankroll it?
If you are a town or parish council, are you submitting this
application jointly on behalf of two or more parish or town
councils?
If your project is working with vulnerable people do you
have a Safeguarding Policy and appropriately trained
staff/volunteers?
Taking into account likely funding, is your project viable in
the long term, or is it in a transition phase with documented
evidence of how the project will become sustainable post
transition?

Page 7 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 62



7. If you answer 'Yes' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this
funding:

Yes No
Does not

apply
Is your project eligible for our Community Buildings Fund?
eastdevon.gov.uk/grants-and-funding/community-
buildings-fund
Has your project received funding from the Parishes
Together Fund?
Is your project any of the following; promoting religion or
politics, the direct responsibility or statutory obligation of
another statutory organisation, regular activity such as
lengthsman duties, on-going staff costs or costs for the day
to day running of an organisation, to fund budget shortfalls
or pay off debts, to fund a project where planning
permission is needed but hasn't been given.
Will any of the project costs be raised by means of a
personal mortgage or personal security?
Is your project due to start before the end of March 2019?
Are a significant amount of the beneficiaries of your project
within the Exmouth Town Council area? As part of a pilot
project, Exmouth Town Council are managing their own
funding so aren't included.

If you are ineligible and feel you should be eligible please call us to discuss
on 01395 517569.

Page 8 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 63



Section B - About your project

When filling in section B, please remember you will be competing with others for this
funding. We can only assess your application on what you submit, so to have the best
chance of being successful please read the guidance notes, the notes underneath the
question and give us as much information as possible.

8. What is your project?
Should be approximately 250 words.
Describe in detail what is involved with your project. What do you intend to do? We want to know
what you will do with the grant and what exactly it will pay for.
We are looking for some support to apply for a Communities Together
Grant for people living with dementia in the more rural parts of the
Honiton area to join in with and gain benefit from the range of
socially supportive actives we offer. Honiton Dementia Action Alliance
is a well established community group dedicated to improving the lives
of people living with dementia in our community. In 2017 we were named
by the Alzheimer’s Society as the most Dementia Friendly Rural
Community of the year. Much of our work is about helping people and
families living with dementia access and feel included in all parts of
community life. We have many aspects to our work including raising
awareness and supporting groups businesses and organisations to be more
inclusive of people living with dementia. A large part of our work is
the setting up of and supporting dementia friendly social activities.
Currently we run Honiton Memory Cafe, Honiton Dementia Friendly Ambling
Group, a Nostalgic Dementia Friendly Cinema, a theatre group, a pub
lunch group, an indoor bowling group and we are in the process of
setting up a dementia friendly singing group. All of our activities are
well attended and currently about 50 people who are touched by dementia
in some way benefit from them. We are very aware however that the
majority of our ‘friends” live in or very near to Honiton and we are
very keen to be an organisation that is inclusive to all who would
benefit from joining in no matter where they live. A hugely important
aspect to these activities is helping our friends to get to them from
every part of our community especially the most rural spots and we do
know of people living in villages and on farms who would come along if
they could get to us. Transport therefore is an extremely important
issue for us. We are lucky to have a community transport service TRIP
but of course have to pay each time we use the mini bus or book a car
£5000 would go a long way in helping people especially in the most
rural parts of our community access all our dementia friendly services.
This would enable us to hire the Trip bus and driver at least once a
week for 12 months to pick people up from the villages and bring them
to Honiton or where ever the activity of the day is being held. Honiton
Memory Cafe currently helps to fund transport to our events from a
central point in Honiton but this funding would enable us to bring
people in from the villages to this central point. Honiton Memory Cafe
will put forward the required 20%

Page 10 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 64



9. How have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and community
groups to either identify and / or carry out your proposed project, and how are you
committed to working together on the project:
Should be approximately 100 words
For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest Companies, registered charities, other
voluntary and community groups.
Send any accompanying evidence you have of this with your application form.
We will be working with TRIP Community Transport to implement this
project We will ask the Parish Councils to promote the project within
their parishes to help us engage with people living with dementia in
the more rural parts of our community

10. Why do you want to carry out this project and what difference will it make?
Should be approximately 100 words
Outline what impact / difference the project will have on the quality of life for your users and
community e.g. how it will solve a local issue, improve services or engage more residents in their
communities.
Living with dementia is know to increase levels of loneliness and
social isolation for those with the disease and for their families.
Living in a rural community with poor transport links further compounds
these problems. Well documented evidence shows us that being with
others, having conversations and joining in stimulating activities all
serves to help people with dementia and their carers lead more
fulfilling lives Honiton Dementia Action Alliance/Honiton Memory Cafe
is a well established group that works to provide social support and
engagement for all people touched by dementia and to help them feel
included and valued within the communities that they live.

11. How do you know this is needed? Who and how have you consulted?
Should be approximately 100 words
How do you know this is what is needed and wanted by the community? You may wish to include
letters of support from town and parish councils involved, voluntary and community groups,
residents, local organisations, businesses, Councillors etc. Have you undertaken any consultation
exercises like Parish Plans, public meetings, other surveys that support your application. Is there
any statistical evidence to support your application?
Honiton Memory Cafe and Honiton DAA supports about 50 people who are
touched by dementia. They offer a range of volunteer led social
activities that are enjoyed by all who attend. Our evidence is that the
majority of these people all live in or very close to the town of
Honiton. Statistically 1 in 3 people over the age of 80 will have some
form of dementia [diagnosed or not] and 1 in 3 of us will know someone
with dementia. We know there are people living with dementia in our
rural communities and feel strongly that they should have access to and
benefit from all of the actives we provide.

12. When do you intend to start work on this project and how long is work likely to take?
Funding can only be given to work that has not happened. Do not start spending on your project
until we have confirmed we have received back your signed copy of your official letter offering the
grant, which we would normally send to you around the end of March 2019. We can't pay for the
project if it has been started before this has happened. The project must be completed within 12
months of you receiving a grant offer letter if you are successful.
We will be working with TRIP Community Transport to set this up if we
are successful with our application

Page 11 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 65



13. How is your project sustainable?
Should be approximately 80 words
For example, is it a one off event, will the money pay for buying some items that will stay with the
project, is it  some funding to kick start a project or is it work that the results of will last for a long
time. If it is successful and needs longer term funding how will you make sure the project can carry
on, for example by paying for it from main parish or town council budgets.
We hope to run this project for 12 months and following that if it is
successful will aim to cover the ongoing costs through our Honiton
Memory Cafe and Honiton DAA general fund-raising activities.

Page 12 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 66



Section C - Project costs and match funding

14. Every project needs to include a written quotation from at least one contractor /
supplier / provider. If the total cost of the project is over £5,000 but less than £100,000 you
must get a minimum of three written quotations, or detail why this is not possible e.g. only
one supplier that can do the project. If your project costs are over £100,000 you must
provide five written quotations, or detail why this isn't possible. Have you done this and
included it as part of your application?
Please see the rules for the fund for details on the quotation process.

Yes - please detail as part of question 17 and send written quote(s) with your
application
No - you need to do this before submitting your application

15. What is the total cost of your whole project, and how have you arrived at that cost
e.g. please detail and include quotes you have received for the project and state which
ones you wish to proceed with and why:
Please note that all of the funding will be passed onto the organisation leading the application and
they will be responsible for it. It will be up to the applicants to distribute from there.
We'll pay grants upon receipt of invoices or receipts, unless you agree an exception to this with us
in advance.
Quote from TRIP is attached based on a weekly minibus and cars pick up
in the rural areas around Honiton to bring people to a central point
where Memory Cafe Actives are held usually, Honiton Methodist Church,
The Beehive, Feniton Church and Awliscombe Village Hall. We recognise
that at the beginning of the project the uptake will be less but
anticipate it to build throughout the year with the help of Parish
Councils identifying appropriate families that may benefit from this
service. Honiton Memory Cafe can pay Trip direct or Trip could invoice
EDCC whichever suits you best.

16. Can you claim the VAT back on your project costs?
Yes - please apply for the costs without including the VAT you can claim back
No - please apply for the project costs inclusive of VAT

17. Funding
You must already have a minimum of 20% of the total project costs from other sources to be
eligible.

Total grant you are requesting from the
Communities Together Fund: £4000
Other confirmed match funding (please give more
details below of where the funding is coming from
and how much it is for):

Honiton Memory Cafe will contribute
£1000

Other unconfirmed match funding (please give
more details below of funding that has been applied
for and how much it would be for):

Page 14 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 67



Total cost of project: £5000
Shortfall (please specify below how this shortfall
will be met):

Page 15 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 68



Section D - Checklist

18. Please tick below to indicate that you have understood and agree to your application
form and supporting evidence being used and published in both of the ways outlined below:

- You have understood that we are subject to Freedom of Information legislation. Unless the
information contained with and within this application is legally classed as confidential or protected
under current data protection legislation it will be made public, usually in the form of being
published on our website. This will be in the form of the agenda and minutes of the decision
making meeting and to fit in with any other Freedom of Information requests. If any information you
have given is exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, it may be redacted
before the remainder is published. Find out more here: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/access-to-
information/freedom-of-information/

- You are aware of and have understood our Data Protection Policy and Privacy Notices:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy/ This includes all applications including any supporting evidence
you send in with your application, and details of any funding allocated being published on the East
Devon District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. This includes names of
individuals and personal contact details being removed. Names and contact details of organisations
and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects will need to
complete an evaluation form, which will also be published on our website in the same way.

If you don't tick this box your application can't go forward.

19. Checklist. Have you sent the following by email or post to accompany your application
including:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station
Road, Sidmouth, EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

The appropriate number and type of quotations for the cost of your
project, and any invitations to tender documents.
Written support from at least one of the town and parish councils in the
area your project will benefit if you aren't a parish or town council.
Any relevant documents as outlined in guidance notes, for example
accounts, governing documents, safeguarding policies.
Have you made the relevant East Devon District Councillor(s) aware of
your project and sent any comments you received back from them.

You may also wish to include the following to support your application:
- Details of offers/ grants from any other funder/ organisation
- Photographs, specifications and drawings
- Extracts from Parish Plan(s) or Neighbourhood Plan(s)
- Evidence of consultation e.g. letters of support

20. Before signing, please read
I confirm that:
- I am authorised by the organisations involved to sign on their behalf.
- Funding will not directly benefit any individual or private business and will only be used for the
purposes specified within the application.
- I understand that funding will only be paid upon receipt of valid invoices/ receipts.
- That we will provide East Devon District Council with information of how the funding has
benefitted the community on request.

Signature of applicant (or type name and this will be counted as a signature):

Page 17 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 69

jbuckley_10
Text Box
X



Date:
12.1.19

The closing date for applications is midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.
At this stage Devon County Council have only been able to confirm their funding of this
scheme for this year only.

Please press on 'submit' below to send your completed form to us.

Please send accompanying information clearly labelled with your project details to:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle,
Station Road, Sidmouth, EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

Page 18 of 18Communities Together Fund Online App Amended 2018

14/01/2019https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/siam/surveylanding/printerviewer.asp?sid=746D70...

Agenda page 70



Agenda page 71

jbuckley_11
Text Box
1. Regarding our Memory Cafe reserves, sorry but I thought I mentioned that our current Memory Cafe Coordinator, a retired register nurse, has given notice that she will be standing down in 2020 after 10 years of giving her time in a voluntary capacity.  We have been very lucky to have the benefit of her professional skills and experience in working with people with dementia. 
We recognise to have someone of similar calibre, and as with any other memory cafes around the country, it is likely we will have to offer a part time paid post.  We are currently working on needing £10,000 per annum from 2021 so are building up our reserves accordingly.
2.  Trip have estimated £5000 for the project.  We do not know at this stage what the take up will be but do not anticipate it being more, If it is we will use our reserves to top it up until further funds are raised. Numbers of people living with Dementia in our very rural locations will be small but they will live scattered around the villages and hamlets - we could be reaching about 10 to 15 more families initially. [experience shows that not all would want to come to all of our activities at once]
3. If the take up proves popular we will look to set up ongoing fundraising to keep the service going.
4.. All of our activities are for those with dementia and their carers.  We specifically state we are run by volunteers and do not provide “care”.  Anyone whose dementia is at a stage that they require care or supervision is still welcome but must come with their own family member of carer.  [This is the model for all memory cafes] No volunteers is ever alone with an individual but our Cafe Coordinator & Chairman have DBS checks.  Trip drivers, Beehive volunteers and LED staff all have their own safeguarding policies to adhere to.
5. All of our volunteers receive an induction and access to relevant training provided by the Devon Memory Cafe Consortium of which we are a member.  This includes, first aid, food hygiene and safe guarding. We have a safeguarding policy provided from the Alzheimer’s Society’s policy for volunteers. [see attached].  We also have an annual, updating and lunch for our volunteers.  Some volunteers such as our walk leaders have additional training from LED leisure in “walk leading”
6.  One of the key aims for Honiton DAA is to help people with dementia and their families to live better in their communities, to carry on engaging in the normal interests and activities they like to do in the knowledge that they are safe and valued, connected members of the community.
	All of our activities reflect this so rather than set up very small groups in isolated communities our work is about offering a range of activities for people to dip into what appeals to them most.  Some come to many of the activities and some are more selective according to their interest.  
This funding request is to enable access for all who want to join in these community actives from Honiton and the surrounding villages.  Whilst anyone is welcome to join in our activities [we do advertise them to neighbouring memory cafes so people living in OSM are quite welcome to attend] the transport we would be looking to provide through Trip would just be for anyone registered with a Honiton GP. 	Our regular activities include;		Memory Cafe at The Methodist Chapel - twice a month		Nostalgic Dementia Friendly Cinema at The Beehive - monthly		Ambling Groups in partnership with LED leisure  - monthly and we amble all around East Devon		Theatre Group usually about 4 times a year and in various locations including, the Beehive, Honiton Community College and Sidmouth Manor Pavilion		Indoor Short Mat bowling at Awliscombe Village Hall - 4 times a year		Pub lunch club in various pubs about 4 times a year		An annual summer day out - locations various		We are currently working with LED Leisure to trial Dementia Friendly Swimming sessions at Honiton swimming pool.Finally to reiterate we are considered by the Charity Commission as a “small charity” and are registered also for gift aid. As our work has developed over the years and we may well be looking to imply a Memory Cafe Coordinator in the future we are being guided by Hannah Rennolds at Action East Devon to apply to become a CIO.  Our draft governing document for the CIO is drawn up and we are close now to making the application. Our Aims & Objectives are attached below.




Communities Together Fund Application 2019
Honiton Dementia Action Alliance/Honiton Memory Café

Quote and Endorsements

Please find below –
Quote from TRIP

Endorsements from
Honiton TC
Buckerell PC
Combe Raleigh PG
Feniton PC
Gittisham PC

Chairman
Honiton Dementia Action Alliance

Honiton memory Cafe

From: manager@tripcta.org>
Subject: Transport provision for Honiton Memory Cafe
Da

Dear
Referring to our discussions concerning TRIP providing accessible transport to people from
the areas surrounding Honiton to enable them to attend Honiton Memory Café meetings
and events on a regular basis. As mentioned, due to the uncertainty as to addresses for
collection of passengers it is very difficult to give an exact quote but I estimate that to
provide this service would cost a minimum of £5000 for a full year of transport. Transport
provision would include all costs incurred including vehicle running costs and driver. I am
assuming that it will start at a lower level for the first couple months but would expect
demand to grow as word of the service spreads. As you are aware, all of our vehicles are
easy access and wheelchair friendly and are of a suitable size to access the narrow lanes
around our area.
Looking forward to continuing to work with the Honiton Memory Café.

TRIP Community Transport
29/31 New Street
Honiton
EX14 1HA
01404 46529
Registered Charity. 1082544
Providing transport and advice for East Devon

From: Town Clerk <TownClerk@honiton.gov.uk>

Agenda page 72



Subject: RE: Honiton Dementia Action Alliance - Communities Together Fund Application
Date: 10 January 2019 at 11:31:05 GMT
To: 

Dear

There is no doubt that the Council would be very happy to support the furthering of this
project in order to benefit the outlying parishes and communities.

If there is anything that you need form me in the future or that needs to be taken to
members for their consideration please feel free to let me know.

I will inform the members of this application so that they are all aware of it.

Kind regards

Town Clerk
Honiton Town Council,
The Beehive
Dowell Street
Honiton
EX14 1LZ

01404 42957
towncouncil@honiton.gov.uk
www.honiton.gov.uk

From:
Subject: Re: Honiton Memory Cafe/Communities Together Fund Application
Da

Hello

Thank you for your e-mail regarding the proposed bid for Communities Together funding.
Buckerell Parish Council discussed this bid at their last meeting on 14th November 2018,

and agreed to fully support it.
Please therefore accept this response as evidence of our desire as a local Parish Council to

see a successful bid for funding to support the work of the Dementia Action Alliance. We
note that the bid addresses the problems of both the illness, and rural isolation which can of
course make getting help and support for the condition more difficult. We are certain that
both sufferers and carers throughout the area will benefit from this project.

Agenda page 73



I wish you success with the bid,
(Parish Clerk - Buckerell)

From:
Subject: Re: Honiton Memory Cafe/Communities Together Fund Application
Date: 8 January 2019 at 13:26:04 GMT
To:

Dear
I am so sorry not to have answered your first email.
Combe Raleigh Parish meeting held on 21st. November gave full support to Honiton
Dementia Action Alliance in their application for a grant from the Communities Together
Fund.
I am sure the people of Combe Raleigh will be very pleased to use the facility if the need
arose.

From: fenitonpc@gmail.com>
Subject: Fwd: Honiton Dementia Action Alliance - Communities Together Fund Application
Date: 17 December 2018 at 11:29:25 GMT
To: 

Dear

I am writing further to last weeks Feniton Parish Council meeting to confirm support for the
Honiton Dementia Action Alliance - Communities Together Funding Application.

Should you require anything further than this e-mail then please do not hesitate to let me
know.

Kind regards,

Clerk to Feniton Parish Council

From:
Subject: Fw: Honiton Dementia Action Alliance - Communities Together Fund Application
Date: 10 December 2018 at 13:58:48 GMT
To: 
Re

Dear Gittisham parish councillors resolved at their meeting on 5th December to
support this bid.

Agenda page 74



If you need anything more formal, please let me know.
Kind regards

 (clerk)

Agenda page 75



Page 1 of 4

Honiton Memory Café (HMC) Financial report for Year 2017 -18
This report to be read in conjunction with the attached Year End Financial statement.
The accounts have yet to been certified by f TRIP for nil cost.

Overall position 2017-18

The Accumulation Fund at the start of the year was £18102.94
and from the activities accounted for (as shown in the Receipts & Payments)
the Accumulation Fund grew by £4105 compared with a £3301 in2016-17
and now stands at £22,208.22
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The Accumulation Fund is represented by the following assets

Cash (petty cash held by the co-ordinator) £ 82.93
Bank Account (current account with the Nat West) £ 8,888.67
Stock (Disability aids at TRIP) £      236.62
12mth Deposit @ 1.3% with Shawbrook Bank £13,000.00
Debtors (Income expected) £ 00.00

The total assets £22,208.22

Summary

We are looking to fund expenditure in the region of 5k per annum.
Expenditure over past three years in range of £4k to £5k
Our expenditure is controlled well, perhaps slightly under reported through continued subsidy to some
degree by trustees

Our net income over the past three years has been in in the range of £2k to £4k

Excluding individual donations of £1k or more received in a year our core income, all things being equal,
is sufficient to maintain the Café, but without the capacity to add to reserves in any significant way

Our fund-raising capability may be a cause of concern if we have to meet our commitments over and
above the £5k

Our existing ‘reserve over and above fund’ of £13k should continue to be increased as a basis of
insurance for unforeseen events, with a target of £25k
A further payment should be made to the reserve in this calendar year, a figure for consideration might
be £4,000

Agenda page 76



Page 2 of 4

Comparison of Receipts /Income and Payments/Expenditure of HMC for Years 16/17 & 17/18

Social Events

Receipts / Income.

16/17 £0 Income received has have been set off against expenditure
17/18 £663 Christmas Dinner contributions
Payments/Expenditure

Year Transport Events Total

16/17 £261 £ 971 £1,232

17/18 £537 £ 1735 £2,272

Fund Raising
Receipts / Income

16/17 £2,695 This figure is net of costs and shared distribution
17/18 £1,818 This figure is net of costs and shared distribution

Event
Year Quiz x 2 Rotary Raffle Tesco Fun Run (5K) Total

16/17 £1,165 £374 £442 (1) £714 £2,695

17/18 £    861 £217 £686 (2) £   55 £1,819

+/- £ -304 £ - 157 £+244 £- 659 £ -876

Ambling
Receipts / Income
16/17 £    72 Donation from LED for travel costs, 1 yr. advance payment
17/18 £       0
Payments
17/18 £      23 Total Draw down £42.65 (May’16 to Oct’17)

Admiral Nurse
Receipts / Income
17/18 £678 Income for Admiral Nurse cleared via Memory café re Alan Rowe (£264)

Meridian Lodge Sidmouth (£307) and Fun Run (£107)
Payments

£991 £678 above transferred to Admiral Nurse campaign plus £313 (50% donations
from Memory Café re Capon

Agenda page 77



Page 3 of 4

Donations
Receipts / Income
17/18 £5,585 this figure is comprised of donations from,

Individuals -total of (£3306) from Giving Machine (£76), Café Members Table
Pots- (£242) J Capon (£1125) M Lee (£200) Underdown Trust (£1500) Café
members (£163)

Retail outlets – e.g. Budgens/Spar (£703, in 16/17 £651), Bartlett’s (£17), Crusty
Cob (£51)
Groups – e.g. clubs and organisations Masons (£140) Feniton PCC (£221)
Hon Music (£122) Feniton Weds Club (£25) Hon Golf Club (£1000)

Year Individual Inc 1 offs Retail Group Total
15/16 £1803 £1000 £363 £712 £,2878
16/17 £2610 £1000 £766 £100 £3,476

17/18 £3306 £2600 £771 £1508 (1)* £5,585

Gift Aid
16/17 £     38 Re tax year gift aided donations 15/16 (£151 claim)
17/18 £     75 Re tax year gift aided donations 16/17 (£300 claim)

Raffles
Receipts / Income.

16/17 £1,294 24 sessions at the Café gives an average of £54 per session
17/18 £1,010 24 sessions at the Café gives an average of £42 per session

Interest £140, From Shawbrook Bank

Support Costs

Stationery & Printing
Payments / Expenditure
n
15/16 £ 213
16/17 £ 114 Diaries postage /stationery.

Rent & Insurance inflationary increases 17/18 (£552) and 16/17 (£502)

Caretaking &
Telephone
16/17 £ 415
17/18 £ 395 Reduction in telephony (£10) and caretaking (£10)

Agenda page 78



Page 4 of 4

Volunteers
16/17 £ 365
17/18 £ 194 Reduction in travel re awards/conference

Subscriptions/Fees
16/17 £ 553
17/18 £ 398 No one off fees in year. 50% Cosmic website management, MC

Consortium and new Wildwood

Petty Cash
The co-ordinator operates the petty cash. This gives the co-ordinator flexibility in managing the activities
of the Café both on and off the premises at the Honiton United Church.
A book is maintained showing transactions and supported by receipts.
The transactions are reconciled quarterly and combined with other activity of the HMC for presentation
in the overall accounts.

Summary of activity Total

Cash Balance at start £ 102
Add Receipts
Donations £ 242
Raffles £1,010 £1252

Less Payments
Refreshments £ 167
Cakes £ 527
Sundries £ 232
Caretaking support £ 335
Phone Top up £ 60
Printing & Stationery £ 00 £1321

Surplus £ 33

Plus
Cash from Bank £ 50

Less
Cash to Bank £ 0
Balance of Cash at 30.06.18 £ 83

Treasurer
Honiton Memory Café

12.08.17

Agenda page 79



Honiton Dementia Action Alliance 

Safeguarding: what to do if you have a concern 

What is safeguarding?  

Everybody has the right to be safe no matter who they are or what their circumstances.  

Safeguarding is about protecting individuals from abuse or neglect and we must ensure that 
we are doing all we can to protect members of our community.  

Safeguarding is everyone’s business. 

This means if you hear or see something in your work as a volunteer or committee member 
with Honiton Dementia Action Alliance and the groups we run, including Honiton Memory 
Café, Honiton Memory Café Ambling Group and our Nostalgic Cinema, that concerns you in 
any way, you must ensure that the concern is followed up with the Coordinator of Honiton 
Memory Café or the Chairman    

Equally if someone in one of our groups has raised a concern about someone else, then you 
must speak immediately to the Coordinator of Honiton Memory Café or the Chairman and 
they will speak to the person concerned. If necessary, they will follow it up with the Local 
Authority Safe Guarding Team 

If it is an emergency or a crime, has allegedly, been committed report this immediately to 
the Memory Café Coordinator or the Chairman.  If neither are available call 999 or 101 to 
report the crime 

 In the course of your voluntary work with Honiton Memory Café and other Honiton 
Dementia Action Alliance volunteer run groups you should never be in a position where you 
are alone with a someone who could be described as a vulnerable adult unless you have the 
relevant level of DBS checks - [an official check to see if someone has an undisclosed 
criminal record]. 

Honiton Dementia Action Alliance may ask you to undertake a DBS check if your role 
warrants it. 

Remember safeguarding is about protecting the individuals we support including all the 
volunteers who join us in our work to help people in our community live better with 
dementia. 

Heather Penwarden Chairman Honiton Memory Café & Honiton Dementia Action Alliance 
07966135442 

Min Rennolds Coordinator Honiton Memory Café 07789104601 

 

Agenda page 80



Honiton Dementia Action Alliance

Aims & Objectives
April 2015

History
Honiton Dementia Action Alliance steering group was formed on 12.1.2015 following an
open meeting in the town that was well attended.

The steering group is made up of representatives from a number of organisations and
community members committed to working towards transforming and improving the quality
of those living with dementia and their carers in the Honiton Area. Where possible the
steering group will also include a carer and a person living with dementia.

Broad Aims

Honiton Dementia Action Alliance is committed to helping people in our community to live
better with dementia through developing greater awareness of the needs of people touched
by dementia and by supporting dementia friendly initiatives such as Honiton Memory Cafe

Aims and objectives of the Honiton DAA

a) To develop Dementia Friendly Communities for people living with dementia, their
carers and families, voluntary and statutory services, businesses and the wider community.

b) To improve the lives of people with dementia and their families in the Honiton area, by
developing greater awareness and understanding of dementia issues in our community and
identifying any unmet need.

c)  To support dementia friendly volunteer led social groups including Honiton Memory Cafe

c) To ensure that the voice of those living with dementia are included, valued and heard,
and guide the Honiton Alliance work.

d) To establish links with businesses, service providers and people living with dementia.

e) To seek engagement from businesses and organisations in and around the Honiton area
to encourage them to take action to improve and increase awareness of dementia

f) To provide accessible information and training to shops, businesses and their staff.

g) To establish and maintain effective and supportive dementia friendly communities
through information sharing networks including a Website and social media platforms.

h)      To support fundraising activities that seek to improve the lives of people living with
dementia in Honiton such as Honiton Memory Cafe the Admiral Nurse for Honiton
Campaign

i)  To drive the development of new dementia friendly initiatives and then support the setting
up and ongoing running of each initiative.

Agenda page 81



Financial Objectives

i) Income to HDAA will be put to improving the lives of people living with
dementia and their families in Honiton through raising awareness and supporting
care services and social activities.

ii) Bank accounts will require any 2 of 3 signatories
iii) In event of HDAA ceasing to function any residue of funds will revert to Honiton

Memory Café

Steering Group Members [2018]

Agenda page 82



Name of accountable group: Lympstone Parish Council

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? N/A
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

N/A

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

N/A

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

They don’t have three quotations, but this is specialised works.

Agenda page 83

Agenda Item 7



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 9

Comments: Lympstone Flood Resilience Group are working with other organisations and sharing lessons
learnt with other communities nationwide. They’re working with Woodbury Salterton Flood Resilience Group
and all flood risk agencies and are in regular contact with various councillors. Engaged with the Devon
Community Resilience Forum, West Country Rivers Trust, Environment Agency, other town and parish
councils etc. They’ll work closely with landowners and managers.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 5
Comments: Would facilitate the implementation of flood risk measures in Lympstone and Woodbury, bringing
long term benefits to residents and businesses. The survey will act as a pilot to raise awareness and build
expertise to support other communities within East Devon and elsewhere.

3 The need for the project. 5 5
Comments: The findings of this pilot could save lives, homes and businesses etc. at a time when flooding is
becoming a more significant issue. The need has been identified by DCC, EA, EDDC, parish county and
district councillors.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 5
Comments: Is well planned with the Environment Agency, West Country Rivers Trust etc.

Total Score: 25 24

ASSESSOR Comments:
Only one quotation, but this is specialised works.

Agenda page 84



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Lympstone Parish Council

£10,000 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Environment Agency (expert)
– in kind

£2,300 Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 10,000

Reducing flood risk in the Wotton Brook catchment in Lympstone and Woodbury.
Finding out what can effectively reduce flood risk and then facilitating effective
measures to reduce flood risk and provide valuable data. The Environment Agency
is supportive. It will act as a pilot study to raise awareness and build expertise to
support other communities.

ITEM SCORE
1. 9
2. 5
3. 5
4. 5

TOTAL SCORE: 24

£0

£0

£7,700

Agenda page 85



East Devon District Council and Devon County
Council
Communities Together Fund Application Form
2018 / 2019
Devon County Council and East Devon District Council have allocated a sum of
money to be given in grants. This equates to £1.10 per elector in the District. The
fund exists to encourage communities to work together; identifying new ideas for
their mutual benefit. Applications are welcome from community projects
benefiting, enhancing and making a difference to communities. 

Please read the guidance notes thoroughly before completing the application
form.
All applications must be with us by midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.

IMPORTANT If your application is incomplete by the deadline, it will not be assessed and will be
returned to you. Please ensure that all sections are complete and any supporting documentation sent by
email or post either before or shortly after submitting your application.

Data Protection
Any personal information which you provide will be held and used by East Devon District Council for the purpose of your grant
application. Your information will be held temporarily by SNAP Surveys Ltd who provide the software used for the application. Your
information may also be shared within East Devon District Council for the purposes of carrying out our lawful functions. Otherwise
your personal information will not be disclosed to anybody outside East Devon District Council without your permission, unless
there is a lawful reason to do so, for example disclosure is necessary for crime prevention or detection purposes. Your information
will be held securely and will not be retained for any longer than is necessary. There are a number of rights available to you in
relation to our use of your personal information, depending on the reason for processing.

All applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your application, and details of any funding allocated will be
published on the East Devon District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. Personal information will be removed.
Names and contact details of organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects will
need to complete an evaluation form, which will also be published on our website in the same way. 

Further detail about our use of your personal information can be found in the relevant Privacy Notices which can be accessed
online: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy  SNAP Surveys Ltd Privacy Policy: https://www.snapsurveys.com/surveysoftware/privacy
policyuk

Section A  Your contact details

 1. Names of all the organisations involved in submitting this application:

Lympstone Parish Council; Woodbury Parish Council; Lympstone Flood
Resilience Group 

If you are a voluntary or community group where someone like a town or parish council has
agreed in writing to be accountable for the project and bankroll it please put both your groups
details and the accountable organisations details. 

Please nominate one lead person involved and fill in their details below. This nominated person
will receive all communications about the funding and will receive and be responsible for any
funding received on behalf of all involved.  

 2. Main contacts name, organisation they represent, and address (including postcode):

Parish Clerk, Lympstone Parish Council,

 3. Main contacts phone number:
Agenda page 86



 3. Main contacts phone number:

 4. Main contacts email:

 5. Is the lead organisation (the one who will be accountable for the funding):
Although voluntary and community groups and clubs are eligible, they must work with a lead organisation
who would be accountable and must fit into one of the categories below.

  A charity registered with
the Charities Commission  

A Community Interest
Company registered with
Companies House

  A town or parish council

  If the lead organisation is a registered charity, please put your charity number below:
If the lead organisation is a Community Interest Company please put your registration number
below:

Agenda page 87



Section B  Eligibility checklist

  6. If you answer 'No' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:
  Yes   No   Does not

apply
  Does your project benefit two or more town or parish council
areas within East Devon? Exmouth, as part of a pilot scheme,
are managing their own funding so must not be included when
counting how many town or parish council areas your project
benefits.

   

  Does your project show communities working together;
identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit?    

  Does your project benefit, enhance and/or make a difference
to communities?    

  Have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary
and community groups to either identify and/or carry out the
proposed project? For example; town and parish councils,
Community Interest Companies, registered charities, other
voluntary and community groups.

   

  Do you already have a minimum of 20% of the total costs of
your project from elsewhere?    

  Are you applying to us for funding of between £400 and
£30,000?    

  Do you have one written quotation if the total cost of your
project is under £5,000, three written quotes if it is between
£5,000 and £100,000, or five written quotes if it is over
£100,000?

   

  Will any grant money awarded be able to be spent and claimed
within 12 months of receiving your grant offer letter in around
March 2019?

   

  If you aren't a town or parish council, do you have or will you
get the written support of one or more of the parish or town
councils in the area your project will benefit and send it in with
your application?

   

  Have you let the relevant EDDC Ward Councillor(s) know
about your project?    

  Are you; a town or parish council, Community Interest
Company registered with Companies House, registered
charity, or a voluntary or community group where someone like
a town or parish council has agreed in writing to be
accountable for the project and bankroll it?  

   

  If you are a town or parish council, are you submitting this
application jointly on behalf of two or more parish or town
councils?

   

  If your project is working with vulnerable people do you have a
Safeguarding Policy and appropriately trained staff/volunteers?    

  Taking into account likely funding, is your project viable in the
long term, or is it in a transition phase with documented
evidence of how the project will become sustainable post
transition?

   

 

  7. If you answer 'Yes' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:Agenda page 88



7. If you answer 'Yes' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:
  Yes   No   Does not

apply
  Is your project eligible for our Community Buildings Fund?
eastdevon.gov.uk/grantsandfunding/communitybuildings
fund

   

  Has your project received funding from the Parishes Together
Fund?    

  Is your project any of the following; promoting religion or
politics, the direct responsibility or statutory obligation of
another statutory organisation, regular activity such as
lengthsman duties, ongoing staff costs or costs for the day to
day running of an organisation, to fund budget shortfalls or pay
off debts, to fund a project where planning permission is
needed but hasn't been given.

   

  Will any of the project costs be raised by means of a personal
mortgage or personal security?    

  Is your project due to start before the end of March 2019?    
  Are a significant amount of the beneficiaries of your project
within the Exmouth Town Council area? As part of a pilot
project, Exmouth Town Council are managing their own
funding so aren't included.

   

 

If you are ineligible and feel you should be eligible please call us to discuss on
01395 517569.

 

Section B  About your project Agenda page 89



 

Section B  About your project

When filling in section B, please remember you will be competing with others for this funding. We
can only assess your application on what you submit, so to have the best chance of being
successful please read the guidance notes, the notes underneath the question and give us as much
information as possible.

 8. What is your project? 
Should be approximately 250 words.
Describe in detail what is involved with your project. What do you intend to do? We want to know what
you will do with the grant and what exactly it will pay for.
This proposed project is a vital part of our communityled work to reduce
flood risk in the Wotton Brook catchment in Lympstone and Woodbury (see map
 Attachment 1). The aim is to conduct a robust survey of the soil type and
structure in the catchment, and to identify remedial measures to reduce the
flood risk. Our earlier work indicates that the contribution of runoff from
the rural upper catchment to the flood risk is significant (see photos 
Attachment 2), and observations and experience elsewhere suggest that soil
structural degradation is a key factor, e.g., compacted soils caused by
crop and stock management systems. Consequently, the project will
facilitate the implementation of effective measures to reduce the flood
risk, and provide valuable data for the ongoing hydraulic modelling. The
Environment Agency is supporting the project – providing match funding as
contribution in kind – since it will act as a pilot study to raise
awareness and build expertise to support other communities (see letter –
Attachment 3). The Agency’s national soil management specialist, Dr Richard
Smith, will provide guidance and technical support, and the survey work
will be completed by Westcountry Rivers Trust (see quotation – Attachment
4). The Trust has already engaged positively with landowners and managers
in the catchment (as part of earlier and ongoing work), and these good
relationships are critical to the success of the project. Project oversight
will be provided by a project steering group led by Lympstone Flood
Resilience Group, and including representatives of the EA, DCC, EDDC, SWW,
and Woodbury PC.  

 9. How have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and community groups to
either identify and / or carry out your proposed project, and how are you committed to working
together on the project:
Should be approximately 100 words
For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest Companies, registered charities, other
voluntary and community groups.
Send any accompanying evidence you have of this with your application form.

 

The fundamental approach of Lympstone Flood Resilience Group is to work in
partnership with other organisations and to share lessons learned with
other communities. We are working directly with Woodbury Salterton Flood
Resilience Group and all of the flood risk agencies, and we are in regular
contact with the Parish, District and County Councillors. We are also
engaged with other community groups through the Devon Community Resilience
Forum. Moreover, the involvement of Westcountry Rivers Trust and the
Environment Agency is key to the wider, longterm benefits of the project.
One of the primary aims of the Westcountry Rivers Trust is to advance the
understanding of community groups about water and the importance of a
healthy, functioning environment, and the Environment Agency is keen to
build local expertise in assessing soil structural degradation to support
other community flood risk projects. 

 10. Why do you want to carry out this project and what difference will it make?
Should be approximately 100 words Agenda page 90



Should be approximately 100 words
Outline what impact / difference the project will have on the quality of life for your users and community
e.g. how it will solve a local issue, improve services or engage more residents in their communities.
Our work to date on the flood risk in the Wotton Brook catchment indicates
that the contribution of runoff from the rural upper catchment is
significant (see photos in Attachment 2), and observations suggest that
soil structural degradation is a key factor (e.g., compacted soils caused
by crop and stock management systems). In order to identify effective
remedial measures, we need to determine the extent and location of soil
structural degradation. The proposed soil survey will therefore facilitate
the implementation of measures to reduce the flood risk in Lympstone and
Woodbury (bringing longterm benefits to residents and businesses).
Moreover, working closely with the Environment Agency, the survey will act
as a pilot study to raise awareness and build expertise to support other
communities. 

 11. How do you know this is needed? Who and how have you consulted?
Should be approximately 100 words
How do you know this is what is needed and wanted by the community? You may wish to include letters
of support from town and parish councils involved, voluntary and community groups, residents, local
organisations, businesses, Councillors etc. Have you undertaken any consultation exercises like Parish
Plans, public meetings, other surveys that support your application. Is there any statistical evidence to
support your application?
The need for this project has been identified through extensive
consultation with a range of people and organisations, including: •
Landowners and managers in the upper catchment; • Residents (including
discussion with many residents during a dropin event on 18 December 2018).
• Environment Agency (see letter  Attachment 3); • Devon County Council
(see Attachment 3); • East Devon District Council (see Attachment 3); •
Parish, district and county councillors. The Environment Agency is
particularly supportive since they recognise the need to raise awareness
and build expertise to support other community flood risk projects.  

 12. When do you intend to start work on this project and how long is work likely to take?
Funding can only be given to work that has not happened. Do not start spending on your project until we
have confirmed we have received back your signed copy of your official letter offering the grant, which
we would normally send to you around the end of March 2019. We can't pay for the project if it has been
started before this has happened. The project must be completed within 12 months of you receiving a
grant offer letter if you are successful.  
If our application is successful, we intend to organise a startup meeting
upon confirmation of the funding. Depending on the weather and soil
conditions, the main survey work will then be completed in either late
Spring or the Autumn 2019 (the optimal time to conduct a soil survey is
typically Oct to April). All work will be completed within 12 months of
receipt of the grant offer letter. 

 13. How is your project sustainable?
Should be approximately 80 words Agenda page 91



For example, is it a one off event, will the money pay for buying some items that will stay with the
project, is it  some funding to kick start a project or is it work that the results of will last for a long time. If
it is successful and needs longer term funding how will you make sure the project can carry on, for
example by paying for it from main parish or town council budgets.

 

Our whole approach is to ensure sustainability of the work. This includes
working closely with landowners and managers who are critical to the
implementation of remedial measures identified through the survey, and
with the Environment Agency who will promote the implementation of similar
methods in other catchments and communities. We will also share
information and lessons learned from the project with other communities. 

 

Section C  Project costs and match funding
Agenda page 92



 

14. Every project needs to include a written quotation from at least one contractor / supplier /
provider. If the total cost of the project is over £5,000 but less than £100,000 you must get a
minimum of three written quotations, or detail why this is not possible e.g. only one supplier
that can do the project. If your project costs are over £100,000 you must provide five written
quotations, or detail why this isn't possible. Have you done this and included it as part of your
application?
Please see the rules for the fund for details on the quotation process.

 
Yes  please detail as part of question 17 and send written quote(s) with your
application  
No  you need to do this before submitting your application

  15. What is the total cost of your whole project, and how have you arrived at that cost e.g.
please detail and include quotes you have received for the project and state which ones you wish
to proceed with and why:
Please note that all of the funding will be passed onto the organisation leading the application and they
will be responsible for it. It will be up to the applicants to distribute from there. 
We'll pay grants upon receipt of invoices or receipts, unless you agree an exception to this with us in
advance.
The total cost of the project is £10,000 ex. VAT (including £7,700
consultant’s costs, and £2,300 as contribution in kind from the
Environment Agency). We have arrived at this figure through consultation
with the Environment Agency’s national soil management specialist, and the
Westcountry Rivers Trust. We have only included one written quote
(Attachment 4  from Westcountry Rivers Trust) due to the unique
circumstances of the project, and we are aware that the total project cost
is above the threshold for requiring three quotes. The reasons are as
follows: (1) Westcountry Rivers Trust has already engaged with the
landowners and managers in the upper catchment, and these relationships
are critical to the success of the project, and (2) we were unable to
identify other local consultants with appropriate expertise (Note: This is
why the Environment Agency is keen to use the project as a pilot study).
If further information is needed to justify the above, please contact

at Lympstone Flood Resilience Group 

 
16. Can you claim the VAT back on your project costs?

  Yes  please apply for the costs without including the VAT you can claim back  
No  please apply for the project costs inclusive of VAT

  17. Funding
You must already have a minimum of 20% of the total project costs from other sources to be eligible. 

 
 

Total grant you are requesting from the
Communities Together Fund:                                          
                                        £7,700 

 
 

Other confirmed match funding (please give more
details below of where the funding is coming from and
how much it is for): £2,300 

 

 

The match funding is coming from the
Environment Agency as contribution in
kind  see supporting letter
(Attachment 3). The Environment
Agency's national soil management
specialist   will be
providing guidance and technical
support. 

 

 
 

Other unconfirmed match funding (please give more
details below of funding that has been applied for
and how much it would be for):

  Agenda page 93



 

   

    Total cost of project: £10,000 

    Shortfall (please specify below how this shortfall will
be met):

   

   

Section D  Checklist

 
Agenda page 94



 18. Please tick below to indicate that you have understood and agree to your application form
and supporting evidence being used and published in both of the ways outlined below:

 You have understood that we are subject to Freedom of Information legislation. Unless the information
contained with and within this application is legally classed as confidential or protected under current
data protection legislation it will be made public, usually in the form of being published on our website.
This will be in the form of the agenda and minutes of the decision making meeting and to fit in with any
other Freedom of Information requests. If any information you have given is exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act, it may be redacted before the remainder is published. Find out
more here: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/accesstoinformation/freedomofinformation/

  You are aware of and have understood our Data Protection Policy and Privacy Notices:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy/ This includes all applications including any supporting evidence you
send in with your application, and details of any funding allocated being published on the East Devon
District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. This includes names of individuals and
personal contact details being removed. Names and contact details of organisations and businesses will
be published as part of your application. Successful projects will need to complete an evaluation form,
which will also be published on our website in the same way.  

If you don't tick this box your application can't go forward.
     

 

19. Checklist. Have you sent the following by email or post to accompany your application
including: 
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station Road,
Sidmouth, EX10 8HL
Email: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

 

The appropriate number and type of quotations for the cost of your project,
and any invitations to tender documents.

 
Written support from at least one of the town and parish councils in the
area your project will benefit if you aren't a parish or town council.
Any relevant documents as outlined in guidance notes, for example
accounts, governing documents, safeguarding policies.
Have you made the relevant East Devon District Councillor(s) aware of
your project and sent any comments you received back from them.

  You may also wish to include the following to support your application:
 Details of offers/ grants from any other funder/ organisation
 Photographs, specifications and drawings
 Extracts from Parish Plan(s) or Neighbourhood Plan(s)
 Evidence of consultation e.g. letters of support

 20. Before signing, please read
I confirm that: 
 I am authorised by the organisations involved to sign on their behalf.
 Funding will not directly benefit any individual or private business and will only be used for the purposes
specified within the application.
 I understand that funding will only be paid upon receipt of valid invoices/ receipts. 
 That we will provide East Devon District Council with information of how the funding has benefitted the
community on request.

  Signature of applicant (or type name and this will be counted as a signature):

  Date:
  16 January 2019   

The closing date for applications is midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.
Agenda page 95



The closing date for applications is midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.
At this stage Devon County Council have only been able to confirm their funding of this scheme
for this year only. 

Please press on 'submit' below to send your completed form to us. 

Please send accompanying information clearly labelled with your project details to: 
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station
Road, Sidmouth, EX10 8HL
Email: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

Agenda page 96



Attachment 1 – Map showing Wotton Brook catchment boundary and parish boundaries 
 

 

A
genda page 97



Attachment 2 – Photos showing runoff from land in the Wotton Brook catchment 
 
 

Agenda page 98



  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 Our ref: LympstoneTD-01 
Your ref: N/A 
Date:  15/01/2019 

Parish Clerk 
Lympstone Parish Council 
 
Dear  

Match funding and support for Wotton Brook catchment soil survey 

 
We fully support this application for Communities Together Funding. If successful, the 
funding will be put to good use on an issue that not only helps Lympstone and Woodbury 
communities identify measures to remedy the flooding problems, but will also help us 
facilitate this sort of work in many other communities across Devon in the future. It is not our 
statutory responsibility but we recognise its importance to flood risk management and are, 
therefore, keen to promote a cost-effective approach. 
 
Given the above, we propose to provide match funding of £2,300 (over 20% of the total 
project cost) as contribution in kind from our national soil management specialist  

 is a recognised expert on the impact of soil structure on flood risk. He will 
help steer the project and provide technical support. 
 
Devon County Council and East Devon District Council also support this application. They 
are both partners in the Wotton Brook catchment flood risk management work, and members 
of the Project Steering Group. 
 
We hope that the application is successful. Please feel free to contact me if you have any 
questions or require further information.  
 
Yours faithfully,  

Flood & Coastal Risk Senior Advisor  
 
 

Agenda page 99



 

 
Westcountry Rivers Trust charity no. 1135007 and company limited by guarantee registered in England and Wales, company no. 06545646 

Registered office: Rain-Charm House, Kyl Cober Parc, Stoke Climsland, Callington, Cornwall PL17 8PH 
President: Michael Martin MBE   Chairman of the Trust: Charles Huntington-Whiteley   Chairman of the Board of Directors: Adam Fox-Edwards 

Chief Executive: Dr Laurence Couldrick   Trustees and Directors: Paul Arnott, Prof David Butler, The Lord Clinton, William Darwall, Sir Simon Day, 
Andrew Gray, Graeme Hart, Sir David Hoare Bt, Jenny Ingham Clark, Dr Keith Lancaster, Henry Llewellyn, The Hon Mrs George Lopes, 

Richard Simpson, Andrew Southall, Dr Andy Torrance, William Wyldbore-Smith 

Rain-Charm House 
Kyl Cober Parc 

Stoke Climsland 
Callington 

Cornwall   PL17 8PH 
  

t: +44 (0)1579 372140 
e: info@wrt.org.uk 

  

www.wrt.org.uk 

 

Parish Clerk 
Lympstone Parish Council 
Email: lympstonepc@gmail.com  

Date: 15 January 2019 
 
Dear  
 
Quotation for soil survey in Wotton Brook catchment 
 
Following discussions with Lympstone Flood Resilience Group and the Environment Agency, we 
understand that the objectives of this survey are to:  

 Support flood risk management in Lympstone and Woodbury parishes by determining the extent of 
soil structural degradation in the catchment (which enhances surface water runoff), and identifying 
appropriate remedial measures, and  

 Act as a pilot study to (a) help raise awareness among other communities and organisations about the 
importance of assessing soil structural degradation, and (b) build expertise to facilitate the 
implementation of an effective survey methodology. 

 
This will build on our previous and ongoing work in the Wotton Brook catchment (including engaging with 
landowners and managers), and involve working closely with the Environment Agency’s national soil 
management specialist  who will be providing guidance and quality control. 
 
Our proposed approach and time allocations are as follows: 

1. Prepare for, and attend, a meeting with relevant representatives of Lympstone Flood Resilience 
Group, Woodbury Parish Council, and the Environment Agency to discuss and finalise the survey 
objectives, design and proposed outputs, and the plans for dissemination – 1 day 

2. Document the survey design and work programme – 1 day 
3. Meet with relevant landowners/managers to discuss the survey objectives and approach, and confirm 

their approval for access to the land – 1 day 
4. Conduct survey as planned – 10 days 
5. Review survey results – 2 days 
6. Meet with relevant landowners/managers (individually) to discuss the survey results – 2 days 
7. Prepare a final report to document the survey results, conclusions and recommendations, and the 

lessons learned (the latter to help promote the approach to other communities and organisations) – 4 
days 

8. Present the survey report to the Steering Group and other key stakeholders, and agree next steps – 1 
day 

Agenda page 100



 
 

 
 

This would equate to 22 days at a day rate of £350 ex VAT. This rate includes travel and report materials, 
so the final figure would be £ 7,700 ex VAT. 
 
 

Senior Farm Advisor 
Westcountry Rivers Trust 
 

Agenda page 101



Name of accountable group: Newton Poppleford Playing Field Foundation

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? X
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained?
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

The DAAT has a preferred supplier and is providing the majority of the funding, which is why
there’s only one quotation.

Agenda page 102

Agenda Item 8



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 7

Comments: Newton Poppleford Playing Field Foundation (a registered charity) and Newton Poppleford and
Harpford Parish Council are working together with Devon Air Ambulance to set up a community Devon Air
Ambulance night landing site. They will presumably then have to communicate once it’s put in. The charity
has been in touch with neighbouring parishes, community groups, sports clubs and County Councillors.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 5
Comments: Project is to make a night landing site for the air ambulance at Newton Poppleford, which could
save lives. The air ambulance site offers access to the local community and neighbouring towns and villages
as well as those travelling through the area. There is an arterial road that gets blocked if there is an accident
making road ambulance access difficult.

3 The need for the project. 5 5
Comments: Could save lives in the community. Enables the air ambulance to deliver a life saving service in
the heart of the community. The road often gets blocked when there are accidents.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 4
Comments: Is well planned with DAAT and the Parish Council. DAAT have put in many of these throughout
East Devon so far. Only one quotation though.

Total Score: 25 21

ASSESSOR Comments:
Only one quotation, but this is justified.

Agenda page 103



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Newton Poppleford Playing Field Foundation

£6,490.36 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

DAAT LIBOR funding grant £4,476
DCC Locality Fund £1,000
NP Parish Council £514

Total (if we give our grant) £ £6,490

Newton Poppleford Parish Council, the Playing Field Foundation and the Devon Air
Ambulance Trust are working together to put in a night landing site at the field. This
would potentially enable the air ambulance to land at night to save lives in Newton
Poppleford and surrounding towns and parishes.

ITEM SCORE
1. 7
2. 5
3. 5
4. 4

TOTAL SCORE: 21

£0

£0

£1,500

Agenda page 104



Agenda page 105



Agenda page 106



Agenda page 107



Agenda page 108

jbuckley_12
Text Box
Attached is a map showing (red dot) the location of our proposed site, green dot for the nearest in Sidford (3.5miles - 10 mins by car) and the blue dot indicates the top of Four Elms Hill which is the reason why a NP site is so important - an accident here cuts off all traffic from the east (Sidmouth) and thus ambulances can't get through.
The Sidford one is based at the Rugby Club and uses their existing floodlights to provide night-time illumination (like Axminster FC).  The NP project would be complete installation from ground up.




Agenda page 109



Agenda page 110



Agenda page 111



Agenda page 112



Agenda page 113



Agenda page 114



Agenda page 115



Agenda page 116



Agenda page 117



Agenda page 118



Agenda page 119



Agenda page 120



Agenda page 121



Agenda page 122



Agenda page 123



A
genda page 124



Name of accountable group: Ottery Help Scheme

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? X
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

N/A

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

It looks like they have more than a year’s running costs in reserve, but they have explained this.

Agenda page 125

Agenda Item 9



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 8

Comments: They have already consulted and will work with many different organisations and businesses to
support people with dementia in the area. They’ll work with the Alzheimer’s Society. They’ll work with
Honiton Dementia Action Alliance to share best practice.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 5
Comments: Living with dementia can be isolating, particularly in rural communities. Creating a dementia
aware community will enable people with dementia and their carers to engage more. Holding memory cafes
in village halls will enable more local support and support local village infrastructure.

3 The need for the project. 5 4
Comments: East Devon has 9th highest level of dementia out of 650. Ottery Help Scheme has consulted with
different organisations and individuals, including local town and parish councils to discover the need.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 5
Comments: Ottery Help Scheme have planned the project well, and it fits in with other work they’re already
doing successfully.

Total Score: 25 22

ASSESSOR Comments:
Only one quotation as they feel they are uniquely placed to deliver this project.

Agenda page 126



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Ottery Help Scheme

£13,200 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Ottery and District League of
Friends

£1,320

Ottery Town Council £500
Otter Vale Rotary £790
Ottery Help Scheme £200

Total (if we give our grant) £ 13,200

To set up a sustainable Dementia Action Alliance across the Ottery St Mary District
and deliver roaming memory cafes in rural parishes around. They’ve been running a
memory café in Ottery for several years already. Will involve working with a variety of
local organisations and businesses.

ITEM SCORE
1. 8
2. 5
3. 4
4. 5

TOTAL SCORE: 22

£0

£0

£10,390

Agenda page 127



East Devon District Council and Devon County
Council
Communities Together Fund Application Form
2018 / 2019
Devon County Council and East Devon District Council have allocated a sum of money to
be given in grants. This equates to £1.10 per elector in the District. The fund exists to
encourage communities to work together; identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.
Applications are welcome from community projects benefiting, enhancing and making a
difference to communities.

Please read the guidance notes thoroughly before completing the application form.
All applications must be with us by midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.

IMPORTANT- If your application is incomplete by the deadline, it will not be assessed and will be returned to you.
Please ensure that all sections are complete and any supporting documentation sent by email or post either before or
shortly after submitting your application.
Data Protection
Any personal information which you provide will be held and used by East Devon District Council for the purpose of your grant application. Your
information will be held temporarily by SNAP Surveys Ltd who provide the software used for the application. Your information may also be shared
within East Devon District Council for the purposes of carrying out our lawful functions. Otherwise your personal information will not be disclosed to
anybody outside East Devon District Council without your permission, unless there is a lawful reason to do so, for example disclosure is necessary
for crime prevention or detection purposes. Your information will be held securely and will not be retained for any longer than is necessary. There
are a number of rights available to you in relation to our use of your personal information, depending on the reason for processing.

All applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your application, and details of any funding allocated will be published on the
East Devon District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. Personal information will be removed. Names and contact details of
organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects will need to complete an evaluation form, which will
also be published on our website in the same way.

Further detail about our use of your personal information can be found in the relevant Privacy Notices which can be accessed online:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy  SNAP Surveys Ltd Privacy Policy: https://www.snapsurveys.com/survey-software/privacy-policy-uk

Section A - Your contact details

1. Names of all the organisations involved in submitting this application:
Ottery Help Scheme

If you are a voluntary or community group where someone like a town or parish council has agreed in writing
to be accountable for the project and bankroll it please put both your groups details and the accountable
organisations details.

Please nominate one lead person involved and fill in their details below. This nominated person will receive all
communications about the funding and will receive and be responsible for any funding received on behalf of
all involved.

2. Main contacts name, organisation they represent, and address (including postcode):
Chief Officer, Ottery Help Scheme, T

3. Main contacts phone number:

4. Main contacts e-mail:

Agenda page 128



5. Is the lead organisation (the one who will be accountable for the funding):
Although voluntary and community groups and clubs are eligible, they must work with a lead organisation who would
be accountable and must fit into one of the categories below.

A charity registered with the
Charities Commission

A Community Interest
Company registered with
Companies House

A town or parish council

If the lead organisation is a registered charity, please put your charity number below:
If the lead organisation is a Community Interest Company please put your registration number below:
Reg charity number 1150898

Agenda page 129



Section B - Eligibility checklist

6. If you answer 'No' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:

Does your project benefit two or more town or parish council areas
within East Devon? Exmouth, as part of a pilot scheme, are
managing their own funding so must not be included when counting
how many town or parish council areas your project benefits.

Yes No
Does not

apply

Does your project show communities working together; identifying
new ideas for their mutual benefit?
Does your project benefit, enhance and/or make a difference to
communities?
Have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and
community groups to either identify and/or carry out the proposed
project? For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest
Companies, registered charities, other voluntary and community
groups.
Do you already have a minimum of 20% of the total costs of your
project from elsewhere?

Are you applying to us for funding of between £400 and £30,000?
Do you have one written quotation if the total cost of your project is
under £5,000, three written quotes if it is between £5,000 and
£100,000, or five written quotes if it is over £100,000?
Will any grant money awarded be able to be spent and claimed within
12 months of receiving your grant offer letter in around March 2019?
If you aren't a town or parish council, do you have or will you get the
written support of one or more of the parish or town councils in the
area your project will benefit and send it in with your application?
Have you let the relevant EDDC Ward Councillor(s) know about your
project?
Are you; a town or parish council, Community Interest Company
registered with Companies House, registered charity, or a voluntary
or community group where someone like a town or parish council has
agreed in writing to be accountable for the project and bankroll it?
If you are a town or parish council, are you submitting this application
jointly on behalf of two or more parish or town councils?
If your project is working with vulnerable people do you have a
Safeguarding Policy and appropriately trained staff/volunteers?
Taking into account likely funding, is your project viable in the long
term, or is it in a transition phase with documented evidence of how
the project will become sustainable post transition?

7. If you answer 'Yes' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:

Is your project eligible for our Community Buildings Fund? eastdevon.
gov.uk/grants-and-funding/community-buildings-fund

Yes No
Does not

apply

Has your project received funding from the Parishes Together Fund?
Is your project any of the following; promoting religion or politics, the
direct responsibility or statutory obligation of another statutory
organisation, regular activity such as lengthsman duties, on-going
staff costs or costs for the day to day running of an organisation, to
fund budget shortfalls or pay off debts, to fund a project where
planning permission is needed but hasn't been given.
Will any of the project costs be raised by means of a personal
mortgage or personal security?

Is your project due to start before the end of March 2019?
Are a significant amount of the beneficiaries of your project within the
Exmouth Town Council area? As part of a pilot project, Exmouth
Town Council are managing their own funding so aren't included.

Agenda page 130



 If you are ineligible and feel you should be eligible please call us to discuss on 01395
517569.

Agenda page 131



Section B - About your project
When filling in section B, please remember you will be competing with others for this funding. We can only
assess your application on what you submit, so to have the best chance of being successful please read the
guidance notes, the notes underneath the question and give us as much information as possible.

8. What is your project?
Should be approximately 250 words.
Describe in detail what is involved with your project. What do you intend to do? We want to know what you will do with
the grant and what exactly it will pay for.
The two aims of this project are: to set up a sustainable Dementia Action Alliance (DAA) across the Ottery St Mary
district and deliver ‘roaming’ memory cafes in the surrounding rural parishes. There are 356 local DAAs across the
country, the aim being to improve the daily lives of those living with dementia and their carers and families.
Communities can play a large role in making this happen. The aims of this project will be to: • promote an
inclusive and supportive dementia-friendly community  • destigmatise and demystify dementia • include those living
with dementia and their carers in the design and delivery of the project • enable those living with dementia to
become more actively involved and integrated into their local communities. Ottery Help Scheme’s Chief Officer will
manage the project and their Community Co-ordinator will deliver it (both staff members have an extensive amount
of experience in running community-based dementia projects). The project will involve: • setting up a steering
group (including people living with dementia and their carers) • developing a plan to make Ottery and District
dementia-friendly, to include seven action points to be identified by the steering group and the local community •
running a series of dementia-friends sessions to local businesses, organisations and schools • setting up new
‘roaming’ memory cafes to address rural isolation, thereby enabling people living in local villages to more easily
access this type of support • report back to the Alzheimer’s Society (who manage the national programme of
DAAs) on our chosen action points  The grant will pay for: • the management and delivery of the project • the room
hire of village halls • volunteer expenses • resources and marketing • contribution to Ottery Help Scheme’s
insurance, training and office-based overheads

9. How have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and community groups to either
identify and / or carry out your proposed project, and how are you committed to working together on the
project:
Should be approximately 100 words
For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest Companies, registered charities, other voluntary and
community groups.
Send any accompanying evidence you have of this with your application form.

In essence, the project is about galvanising the good-will of the local community and, therefore, will involve working
with many different organisations and businesses. The Dementia Action Alliance will reach out, in particular, to local
shops, cafes and community hubs such as the local library and GP surgeries, so that people living with dementia
can be supported in their everyday lives. Ottery Help Scheme has consulted with local GPs, the Ottery and District
Health and Care forum, the local library, local schools, the Silver Otter café, the Rowan and Linden Centre, to
name a few. All consulted are keen to be involved in creating a Dementia Action Alliance and supporting its
sustainability in the long-term.

Agenda page 132



10. Why do you want to carry out this project and what difference will it make?
Should be approximately 100 words
Outline what impact / difference the project will have on the quality of life for your users and community e.g. how it will
solve a local issue, improve services or engage more residents in their communities.
Many of the surrounding towns in East Devon already have a DAA. Ottery St Mary and District could draw on the
knowledge gained from these other DAAs to quickly establish and embed a DAA in our local area. Why is this
needed? Many people living with dementia (and their carers) risk becoming socially isolated as they can feel
embarrassed by some of the associated behaviours, often worrying to the point that they no longer feel able to
engage with their local community. Creating a dementia-aware community, that is understanding and tolerant, will
enable people living with dementia to lead much more active and engaged lives. By providing memory cafes in
local villages, this project will also be tackling rural isolation issues. Holding the memory cafes in village halls will
mean that the project will be financially supporting local infrastructure within villages, as well as enabling peer
support networks to establish themselves and, hopefully, flourish.

11. How do you know this is needed? Who and how have you consulted?
Should be approximately 100 words
How do you know this is what is needed and wanted by the community? You may wish to include letters of support
from town and parish councils involved, voluntary and community groups, residents, local organisations, businesses,
Councillors etc. Have you undertaken any consultation exercises like Parish Plans, public meetings, other surveys
that support your application. Is there any statistical evidence to support your application?
In terms of percentage of population living with dementia, Alzheimer’s Research UK statistics show that the East
Devon constituency is ranked as ninth highest out of 650. Ottery Help Scheme has consulted with a range of
different organisations and individuals through meetings, telephone conversations, case studies and feedback
sessions at volunteer coffee mornings. This process has included talking to local councils (Ottery St Mary,
Buckerell, Feniton, Gittisham, West Hill, Aylesbeare and Talaton), the Rowan and Linden Day Care centre, the
Coleridge Medical Centre, the Ottery and District Hospital League of Friends, carers and several of our current
volunteers, who are constantly engaged in community-level conversations during our support group sessions and
community transport runs.

12. When do you intend to start work on this project and how long is work likely to take?
Funding can only be given to work that has not happened. Do not start spending on your project until we have
confirmed we have received back your signed copy of your official letter offering the grant, which we would normally
send to you around the end of March 2019. We can't pay for the project if it has been started before this has
happened. The project must be completed within 12 months of you receiving a grant offer letter if you are successful.
We would like to start this project in April 2019 and complete it in April 2020.

13. How is your project sustainable?
Should be approximately 80 words
For example, is it a one off event, will the money pay for buying some items that will stay with the project, is it  some
funding to kick start a project or is it work that the results of will last for a long time. If it is successful and needs
longer term funding how will you make sure the project can carry on, for example by paying for it from main parish or
town council budgets.

We would aim to focus one of the Dementia Action Alliance’s action points wholly on the issue of sustainability of
the rural memory café project. We would go about this by identifying ‘lead’ volunteers in the local parishes who
would take responsibility for keeping the memory cafes running after the project funding has ended (these
volunteers will have undertaken free dementia-friends training during the year). We would also ask for a small
donation from the memory cafe participants; this could cover room hire costs, enabling the project to become
financially sustainable. Through its ongoing work in the local community, Ottery Help Scheme would be happy to
offer support and advice to the volunteers taking on board the sustainability of this project. All project volunteers
could also continue to get support and advice from the national Dementia Action Alliance website and forum.

Agenda page 133



Agenda page 134

jbuckley_13
Text Box
•  Have you spoken to Honiton Dementia Action Alliance or other dementia action groups in the local area to learn about best practice and get support?
Yes, I have met with Heather Penwarden from Honiton DAA to discuss how we might share best practice and learning. Heather talked to me about the process of setting up a Dementia Action Alliance. She stated that the Honiton DAA and memory cafe has difficulty with reaching out to the rural areas and would be very keen for the Help Scheme to share our learning about the roaming memory café project, if we were to be successful. I have also consulted with Sue Moore, who set up the Tiverton Dementia Action Alliance.
•  How many people do you anticipate being able to come to use your rural community dementia cafes?
We currently have over 350 people on our database who are living in rural areas. We would anticipate that we could attract around 15 - 20 people per memory café (this might include carers) and would aim to rotate the cafes during the year to reach the maximum amount of participants possible, potentially up to around 80 people on a regular basis.
 •  Looking at your accounts it looks like your reserves depleted from March 2017 to March 2018 by £62,915. Is there a reason for this?
 The trustees of the Help Scheme agreed to commit funding to two projects in 2017/2018 using unexpected funds from a legacy. The money for these two projects was ring-fenced within the annual accounts to fund a local youth mental health project and to help set up a Home Services service (part of the Help Scheme).
 •  Looking at your accounts it looks like you may have more than a year’s running costs in reserve? However, we are now nearly at the end of the following financial year so it may be the case that you no longer do? In the rules it states that we can’t fund ‘Projects for organisations that have more than 12 months running costs in reserves.’ If you do, is there an explanation for this? For example, do you have plans for the reserves, has the charities commission recommended you hold more than 12 months running costs?
With the allocation of the funds mentioned above, the charity’s reserves have been reduced to well below a year’s running costs.
 •  As well as running roaming memory cafes, will there be memory cafes in Ottery itself?
We have been running the memory café in Ottery for several years and have a bank of experienced volunteers, resources and staff members that will inform the setting up, and running of, the rural memory café project.



Section C - Project costs and match funding

14. Every project needs to include a written quotation from at least one contractor / supplier / provider. If
the total cost of the project is over £5,000 but less than £100,000 you must get a minimum of three written
quotations, or detail why this is not possible e.g. only one supplier that can do the project. If your project
costs are over £100,000 you must provide five written quotations, or detail why this isn't possible. Have you
done this and included it as part of your application?
Please see the rules for the fund for details on the quotation process.

Yes - please detail as part of question 17 and send written quote(s) with your application

No - you need to do this before submitting your application

15. What is the total cost of your whole project, and how have you arrived at that cost e.g. please detail
and include quotes you have received for the project and state which ones you wish to proceed with and
why:
Please note that all of the funding will be passed onto the organisation leading the application and they will be
responsible for it. It will be up to the applicants to distribute from there.
We'll pay grants upon receipt of invoices or receipts, unless you agree an exception to this with us in advance.
The total cost for the whole project is £13,2000. Ottery Help Scheme is uniquely placed to deliver this project, so
here is the quote: Dementia- Friendly Co-ordinator costs: 15 hours per week; hourly rate £10; monthly cost £600;
annual cost £7200 Chief Officer (management) costs: 2 hours per week; hourly rate £12.50; monthly cost £100;
annual cost £1200 Room hire costs (village halls for memory cafes): 6 hours per month; hourly rate £10; monthly
cost £60; annual cost £720 Volunteer expenses: Variable hours; monthly cost £100; annual cost £1200
Resources/marketing: Monthly cost £140; annual cost £1680 Contribution to accounts, insurance,
resources/training: £1200 (10% of subtotal)

16. Can you claim the VAT back on your project costs?
Yes - please apply for the costs without including the VAT you can claim back

No - please apply for the project costs inclusive of VAT

Agenda page 135



17. Funding
You must already have a minimum of 20% of the total project costs from other sources to be eligible.

Total grant you are requesting from the Communities
Together Fund:

10,390

Other confirmed match funding (please give more details
below of where the funding is coming from and how much it
is for):

2810

Ottery and District Hospital League of Friends  £1320
Ottery Town Council  £500 Otter Vale Rotary £790 Ottery
Help Scheme £200

Other unconfirmed match funding (please give more details
below of funding that has been applied for and how much it
would be for):

Total cost of project:
13,200

Shortfall (please specify below how this shortfall will be met):
0

Agenda page 136



Section D - Checklist

18. Please tick below to indicate that you have understood and agree to your application form and
supporting evidence being used and published in both of the ways outlined below:

- You have understood that we are subject to Freedom of Information legislation. Unless the information contained
with and within this application is legally classed as confidential or protected under current data protection legislation it
will be made public, usually in the form of being published on our website. This will be in the form of the agenda and
minutes of the decision making meeting and to fit in with any other Freedom of Information requests. If any
information you have given is exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, it may be redacted
before the remainder is published. Find out more here: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/access-to-information/freedom-of-
information/
- You are aware of and have understood our Data Protection Policy and Privacy Notices:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy/ This includes all applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your
application, and details of any funding allocated being published on the East Devon District Council website in line
with our Privacy Statement. This includes names of individuals and personal contact details being removed. Names
and contact details of organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects
will need to complete an evaluation form, which will also be published on our website in the same way.

If you don't tick this box your application can't go forward.

19. Checklist. Have you sent the following by email or post to accompany your application including:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station Road, Sidmouth,
EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

The appropriate number and type of quotations for the cost of your project, and any
invitations to tender documents.
Written support from at least one of the town and parish councils in the area your
project will benefit if you aren't a parish or town council.
Any relevant documents as outlined in guidance notes, for example accounts,
governing documents, safeguarding policies.
Have you made the relevant East Devon District Councillor(s) aware of your project
and sent any comments you received back from them.

You may also wish to include the following to support your application:
- Details of offers/ grants from any other funder/ organisation
- Photographs, specifications and drawings
- Extracts from Parish Plan(s) or Neighbourhood Plan(s)
- Evidence of consultation e.g. letters of support

20. Before signing, please read
I confirm that:
- I am authorised by the organisations involved to sign on their behalf.
- Funding will not directly benefit any individual or private business and will only be used for the purposes specified
within the application.
- I understand that funding will only be paid upon receipt of valid invoices/ receipts.
- That we will provide East Devon District Council with information of how the funding has benefitted the community
on request.
Signature of applicant (or type name and this will be counted as a signature):

Date:
16.1.19

Agenda page 137



The closing date for applications is midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.
At this stage Devon County Council have only been able to confirm their funding of this scheme for this year
only.

Please press on 'submit' below to send your completed form to us.

Please send accompanying information clearly labelled with your project details to:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station Road,
Sidmouth, EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

Agenda page 138



A Helping Hand When You Need It Most

Ottery Help Scheme
The Station

Mill Street, Ottery St Mary
Devon, EX11 1AH

01404 813041 Email: info @otteryhelpscheme.org.uk www.otteryhelpscheme.org.uk

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Ottery Help Scheme

The Station, Mill Street, Ottery St Mary, Devon, EX11 1AH Tel: 01404 813041
Registered Charity No: 1150898. Limited Liability Company Registered in England. Company Registration No: 8354771

January 2019

Costings to deliver a year’s project for the Communities Together fund:

Dementia- Friendly Co-ordinator costs:
15 hours per week; hourly rate £10; monthly cost £600; annual cost £7200

Chief Officer (management) costs:
2 hours per week; hourly rate £12.50; monthly cost £100; annual cost £1200

Room hire costs (village halls for memory cafes):
6 hours per month; hourly rate £10; monthly cost £60; annual cost £720

Volunteer expenses:
Variable hours; monthly cost £100; annual cost £1200

Resources/marketing:
Monthly cost £140; annual cost £1680

Contribution to Ottery Help Scheme’s accounts, insurance, training, office
resources:
£1200 (10% of subtotal)

Total: £13,200

Agenda page 139



Agenda page 140



O OTTERY ST MARYTown Council Christine McIntyre FCILEx PSLCC
Town ClerkCouncil OfficesThe Old Convent8 Broad StreetOttery St MaryDevon EX11 1BZ

Telephone: 01404 812252
Email: enquiries@otterystmary-tc.gov.uk

www.otterystmary-tc.gov.uk

Jamie Buckley
Community Engagement and Funding Officer
East Devon District Council
The Knowle
Sidmouth
Devon
EX10 8HL

14th January 2019

Dear Jamie

PROPOSED BID TO COMMUNITIES TOGETHER BY THE OTTERY HELP SCHEME FOR
FUNDING FOR A DEMENTIA INITIATIVE - (DEMENTIA ACTION ALLIANCE (`ALLIANCE`))
LETTER OF SUPPORT FROM OTTERY ST MARY TOWN COUNCIL

Please see below the resolution of this Town Council

`COMMUNITIES TOGETHER • CONSIDERATION BY THE TOWN COUNCIL TO SUPPORT A
PROPOSED BID BY THE HELP SCHEME FOR FUNDING FOR A DEMENTIA INITIATIVE
It was understood that the League of Friends was happy to support this bid and provide
10% match funding (£1350). After some discussion it was RESOLVED that the Council
would also support the bid by providing £500 of match funding`

The aforementioned resolution of the Council, is an endorsement of how important it
believes the proposed Alliance would be to the community. It is also aware  that many of
the surrounding towns in East Devon already have Dementia Action Alliances and that
there is a gap in the Ottery area for this type of support. This has been flagged up by the GPs
who would welcome more community-based support.

Ottery is well equipped with support for people living with the later stages of dementia (the
Rowan and Linden centre) but not for people who are in the early stages, or who have had a
recent diagnosis of dementia. It is important to put in place as much community-based

Agenda page 141



O OTTERY ST MARYTown Council Christine McIntyre FCILEx PSLCC
Town ClerkCouncil OfficesThe Old Convent8 Broad StreetOttery St MaryDevon EX11 1BZ

Telephone: 01404 812252
Email: enquiries@otterystmary-tc.gov.uk

www.otterystmary-tc.gov.uk

support for people in the early stages of dementia, so that they feel empowered to continue
their everyday lives.  The Council is very keen to support this!

The project will bring together different elements of the community - shops, cafes,
businesses, schools, charities, public services to give a show of support to those living with
dementia and their carers.

As the project involves a training element (dementia friends sessions) to all of the above,
the project has the potential to be sustainable beyond the year's funding, through the good
will of the local community, encouraged by the Council, the Help Scheme, the library etc.

Finally, the Help Scheme is very well embedded in the town and therefore it is well placed to
quickly gain the support of the community to engage with and support the project in the
short and long term.

I trust you will look favourably to awarding the Help Scheme the funding it requires for such
an essential, worthwhile and much needed service.

Yours sincerely

Christine McIntyre
TOWN CLERK

Agenda page 142



Agenda page 143



Rowan and Linden Centre
Ottery St Mary Hospital

Keegan Close
Ottery St Mary

Devon
EX11 1DN

Tel: 01404 816025

27/12/2018

We are writing to support the Ottery Help Scheme’s project proposal for creating roaming
Memory Cafes in the Ottery St Mary area. As a service that supports people living with
dementia we see how additional services can really help.
Social isolation is a very real problem for people with dementia and their carers. Many people
who are diagnosed with dementia feel they can no longer maintain their activities and become
isolated from their communities. Social isolation can in fact impact on their cognition and their
dementia symptoms deteriorate more quickly compared to those who are able to maintain their
social interactions. Memory Cafés can provide a safe and secure environment, allow people
with dementia to socialise and allow their carers to access support from fellow carers and act as
a signposting to other support services.

Creating Dementia Action Alliances and Dementia Friendly towns are also an essential element
to supporting people with dementia. It has worked exceptionally well in other areas with local
businesses learning more about dementia and how to offer support. Communities are vital in
supporting people with dementia, indeed vital in supporting all older people. To develop a
network of thoughtful, supportive and tolerant businesses and organisations will provide a vital
link for all of the community.

The Community Health and Social Care team  would be keen to support the Ottery St Mary
Helpscheme with this initiative and it would provide a valuable provision to signpost many of our
patients to and their carers, to help sustain any improvements made by health or social care
interventions. So often, where we are able to make a difference whilst the patient or carer is
engaged in our services, there is too often little community help to support them going forwards
to sustain any improvements to their situation. The proposals made by the Helpscheme will
enable a whole community approach to supporting the normal lives of our residents with
memory difficulties and to allow them to feel comfortable to engage in their community through
greater acceptance and understanding of dementia. We need community investment to do this
and prevent affected individuals withdrawing from community interaction.

We welcome the address of Carers who provide an invaluable service to maintaining individuals
with dementia to live independently for as long as possible. The memory cafes will extend the
support for these people and allow for some respite and social interaction for themselves.

Matron, Rowan Assessment Unit

Health and Social Care Community Services Manager

Agenda page 144



Ottery St Mary Library
Silver Street
Ottery St Mary
Devon
EX11 1 DB

11th January 2018

Dear

I am writing in order to support your project proposal for establishing a Dementia Friendly
Community in Ottery St Mary.

The aims of your project strongly suit the aims of the library.  We are very interested in any
projects that support our community and enable local people to access the services that they
need.

The library would love to be involved in your project.  We could be a host venue for Memory
Cafes or Dementia Friendly Training.  We also stock a range of books on the subject.

We wholeheartedly support what you are trying to achieve with this new project and look
forward to working with you should your funding bid be successful.

With thanks

Library Supervisor
Ottery St Mary Library

Agenda page 145



Agenda page 146



OTTERY ST. MARY AND DISTRICT
LATER  LIFE  FORUM active in identifying issues relevant to older people and trying to find solutions.

c/o   10, Yonder Street, Ottery St. Mary, EX 11 1 HD e-mail: ellipang@btinternet.com tel.: 01 404 81 2268

by email                                                                                                6th December 2018

Ottery St Mary and District Help Scheme
The Station,
Ottery St. Mary

Dea

Re: Dementia Action Alliance

The Later Life Forum have become aware of your plans – and seeking funding support towards
setting up a

Dementia Action Alliance
delivering roaming memory cafes to reach out to the villages
(alongside the memory café in Ottery that you  currently run

and take this opportunity to congratulate you on this plan – and whilst unable to offer financial support
as we, ourselves, are a non-funded volunteer group in the same area you will be covering – really glad
that you are able to access the Parishes Together Fund.

It is especially important – as you have clearly realized – an are acting upon ..  that services need to be
brought out into the villages and near to people’s home.

eetings,

Co-ordinator
Ottery St. Mary and District Later Life Forum.

Agenda page 147



To whom this may concern,

I'm writing this email to you because the past few months my mum who has
dementia has been using the local help scheme in Ottery St Mary.

We moved to Newton Poppleford nearly 2 years ago from Honiton and my mum lost
touch with most of her friends so being involved with this support group I think has
helped!

I think there could be more local support in the local community, specially for people
with dementia and also the carers, as it is a good way to keep their minds and
bodies active with the memory Cafe and exercise classes that my mum goes to
when they are on.

With more support within the community it means that activies such as these can be
ran more regularly, giving people with dementia a chance to talk and be around
others in a similar situation as well as make friends. As well as this, more support
would benefit carers as they would be able to run more activities and spend more
individual time with people that may need support.

Kind Regards,

Agenda page 148



Hi 

Thank you for your email. I am writing to confirm that the GP Partners here have seen your papers
and support you in your bid for funding to run the Dementia Action Alliance project. We wish you
all the very best in securing the funding.

Yours sincerely

Practice Manager
Coleridge Medical Centre
Canaan Way
Ottery St Mary
Devon EX11 1EQ

E-MAIL DISCLAIMER – IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This message may contain confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient
please inform the sender before deleting it. The email is intended for the named addressee
only. Please do not copy, disclose or redistribute information in this email to any third party
without the sender’s permission.

Unless otherwise stated any views or opinions stated in this email are solely those of the
author and do not necessarily represent the views of the Coleridge Medical Centre.

Coleridge Medical Centre endeavours to keep its network free of viruses. You should
however scan this email and any attachments for viruses as Coleridge Medical Centre cannot
be held responsible for any viruses which may be transmitted either in the email or any
attachment. Emails may be monitored.

Agenda page 149



Feniton Church of England Tipton St. John Church of England
(VA) Primary School (VA) Primary School
Station Road Tipton St. John
Feniton Sidmouth
Devon Devon
EX14 3EA EX10 0AG
Tel: 01404 850303 Tel: 01404 812943
Email: admin@feniton.devon.sch.uk Email admin@tipton-stjohn.devon.sch.uk

Wednesday 12th December 2018

Dear

Many thanks for getting in touch with me.
It was wonderful to hear about your vision for supporting people in the area who suffer with

dementia. At Feniton Church of England Primary School we would be interested in supporting
this project.

We encourage all of our children to live our vision of living life to the full and Believing and
Achieving Together to be the Best They Can Be. We have established community champion
projects to help each class focus on raising awareness and/or fundraising for a special cause.
For example Year 2 hold a café to raise funds for the homeless in Exeter and St Petrocs. Our
Year 5’s are raising awareness of mental health and the Mind charity. In Reception Class this
year we are inviting in a group of elderly people from Feniton to work and play alongside our
4/5 year olds.

Our Year 3’s would be particularly interested in taking part in the Dementia Friendly
Sessions that you mentioned. This presentation would be really helpful in helping the children
to demystify the behaviours of dementia and it links with our school value of empathy.

Please keep in touch and let me know if our school can support in any way.

Head of School

Agenda page 150



thank you for your call.I was most interested to hear of your intentions to set up a
scheme for the elderly people suffering from dementia in our area. I am a retired
nurse on the general and psychiatric register .My interests during a long career in the
NHS have always been involved with the care of the elderly.I nursed my wife, who
was suffering from Alzeimers for the last four years of her life.Whilst I had support
from a befriender I felt that there was something missing in the service which I feel
can now be rectified with the help of some much needed funding. I am a regular
attender of the Ottery and the Honiton Memory Cafe's,but I feel that there are many
people in the surrounding villages who could benefit from a more local
service,especially as there are many of us who do not drive anymore ,and therefore
have difficulties getting to other places.
I therefore am willing to support any form of improvement in a vital service for the
people of Ottery St.Mary and surrounding villages and I hope that your request for
funding will be sucessful.

I hope this will suffice, and should you need any further information or help, please
don't hesitate to contact me.

Agenda page 151



Agenda page 152



Cllr Susan Bond

I am particularly delighted to support the Communities Together bid for funding for Ottery
Help Scheme to set up a Dementia Action Alliance across the Ottery St Mary district and in
particular delivery of roaming memory cafes.

Through a relative, I have seen at first hand the benefits of the memory cafe scheme and
how the activities on offer can provide stimulation to those suffering dementia, but also
much-needed support for their carers.

Given the ageing demographic in East Devon, this initiative will be strongly welcomed by the
rural communities which stand to benefit. To bring the service to the heart of the rural
communities will give confidence to those attending as they will be among 'friends'. After
the first year of set up, I predict that communities will want to see this service continue.

I look forward to promoting the service in my ward.

Kind regards,

Susie Bond
District Councillor
Feniton & Buckerell ward
01404 850208
0771 222 7434

Agenda page 153



Roger Giles

I am delighted to be able to add my support to the excellent Ottery Help Scheme
Communities Together bid. There have been a series of meetings, hosted by Ottery
St Mary Town Council, with representatives of Aylesbeare, Feniton, Talaton and
West Hill Parish Councils, which recognised the benefits of the scheme to residents
of the communities that they represent. There was particular support for the very
beneficial service to be provided within those communities, and also recognition that
there would be financial and other benefits for the community halls in which the
activities would take place.

Roger Giles
Ottery St Mary Town Councillor and East Devon District Councillor

Agenda page 154



Registration number: 08354771

Ottery Help Scheme
(A company limited by guarantee)

Annual Report and Unaudited Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Easterbrook Eaton Limited
Chartered Accountants
8 Jesu Street
Ottery St Mary
Devon
EX11 1EU

Agenda page 155



Ottery Help Scheme

Contents

Company Information 1

Directors' Report 2

Accountants' Report 3

Profit and Loss Account 4

Statement of Comprehensive Income 5

Balance Sheet 6

Statement of Changes in Equity 7

Notes to the Financial Statements 8 to 10

Agenda page 156



Ottery Help Scheme

Company Information

Directors

Registered office The Station
Mill Street
Ottery St Mary
Devon
EX11 1AH

Accountants Easterbrook Eaton Limited
Chartered Accountants
8 Jesu Street
Ottery St Mary
Devon
EX11 1EU

Page 1

Agenda page 157



Ottery Help Scheme

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Directors of the company
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is other human health activities

Small companies provision statement
This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to companies subject to the
small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Board on 22 October 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Page 2

Agenda page 158



Chartered Accountants' Report to the Board of Directors on the Preparation of the
Unaudited Statutory Accounts of

Ottery Help Scheme
for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

In order to assist you to fulfil your duties under the Companies Act 2006, we have prepared for your approval
the accounts of Ottery Help Scheme for the year ended 31 March 2018 as set out on pages 4 to 10 from the
company's accounting records and from information and explanations you have given us.

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are
subject to its ethical and other professional requirements which are detailed at
http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance/ .

This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of Ottery Help Scheme, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare for your approval the accounts
of Ottery Help Scheme and state those matters that we have agreed to state to the Board of Directors of Ottery
Help Scheme, as a body, in this report in accordance with ICAEW Technical Release 07/16 AAF. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Ottery Help Scheme
and its Board of Directors as a body for our work or for this report.

It is your duty to ensure that Ottery Help Scheme has kept adequate accounting records and to prepare statutory
accounts that give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and loss of Ottery Help
Scheme. You consider that Ottery Help Scheme is exempt from the statutory audit requirement for the year.

We have not been instructed to carry out an audit or a review of the accounts of Ottery Help Scheme. For this
reason, we have not verified the accuracy or completeness of the accounting records or information and
explanations you have given to us and we do not, therefore, express any opinion on the statutory accounts.

......................................

Easterbrook Eaton Limited
Chartered Accountants
8 Jesu Street
Ottery St Mary
Devon
EX11 1EU

22 October 2018

Page 3

Agenda page 159



Ottery Help Scheme

Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Note
2018

£
2017

£

Turnover 87,853 99,112

Cost of sales (142,015) (67,454)

Gross (deficit)/surplus (54,162) 31,658

Administrative expenses (10,318) (13,181)

Operating (deficit)/surplus (64,480) 18,477

Other interest receivable and similar income 1,565 768

1,565 768

(Deficit)/surplus before tax (62,915) 19,245

(Deficit)/surplus for the financial year (62,915) 19,245

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The company has no recognised gains or losses for the year other than the results above.

The notes on pages 8 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 4

Agenda page 160



Ottery Help Scheme

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

2018
£

2017
£

(Deficit)/surplus for the year (62,915) 19,245

Total comprehensive income for the year (62,915) 19,245

The notes on pages 8 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 5

Agenda page 161



Ottery Help Scheme

(Registration number: 08354771)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

Note
2018

£
2017

£

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 3 1,387 1,734

Current assets

Cash at bank and in hand 135,887 128,555

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 4 (89,897) (19,997)

Net current assets 45,990 108,558

Net assets 47,377 110,292

Capital and reserves

Profit and loss account 47,377 110,292

Total equity 47,377 110,292

For the financial year ending 31 March 2018 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section
477 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

Directors' responsibilities:

• The members have not required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in
accordance with section 476; and

• The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect
to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to companies
subject to the small companies regime within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements have been delivered in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies
subject to the small companies regime and the option not to file the Profit and Loss Account has been taken.

Approved and authorised by the Board on 22 October 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

The notes on pages 8 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 6

Agenda page 162



Ottery Help Scheme

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Profit and loss
account

£
Total

£

At 1 April 2017 110,292 110,292

Deficit for the year (62,915) (62,915)

Total comprehensive income (62,915) (62,915)

At 31 March 2018 47,377 47,377

The notes on pages 8 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 7

A
genda page 163



Ottery Help Scheme

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

1 General information

The company is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales, and consequently does
not have share capital. Each of the members is liable to contribute an amount not exceeding £1 towards the
assets of the company in the event of liquidation.

The address of its registered office is:
The Station
Mill Street
Ottery St Mary
Devon
EX11 1AH

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 22 October 2018.

2 Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 Section 1A
- 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' and the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention except that as disclosed in
the accounting policies certain items are shown at fair value.

Revenue recognition

Turnover comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and provision
of services in the ordinary course of the company’s activities. Turnover is shown net of sales/value added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts.

The company recognises revenue when:
The amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and specific criteria have been met for each of the company's activities.

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of tangible assets includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and
installation.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate

Office equipment 20% reducing balance basis

Page 8

Agenda page 164



Ottery Help Scheme

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Trade creditors
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if the company does not have an
unconditional right, at the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement of the creditor for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. If there is an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting date, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Leases
Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Defined contribution pension obligation
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a pension fund and
the company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as a prepayment.

Page 9

Agenda page 165



Ottery Help Scheme

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

3 Tangible assets

Furniture,
fittings and
equipment

£
Total

£

Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2017 1,734 1,734

At 31 March 2018 1,734 1,734

Depreciation

Charge for the year 347 347

At 31 March 2018 347 347

Carrying amount

At 31 March 2018 1,387 1,387

At 31 March 2017 1,734 1,734

4 Creditors

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2018
£

2017
£

Due within one year

Other creditors 89,897 19,997

Page 10

Agenda page 166



! Articles of Association of

! OTTERY HELP SCHEME

! COLERIDGE MEDICAL CENTRE, CANAAN WAY 

! OTTERY ST MARY, DEVON EX11 1EQ

1. The company’s name is

 OTTERY HELP SCHEME

! (and in this document it is called the ‘charity’).

!

! Interpretation

2. In the articles:

• ‘address’ means a postal address or, for the purposes of electronic 
communication, a fax number, an e-mail or postal address or a 
telephone number for receiving text messages in each case 
registered with the charity;

• ‘the articles’ means the charity’s articles of association;

• ‘the charity’ means the company intended to be regulated by the 
articles;

• ‘clear days’ in relation to the period of a notice means a period 
excluding:

• the day when the notice is given or deemed to be given; and

• the day for which it is given or on which it is to take effect;

• ‘the Commission’ means the Charity Commission for England and 
Wales;

• ‘Companies Acts’ means the Companies Acts (as defined in section 
2 of the Companies Act 2006) insofar as they apply to the charity;

COMPANY NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL 
Articles of Association for a Charitable Company

March 2012! Page1 of 24Agenda page 167



‘the directors’ means the directors of the charity. The directors are 
charity trustees as defined by section 177 of the Charities Act 2011;

‘document’ includes, unless otherwise specified, any document sent or 
supplied in electronic form;

‘electronic form’ has the meaning given in section 1168 of the 
Companies Act 2006;

‘the memorandum’ means the charity’s memorandum of association;

‘officers’ includes the directors and the secretary (if any);

‘the seal’ means the common seal of the charity if it has one;

‘secretary’ means any person appointed to perform the duties of the 
secretary of the charity;

‘the United Kingdom’ means Great Britain and Northern Ireland; and

words importing one gender shall include all genders, and the singular 
includes the plural and vice versa.

Unless the context otherwise requires words or expressions contained 
in the articles have the same meaning as in the Companies Acts but 
excluding any statutory modification not in force when this constitution 
becomes binding on the charity.

Apart from the exception mentioned in the previous paragraph a 
reference to an Act of Parliament includes any statutory modification or 
re-enactment of it for the time being in force.

Liability of members

3. The liability of the members is limited to a sum not exceeding £10, 
being the amount that each member undertakes to contribute to 
the assets of the charity in the event of its being wound up while 
he, she or it is a member or within one year after he, she or it 
ceases to be a member, for:

(1) payment of the charity’s debts and liabilities incurred before 
he, she or it ceases to be a member;

(2) payment of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up 
and 

(3) adjustment of the rights of the contributories among 
themselves.

Page 2 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 168



Objects

4. The charity’s objects (‘Objects’) are specifically restricted to the 
following:

• TO RELIEVE SICKNESS AND TO PRESERVE THE HEALTH OF 

THE PATIENTS IN OTTERY ST MARY, DEVON AND 

SURROUNDING AREA BY PROVIDING OR ASSISTING WITH 

THE PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

NOT NORMALLY PROVIDED BY THE STATUTORY 

AUTHORITIES.

•

• [Nothing in the articles shall authorise an application of the 
property of the charity for purposes which are not charitable in 
accordance with section 7 of the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and/or section 2 of the Charities Act 
(Northern Ireland) 2008.]

Powers

5. The charity has power to do anything which is calculated to 
further its Object(s) or is conducive or incidental to doing so. In 
particular, the charity has power:

(1) to raise funds. In doing so, the charity must not undertake 
any taxable permanent trading activity and must comply 
with any relevant statutory regulations;

(2) to buy, take on lease or in exchange, hire or otherwise 
acquire any property and to maintain and equip it for use;

(3) to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the 
property belonging to the charity. In exercising this power, 
the charity must comply as appropriate with sections 117 
and 122 of the Charities Act 2011.

(4) to borrow money and to charge the whole or any part of 
the property belonging to the charity as security for 
repayment of the money borrowed or as security for a 
grant or the discharge of an obligation. The charity must 
comply as appropriate with sections 124 - 126 of the 
Charities Act 2011 if it wishes to mortgage land;

March 2012 Page 3 of 24Agenda page 169



(5) to co-operate with other charities, voluntary bodies and 
statutory authorities and to exchange information and 
advice with them;

(6) to establish or support any charitable trusts, associations 
or institutions formed for any of the charitable purposes 
included in the Objects;

(7) to acquire, merge with or to enter into any partnership or 
joint venture arrangement with any other charity;

(8) to set aside income as a reserve against future 
expenditure but only in accordance with a written policy 
about reserves;

(9) to employ and remunerate such staff as are necessary for 
carrying out the work of the charity. The charity may 
employ or remunerate a director only to the extent it is 
permitted to do so by article 7 and provided it complies 
with the conditions in that article;

(10) to:
(a) deposit or invest funds;
(b) employ a professional fund-manager; and
(c) arrange for the investments or other property of the 

charity to be held in the name of a nominee;
• in the same manner and subject to the same conditions as 

the trustees of a trust are permitted to do by the Trustee Act 
2000;

(11) to provide indemnity insurance for the directors in 
accordance with, and subject to the conditions in, section 
189 of the Charities Act 2011;

(12) to pay out of the funds of the charity the costs of forming 
and registering the charity both as a company and as a 
charity.

Application of income and property
6. (1) The income and property of the charity shall be applied 

solely towards the promotion of the Objects.
(2) (a) A director is entitled to be reimbursed from the 

property of the charity or may pay out of such property 
reasonable expenses properly incurred by him or her 
when acting on behalf of the charity.

(b) A director may benefit from trustee indemnity 
insurance cover purchased at the charity’s expense in 
accordance with, and subject to the conditions in, 
section 189 of the Charities Act 2011.

(c) A director may receive an indemnity from the charity in 
the circumstances specified in article 57.

Page 4 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 170



(d) A director may not receive any other benefit or 
payment unless it is authorised by article 7.

(3) Subject to article 7, none of the income or property of the 
charity may be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by 
way of dividend bonus or otherwise by way of profit to any 
member of the charity. This does not prevent a member 
who is not also a director receiving:

(a) a benefit from the charity in the capacity of a 
beneficiary of the charity;

(b) reasonable and proper remuneration for any goods or 
services supplied to the charity.

Benefits and payments to charity directors and connected persons
7. (1) General provisions

No director or connected person may:
(a) buy any goods or services from the charity on terms 

preferential to those applicable to members of the 
public;

(b) sell goods, services, or any interest in land to the 
charity;

(c) be employed by, or receive any remuneration from, the 
charity;

(d) receive any other financial benefit from the charity;
unless the payment is permitted by sub-clause (2) of this 
article, or authorised by the court or the Charity 
Commission.

• In this article a ‘financial benefit’ means a benefit, direct or 
indirect, which is either money or has a monetary value.

Scope and powers permitting directors’ or connected persons’ 
benefits

(2) (a) A director or connected person may receive a benefit 
from the charity in the capacity of a beneficiary of the 
charity provided that a majority of the directors do not 
benefit in this way.

(b) A director or connected person may enter into a 
contract for the supply of services, or of goods that 
are supplied in connection with the provision of 
services, to the charity where that is permitted in 
accordance with, and subject to the conditions in, 
sections 185 and 186 of the Charities Act 2011.

(c) Subject to sub-clause (3) of this article a director or 
connected person may provide the charity with goods 
that are not supplied in connection with services 
provided to the charity by the director or connected 
person.

March 2012 Page 5 of 24Agenda page 171



(d) A director or connected person may receive interest 
on money lent to the charity at a reasonable and 
proper rate which must be not more than the Bank of 
England bank rate (also known as the base rate).

(e) A director or connected person may receive rent for 
premises let by the director or connected person to 
the charity. The amount of the rent and the other terms 
of the lease must be reasonable and proper. The 
director concerned must withdraw from any meeting at 
which such a proposal or the rent or other terms of the 
lease are under discussion.

(f) A director or connected person may take part in the 
normal trading and fundraising activities of the charity 
on the same terms as members of the public.

Payment for supply of goods only – controls

(3) The charity and its directors may only rely upon the 
authority provided by sub-clause (2)(c) of this article if 
each of the following conditions is satisfied:

(a) The amount or maximum amount of the payment for 
the goods is set out in an agreement in writing 
between the charity or its directors (as the case may 
be) and the director or connected person supplying 
the goods (‘the supplier’) under which the supplier is 
to supply the goods in question to or on behalf of the 
charity.

(b) The amount or maximum amount of the payment for 
the goods does not exceed what is reasonable in the 
circumstances for the supply of the goods in question.

(c) The other directors are satisfied that it is in the best 
interests of the charity to contract with the supplier 
rather than with someone who is not a director or 
connected person. In reaching that decision the 
directors must balance the advantage of contracting 
with a director or connected person against the 
disadvantages of doing so.

(d) The supplier is absent from the part of any meeting at 
which there is discussion of the proposal to enter into 
a contract or arrangement with him or her or it with 
regard to the supply of goods to the charity.

(e) The supplier does not vote on any such matter and is 
not to be counted when calculating whether a quorum 
of directors is present at the meeting.

(f) The reason for their decision is recorded by the 
directors in the minute book.

(g) A majority of the directors then in office are not in 
receipt of remuneration or payments authorised by 
article 7.

Page 6 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 172



(4) In sub-clauses (2) and (3) of this article:
(a) ‘charity’ includes any company in which the charity:

(i) holds more than 50% of the shares; or
(ii) controls more than 50% of the voting rights 

attached to the shares; or
(iii) has the right to appoint one or more directors to 

the board of the company.
(b) ‘connected person’ includes any person within the 

definition in article 61 ‘Interpretation’.
Declaration of directors’ interests
8. A director must declare the nature and extent of any interest, 

direct or indirect, which he or she has in a proposed transaction 
or arrangement with the charity or in any transaction or 
arrangement entered into by the charity which has not previously 
been declared. A director must absent himself or herself from any 
discussions of the charity directors in which it is possible that a 
conflict will arise between his or her duty to act solely in the 
interests of the charity and any personal interest (including but not 
limited to any personal financial interest).

Conflicts of interests and conflicts of loyalties
9. (1) If a conflict of interests arises for a director because of a 

duty of loyalty owed to another organisation or person and 
the conflict is not authorised by virtue of any other provision 
in the articles, the unconflicted directors may authorise such 
a conflict of interests where the following conditions apply:
(a) the conflicted director is absent from the part of the 

meeting at which there is discussion of any 
arrangement or transaction affecting that other 
organisation or person;

(b) the conflicted director does not vote on any such 
matter and is not to be counted when considering 
whether a quorum of directors is present at the 
meeting; and

(c) the unconflicted directors consider it is in the interests 
of the charity to authorise the conflict of interests in the 
circumstances applying.

(2) In this article a conflict of interests arising because of a 
duty of loyalty owed to another organisation or person only 
refers to such a conflict which does not involve a direct or 
indirect benefit of any nature to a director or to a 
connected person.

March 2012 Page 7 of 24Agenda page 173



Members

10.  (1) The subscribers to the memorandum are the first members 
of the charity.

(2) Membership is open to other individuals or organisations 
who:

(a) apply to the charity in the form required by the 
directors; and

(b) are approved by the directors.

(3)   (a) The directors may only refuse an application for 
membership if, acting reasonably and properly, they 
consider it to be in the best interests of the charity to 
refuse the application.

(b) The directors must inform the applicant in writing of 
the reasons for the refusal within twenty-one days of 
the decision.

(c) The directors must consider any written 
representations the applicant may make about the 
decision. The directors’ decision following any written 
representations must be notified to the applicant in 
writing but shall be final.

(4) Membership is not transferable.
(5) The directors must keep a register of names and 

addresses of the members.
Classes of membership

11. (1) The directors may establish classes of membership with 
different rights and obligations and shall record the rights 
and obligations in the register of members.

(2) The directors may not directly or indirectly alter the rights 
or obligations attached to a class of membership.

(3) The rights attached to a class of membership may only be 
varied if:

(a) three-quarters of the members of that class consent in 
writing to the variation; or

(b) a special resolution is passed at a separate general 
meeting of the members of that class agreeing to the 
variation.

(4) The provisions in the articles about general meetings shall 
apply to any meeting relating to the variation of the rights 
of any class of members.

Page 8 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 174



Termination of membership

12. Membership is terminated if:
(1) the member dies or, if it is an organisation, ceases to exist;

(2) the member resigns by written notice to the charity unless, 
after the resignation, there would be less than two members;

(3) any sum due from the member to the charity is not paid in 
full within six months of it falling due;

(4) the member is removed from membership by a resolution of 
the directors that it is in the best interests of the charity that 
his or her or its membership is terminated. A resolution to 
remove a member from membership may only be passed if:
(a) the member has been given at least twenty-one days’ 

notice in writing of the meeting of the directors at 
which the resolution will be proposed and the reasons 
why it is to be proposed;

(b) the member or, at the option of the member, the 
member’s representative (who need not be a member 
of the charity) has been allowed to make 
representations to the meeting.

General meetings

13. (1) The charity must hold its first annual general meeting within 
eighteen months after the date of its incorporation.

(2) An annual general meeting must be held in each 
subsequent year and not more than fifteen months may 
elapse between successive annual general meetings.

14. The directors may call a general meeting at any time.
Notice of general meetings

15.   (1) The minimum periods of notice required to hold a general 
meeting of the charity are:
(a) twenty-one clear days for an annual general meeting 

or a general meeting called for the passing of a 
special resolution;

(b) fourteen clear days for all other general meetings.
(2) A general meeting may be called by shorter notice if it is so 

agreed by a majority in number of members having a right 
to attend and vote at the meeting, being a majority who 
together hold not less than 90 percent of the total voting 
rights.

March 2012 Page 9 of 24Agenda page 175



(3) The notice must specify the date time and place of the 
meeting and the general nature of the business to be 
transacted. If the meeting is to be an annual general 
meeting, the notice must say so. The notice must also 
contain a statement setting out the right of members to 
appoint a proxy under section 324 of the Companies Act 
2006 and article 22.

(4) The notice must be given to all the members and to the 
directors and auditors.

16. The proceedings at a meeting shall not be invalidated because a 
person who was entitled to receive notice of the meeting did not 
receive it because of an accidental omission by the charity.

Proceedings at general meetings

17.   (1) No business shall be transacted at any general meeting 
unless a quorum is present.

(2) A quorum is:
(a) [2] members present in person or by proxy and 

entitled to vote upon the business to be conducted at 
the meeting; or

(b) one tenth of the total membership at the time
• whichever is the greater.

(2) The authorised representative of a member organisation 
shall be counted in the quorum.

18.  (1) If:
(a) a quorum is not present within half an hour from the 

time appointed for the meeting; or
(b) during a meeting a quorum ceases to be present;

• the meeting shall be adjourned to such time and place as 
the directors shall determine.

(2) The directors must reconvene the meeting and must give at 
least seven clear days’ notice of the reconvened meeting 
stating the date, time and place of the meeting.

(3) If no quorum is present at the reconvened meeting within 
fifteen minutes of the time specified for the start of the 
meeting the members present in person or by proxy at that 
time shall constitute the quorum for that meeting.

19.  (1) General meetings shall be chaired by the person who has 
been appointed to chair meetings of the directors.

(2) If there is no such person or he or she is not present within 
fifteen minutes of the time appointed for the meeting a 
director nominated by the directors shall chair the meeting.

Page 10 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 176



(3) If there is only one director present and willing to act, he or 
she shall chair the meeting.

(4) If no director is present and willing to chair the meeting 
within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding it, 
the members present in person or by proxy and entitled to 
vote must choose one of their number to chair the meeting.

(20)  (1) The members present in person or by proxy at a meeting 
may resolve by ordinary resolution that the meeting shall be 
adjourned.

(2) The person who is chairing the meeting must decide the 
date, time and place at which the meeting is to be 
reconvened unless those details are specified in the 
resolution.

(3) No business shall be conducted at a reconvened meeting 
unless it could properly have been conducted at the 
meeting had the adjournment not taken place.

(4) If a meeting is adjourned by a resolution of the members for 
more than seven days, at least seven clear days’ notice 
shall be given of the reconvened meeting stating the date, 
time and place of the meeting.

21.  (1) Any vote at a meeting shall be decided by a show of hands 
unless before, or on the declaration of the result of, the show 
of hands a poll is demanded:

(a) by the person chairing the meeting; or

(b) by at least two members present in person or by proxy 
and having the right to vote at the meeting; or

(c) by a member or members present in person or by 
proxy representing not less than one-tenth of the total 
voting rights of all the members having the right to 
vote at the meeting.

(2)  (a) The declaration by the person who is chairing the 
meeting of the result of a vote shall be conclusive 
unless a poll is demanded.

(b) The result of the vote must be recorded in the minutes 
of the charity but the number or proportion of votes 
cast need not be recorded.

(3)  (a) A demand for a poll may be withdrawn, before the poll 
is taken, but only with the consent of the person who is 
chairing the meeting.

(b) If the demand for a poll is withdrawn the demand shall 
not invalidate the result of a show of hands declared 
before the demand was made.

March 2012 Page 11 of 24Agenda page 177



(4) (a) A poll must be taken as the person who is chairing the 
meeting directs, who may appoint scrutineers (who 
need not be members) and who may fix a time and 
place for declaring the results of the poll.

(b) The result of the poll shall be deemed to be the 
resolution of the meeting at which the poll is 
demanded.

(5) (a) A poll demanded on the election of a person to chair a 
meeting or on a question of adjournment must be 
taken immediately.

(b) A poll demanded on any other question must be taken 
either immediately or at such time and place as the 
person who is chairing the meeting directs.

(c) The poll must be taken within thirty days after it has 
been demanded.

(d) If the poll is not taken immediately at least seven clear 
days’ notice shall be given specifying the time and 
place at which the poll is to be taken.

(e) If a poll is demanded the meeting may continue to 
deal with any other business that may be conducted 
at the meeting.

Content of proxy notices
22. (1) Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing 

(a ‘proxy notice’) which -
(a) states the name and address of the member 

appointing the proxy;
(b) identifies the person appointed to be that member’s 

proxy and the general meeting in relation to which that 
person is appointed;

(c) is signed by or on behalf of the member appointing 
the proxy, or is authenticated in such manner as the 
directors may determine; and

(d) is delivered to the charity in accordance with the 
articles and any instructions contained in the notice of 
the general meeting to which they relate.

(2) The charity may require proxy notices to be delivered in a 
particular form, and may specify different forms for different 
purposes.

(3) Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appointed under 
them is to vote (or that the proxy is to abstain from voting) on 
one or more resolutions.

Page 12 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 178



(4) Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, it must be treated 
as -
(a) allowing the person appointed under it as a proxy 

discretion as to how to vote on any ancillary or 
procedural resolutions put to the meeting; and

(b) appointing that person as a proxy in relation to any 
adjournment of the general meeting to which it relates 
as well as the meeting itself.

Delivery of proxy notices 
22.A (1) A person who is entitled to attend, speak or vote (either on a 

show of hands or on a poll) at a general meeting remains so 
entitled in respect of that meeting or any adjournment of it, 
even though a valid proxy notice has been delivered to the 
charity by or on behalf of that person.

(2) An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by 
delivering to the charity a notice in writing given by or on 
behalf of the person by whom or on whose behalf the proxy 
notice was given.

(3) A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect if it 
is delivered before the start of the meeting or adjourned 
meeting to which it relates.

(4) If a proxy notice is not executed by the person appointing 
the proxy, it must be accompanied by written evidence of 
the authority of the person who executed it to execute it on 
the appointor’s behalf.

Written resolutions
23. (1) A resolution in writing agreed by a simple majority (or in the 

case of a special resolution by a majority of not less than 
75%) of the members who would have been entitled to vote 
upon it had it been proposed at a general meeting shall be 
effective provided that:
(a) a copy of the proposed resolution has been sent to 

every eligible member;
(b) a simple majority (or in the case of a special resolution 

a majority of not less than 75%) of members has 
signified its agreement to the resolution; and

(c) it is contained in an authenticated document which 
has been received at the registered office within the 
period of 28 days beginning with the circulation date.

(2) A resolution in writing may comprise several copies to which 
one or more members have signified their agreement.

(3) In the case of a member that is an organisation, its 
authorised representative may signify its agreement.

March 2012 Page 13 of 24Agenda page 179



Votes of members
24. Subject to article 11, every member, whether an individual or an 

organisation, shall have one vote.
25. Any objection to the qualification of any voter must be raised at 

the meeting at which the vote is tendered and the decision of the 
person who is chairing the meeting shall be final.

26.   (1) Any organisation that is a member of the charity may 
nominate any person to act as its representative at any 
meeting of the charity.

(2) The organisation must give written notice to the charity of 
the name of its representative. The representative shall not 
be entitled to represent the organisation at any meeting 
unless the notice has been received by the charity. The 
representative may continue to represent the organisation 
until written notice to the contrary is received by the charity.

(3) Any notice given to the charity will be conclusive evidence 
that the representative is entitled to represent the 
organisation or that his or her authority has been revoked. 
The charity shall not be required to consider whether the 
representative has been properly appointed by the 
organisation.

Directors
27. (1) A director must be a natural person aged 16 years or 

older.
(2) No one may be appointed a director if he or she would be 

disqualified from acting under the provisions of article 39.
28. The minimum number of directors shall be [3] but (unless 

otherwise determined by ordinary resolution) shall not be subject 
to any maximum.

29. The first directors shall be those persons notified to Companies 
House as the first directors of the charity.

30. A director may not appoint an alternate director or anyone to act 
on his or her behalf at meetings of the directors.

Powers of directors
31. (1) The directors shall manage the business of the charity and 

may exercise all the powers of the charity unless they are 
subject to any restrictions imposed by the Companies 
Acts, the articles or any special resolution.

(2) No alteration of the articles or any special resolution shall 
have retrospective effect to invalidate any prior act of the 
directors.

(3) Any meeting of directors at which a quorum is present at 
the time the relevant decision is made may exercise all the 
powers exercisable by the directors.

Page 14 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 180



Retirement of directors
32. At the first annual general meeting all the directors must retire 

from office unless by the close of the meeting the members have 
failed to elect sufficient directors to hold a quorate meeting of the 
directors. At each subsequent annual general meeting one-third 
of the directors or, if their number is not three or a multiple of 
three, the number nearest to one-third, must retire from office. If 
there is only one director he or she must retire.

33.  (1) The directors to retire by rotation shall be those who have 
been longest in office since their last appointment. If any 
directors became or were appointed directors on the same 
day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among 
themselves) be determined by lot.

(2) If a director is required to retire at an annual general 
meeting by a provision of the articles the retirement shall 
take effect upon the conclusion of the meeting.

Appointment of directors
34.  The charity may by ordinary resolution:

(1) appoint a person who is willing to act to be a director; and
(2) determine the rotation in which any additional directors are 

to retire.
35. No person other than a director retiring by rotation may be 

appointed a director at any general meeting unless:
(1) he or she is recommended for re-election by the directors; 

or
(2) not less than fourteen nor more than thirty-five clear days 

before the date of the meeting, the charity is given a notice 
that:
(a) is signed by a member entitled to vote at the meeting;
(b) states the member’s intention to propose the 

appointment of a person as a director;
(c) contains the details that, if the person were to be 

appointed, the charity would have to file at Companies 
House; and

(d) is signed by the person who is to be proposed to 
show his or her willingness to be appointed.

36. All members who are entitled to receive notice of a general 
meeting must be given not less than seven nor more than twenty-
eight clear days’ notice of any resolution to be put to the meeting 
to appoint a director other than a director who is to retire by 
rotation.

March 2012 Page 15 of 24Agenda page 181



37.  (1) The directors may appoint a person who is willing to act to 
be a director.

(2) A director appointed by a resolution of the other directors 
must retire at the next annual general meeting and must not 
be taken into account in determining the directors who are 
to retire by rotation.

38. The appointment of a director, whether by the charity in general 
meeting or by the other directors, must not cause the number of 
directors to exceed any number fixed as the maximum number of 
directors.

Disqualification and removal of directors
39. A director shall cease to hold office if he or she:

(1) ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision in the 
Companies Acts or is prohibited by law from being a 
director;

(2) is disqualified from acting as a trustee by virtue of sections 
178 and 179 of the Charities Act 2011 (or any statutory re- 
enactment or modification of those provisions);

(3) ceases to be a member of the charity;
(4) becomes incapable by reason of mental disorder, illness or 

injury of managing and administering his or her own affairs;
(5) resigns as a director by notice to the charity (but only if at 

least two directors will remain in office when the notice of 
resignation is to take effect); or

(6) is absent without the permission of the directors from all 
their meetings held within a period of six consecutive 
months and the directors resolve that his or her office be 
vacated.

Remuneration of directors
40. The directors must not be paid any remuneration unless it is 

authorised by article 7.
Proceedings of directors
41.  (1) The directors may regulate their proceedings as they think 

fit, subject to the provisions of the articles.
(2) Any director may call a meeting of the directors.
(3) The secretary (if any) must call a meeting of the directors if 

requested to do so by a director.
(4) Questions arising at a meeting shall be decided by a 

majority of votes.

Page 16 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 182



(5) In the case of an equality of votes, the person who is chairing the 
meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

(6) A meeting may be held by suitable electronic means agreed by 
the directors in which each participant may communicate with all 
the other participants.

42.  (1) No decision may be made by a meeting of the directors unless a 
quorum is present at the time the decision is purported to be 
made. [‘Present’ includes being present by suitable electronic 
means agreed by the directors in which a participant or 
participants may communicate with all the other participants.]

(2) The quorum shall be two or the number nearest to one-third of the 
total number of directors, whichever is the greater, or such larger 
number as may be decided from time to time by the directors.

(3) A director shall not be counted in the quorum present when any 
decision is made about a matter upon which that director is not 
entitled to vote.

43. If the number of directors is less than the number fixed as the quorum, 
the continuing directors or director may act only for the purpose of filling 
vacancies or of calling a general meeting.

44.  (1) The directors shall appoint a director to chair their meetings and 
may at any time revoke such appointment.

(2) If no-one has been appointed to chair meetings of the directors or 
if the person appointed is unwilling to preside or is not present 
within ten minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, the 
directors present may appoint one of their number to chair that 
meeting.

(3) The person appointed to chair meetings of the directors shall have 
no functions or powers except those conferred by the articles or 
delegated to him or her by the directors.

45.  (1) A resolution in writing or in electronic form agreed by all of the 
directors entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the directors 
and to vote upon the resolution shall be as valid and effectual as if 
it had been passed at a meeting of the directors duly convened 
and held.

(2) The resolution in writing may comprise several documents 
containing the text of the resolution in like form to each of which 
one or more directors has signified their agreement.

March 2012 Page 17 of 24Agenda page 183



Delegation

46.  (1) The directors may delegate any of their powers or functions 
to a committee of two or more directors but the terms of any 
delegation must be recorded in the minute book.

(2) The directors may impose conditions when delegating, 
including the conditions that:
(a) the relevant powers are to be exercised exclusively by 

the committee to whom they delegate;
(b) no expenditure may be incurred on behalf of the 

charity except in accordance with a budget previously 
agreed with the directors.

(3) The directors may revoke or alter a delegation.
(4) All acts and proceedings of any committees must be fully 

and promptly reported to the directors.

Validity of directors’ decisions

47.  (1) Subject to article 47(2), all acts done by a meeting of 
directors, or of a committee of directors, shall be valid 
notwithstanding the participation in any vote of a director:
(a) who was disqualified from holding office;
(b) who had previously retired or who had been obliged 

by the constitution to vacate office;
(c) who was not entitled to vote on the matter, whether by 

reason of a conflict of interests or otherwise;

  if without:

(d) the vote of that director; and
(e) that director being counted in the quorum;
•the decision has been made by a majority of the directors 
at a quorate meeting.

(2) Article 47(1) does not permit a director or a connected person to 
keep any benefit that may be conferred upon him or her by a 
resolution of the directors or of a committee of directors if, but for 
article 47(1), the resolution would have been void, or if the 
director has not complied with article 8.

Page 18 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 184



Seal
48. If the charity has a seal it must only be used by the authority of the 

directors or of a committee of directors authorised by the 
directors. The directors may determine who shall sign any 
instrument to which the seal is affixed and unless otherwise so 
determined it shall be signed by a director and by the secretary (if 
any) or by a second director.

Minutes

49. The directors must keep minutes of all:
(1) appointments of officers made by the directors;
(2) proceedings at meetings of the charity;
(3) meetings of the directors and committees of directors 

including:
(a) the names of the directors present at the meeting;
(b) the decisions made at the meetings; and
(c) where appropriate the reasons for the decisions.

Accounts

50.  (1) The directors must prepare for each financial year accounts 
as required by the Companies Acts. The accounts must be 
prepared to show a true and fair view and follow accounting 
standards issued or adopted by the Accounting Standards 
Board or its successors and adhere to the 
recommendations of applicable Statements of 
Recommended Practice.

(2) The directors must keep accounting records as required by 
the Companies Act.

Annual Report and Return and Register of Charities

51.  (1) The directors must comply with the requirements of the 
Charities Act 2011 with regard to the:
(a) transmission of a copy of the statements of account to 

the Commission;
(b) preparation of an Annual Report and the transmission 

of a copy of it to the Commission;
(c) preparation of an Annual Return and its transmission 

to the Commission.
(2) The directors must notify the Commission promptly of any 

changes to the charity’s entry on the Central Register of 
Charities.

March 2012 Page 19 of 24Agenda page 185



Means of communication to be used

52. (1) Subject to the articles, anything sent or supplied by or to the 
charity under the articles may be sent or supplied in any 
way in which the Companies Act 2006 provides for 
documents or information which are authorised or required 
by any provision of that Act to be sent or supplied by or to 
the charity.

(2) Subject to the articles, any notice or document to be sent or 
supplied to a director in connection with the taking of 
decisions by directors may also be sent or supplied by the 
means by which that director has asked to be sent or 
supplied with such notices or documents for the time being.

53. Any notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to the 
articles:
(1) must be in writing; or
(2) must be given in electronic form.

54.  (1) The charity may give any notice to a member either:
(a) personally; or
(b) by sending it by post in a prepaid envelope 

addressed to the member at his or her address; or
(c) by leaving it at the address of the member; or
(d) by giving it in electronic form to the member’s 

address.
(e) by placing the notice on a website and providing the 

person with a notification in writing or in electronic 
form of the presence of the notice on the website. The 
notification must state that it concerns a notice of a 
company meeting and must specify the place date 
and time of the meeting.

(2) A member who does not register an address with the charity 
or who registers only a postal address that is not within the 
United Kingdom shall not be entitled to receive any notice 
from the charity.

55. A member present in person at any meeting of the charity shall be 
deemed to have received notice of the meeting and of the 
purposes for which it was called.

56.  (1) Proof that an envelope containing a notice was properly 
addressed, prepaid and posted shall be conclusive 
evidence that the notice was given.

(2) Proof that an electronic form of notice was given shall be 
conclusive where the company can demonstrate that it was 
properly addressed and sent, in accordance with section 
1147 of the Companies Act 2006.

Page 20 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 186



(3) In accordance with section 1147 of the Companies Act 2006 
notice shall be deemed to be given:
(a) 48 hours after the envelope containing it was posted; 

or
(b) in the case of an electronic form of communication, 48 

hours after it was sent.
Indemnity
57.  (1) The charity may indemnify a relevant director against any 

liability incurred in that capacity, to the extent permitted by 
sections 232 to 234 of the Companies Act 2006.

(2)In this article a ‘relevant director’ means any director or former 
director of the charity.

57.A  • The charity may indemnify an auditor against any liability 
incurred by him or her or it
(1) in defending proceedings (whether civil or criminal) in 

which judgment is given in his or her or its favour or he 
or she or it is acquitted; or

(2) in connection with an application under section 1157 of 
the Companies Act 2006 (power of Court to grant relief 
in case of honest and reasonable conduct) in which 
relief is granted to him or her or it by the Court.

March 2012 Page 21 of 24Agenda page 187



Rules
58. (1) The directors may from time to time make such reasonable 

and proper rules or bye laws as they may deem necessary 
or expedient for the proper conduct and management of 
the charity.

(2) The bye laws may regulate the following matters but are 
not restricted to them:
(a) the admission of members of the charity (including 

the admission of organisations to membership) and 
the rights and privileges of such members, and the 
entrance fees, subscriptions and other fees or 
payments to be made by members;

(b) the conduct of members of the charity in relation to 
one another, and to the charity’s employees and 
volunteers;

(c) the setting aside of the whole or any part or parts of 
the charity’s premises at any particular time or times 
or for any particular purpose or purposes;

(d) the procedure at general meetings and meetings of 
the directors in so far as such procedure is not 
regulated by the Companies Acts or by the articles;

(e) generally, all such matters as are commonly the 
subject matter of company rules.

(3) The charity in general meeting has the power to alter, add 
to or repeal the rules or bye laws.

(4) The directors must adopt such means as they think 
sufficient to bring the rules and bye laws to the notice of 
members of the charity.

(5) The rules or bye laws shall be binding on all members of 
the charity. No rule or bye law shall be inconsistent with, or 
shall affect or repeal anything contained in, the articles.

Disputes

59. If a dispute arises between members of the charity about the 
validity or propriety of anything done by the members of the 
charity under these articles, and the dispute cannot be resolved 
by agreement, the parties to the dispute must first try in good faith 
to settle the dispute by mediation before resorting to litigation.

Page 22 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 188



Dissolution
60.  (1) The members of the charity may at any time before, and in 

expectation of, its dissolution resolve that any net assets of 
the charity after all its debts and liabilities have been paid, 
or provision has been made for them, shall on or before the 
dissolution of the charity be applied or transferred in any of 
the following ways:
(a) directly for the Objects; or
(b) by transfer to any charity or charities for purposes 

similar to the Objects; or
(c) to any charity or charities for use for particular 

purposes that fall within the Objects.
(2) Subject to any such resolution of the members of the charity, 

the directors of the charity may at any time before and in 
expectation of its dissolution resolve that any net assets of 
the charity after all its debts and liabilities have been paid, 
or provision made for them, shall on or before dissolution of 
the charity be applied or transferred:
(a) directly for the Objects; or
(b) by transfer to any charity or charities for purposes 

similar to the Objects; or
(c) to any charity or charities for use for particular 

purposes that fall within the Objects.
(3) In no circumstances shall the net assets of the charity be 

paid to or distributed among the members of the charity 
(except to a member that is itself a charity) and if no 
resolution in accordance with article 60(1) is passed by the 
members or the directors the net assets of the charity shall 
be applied for charitable purposes as directed by the Court 
or the Commission.

Interpretation
61. In article 7, sub-clause (2) of article 9 and sub-clause (2) of article 

47 ‘connected person’ means:
(1) a child, parent, grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister of 

the director;
(2) the spouse or civil partner of the director or of any person 

falling within sub-clause (1) above;
(3) a person carrying on business in partnership with the 

director or with any person falling within sub-clause (1) or 
(2) above;

March 2012 Page 23 of 24Agenda page 189



(4) an institution which is controlled –
(a) by the director or any connected person falling within 

sub-clause (1), (2), or (3) above; or
(b) by two or more persons falling within sub-clause 4(a), 

when taken together
(5) a body corporate in which –

(a) the director or any connected person falling within 
sub-clauses (1) to (3) has a substantial interest; or

(b) two or more persons falling within sub-clause (5)(a) 
who, when taken together, have a substantial interest.

(c) Sections 350 – 352 of the Charities Act 2011 apply for 
the purposes of interpreting the terms used in this 
article.

Page 24 of 24 March 2012 Agenda page 190



Ottery Help Scheme
Safeguarding Adults

Safeguarding Adults Policy

Ottery Help Scheme is committed to ensuring that adults who use our services are
not abused and that working practices minimise the risk of such abuse.

1. Definition

Adults at risk are people who are over 18 years of age and who are receiving
or may need help and support services to live in the community. Such adults
may be unable to take care of themselves and unable to protect themselves
from harm or exploitation by other people.

2. Types of Abuse

Types of abuse can include the following:

Physical abuse
Examples include: Slapping, pushing, kicking, rough handling, twisting of
limbs/ extremities, misuse of medication, or inappropriate sanctions or
restraint.

Sexual abuse
Examples include: Rape and sexual assault or sexual acts to which the
vulnerable adult has not consented, could not consent or was pressured into
consenting. Non-contact abuse such as voyeurism, involvement in
pornography.

Psychological / Emotional abuse
Examples include: verbal assault or intimidation, emotional abuse, deprivation
of contact verbal abuse, threats of harm or abandonment, humiliation or
blaming, overriding of consent, choices or wishes, feeling worthless,
frightened or unloved.
NB: Psychological/emotional abuse will usually occur in conjunction with other
forms of abuse.

Agenda page 191



Financial Abuse

Examples include: theft, fraud, exploitation, and pressure in connections with
wills, property, possessions or benefits.

Modern Slavery

Examples include: someone who is: forced to work, through mental or
physical threat; owned or controlled by an ‘employer’ (usually through mental
or physical abuse); physically constrained or has restrictions placed on their
freedom; treated as a commodity.

Neglect and acts of omission
Examples include: ignoring medical or physical care needs, failure to provide
access to appropriate health, social care or educational services, the
withholding of the necessities of life, such as medication, adequate nutrition
and heating.

Discriminatory abuse
This abuse is usually motivated by discriminatory and oppressive attitudes
towards race gender, culture background, religion physical and/ or sensory
impairment, sexual orientation and age.

Institutional abuse, neglect and poor practice
This may take the form of isolated incidents of poor or unsatisfactory
professional practice at one end of the spectrum, through to ill treatment
constituting gross misconduct.

Self Neglect
Has been recognised within the Care Act 2015 as part of the safeguarding
framework and as such organisations have a duty to report the self-neglect of
adults.

Abuse can take place in any setting, public or private, and can be perpetuated
by anyone.

Volunteers, staff and trustees have a duty to identify abuse and report it.

3. Reporting

If a vulnerable adult is suspected of being in IMMEDIATE DANGER: Call The
Police on 999 – reporting a vulnerable adult in danger.

If you believe a vulnerable adult is at risk of harm or abuse, but NOT in
IMMEDIATE danger you should call:

Agenda page 192



The Ottery Help Scheme Office on 01404 813041 and make a report to the
Chief Officer or Coordinator.

Where reasonably practicable, the Chief Officer or Coordinator should make
initial enquiries into the alleged abuse (or risk thereof). Where grounds for
reporting abuse are established, Social Services should be contacted
immediately on 0345 1551 007.

Where initial enquiries are not reasonably practicable, or where they may
further endanger the safety of the vulnerable adult in question, the Chief
Officer, or Coordinator of Ottery Help Scheme should contact Devon Social
Services to report the suspected abuse or risk thereof: Contact Care Direct
on 0345 1551 007 or email csc.caredirect@devon.gov.uk.

Care Direct is open to take calls from 8am to 8pm Monday to Friday, and from
9am to 1pm on Saturdays. If an emergency situation happens outside these
hours or on a Bank Holiday, the Emergency Duty Service on 0345 6000 388
should be contacted.

4. Support to volunteers and staff

The volunteers and staff reporting of incidents of suspected or potential abuse
may find that the victim and/or the other responsible adult concerned i.e.
become upset or angry. The Chief Officer and/or Coordinator will support you
during the reporting process. Other support may take the form of support
provided by work colleagues or support or counselling provided by an outside
body if required.

Volunteers and staff themselves may also be the subject of an allegation of
abuse. While support will be offered, Ottery Help Scheme will ensure that
Social Services are given all assistance pursing any investigation. Suspension
and/or discipline may be implemented.

5. Suspect of abuse by a Ottery Help Scheme volunteer or member of staff

Where a volunteer or member of Ottery Help Scheme staff is suspected of
abuse the following action should be taken:

o The Chief Officer should interview the volunteer or member of staff with
a witness present. (Where the Chief Officer is suspected of abuse, the
Coordinator shall conduct the interviews.)

o The Chief Officer should make arrangements for interviewing the
suspected victim. This should be done with an Ottery Help Scheme
volunteer or staff member and support for the victim present. (Where
the Chief Officer is suspected of abuse, the Coordinator shall conduct
the interviews.)

o The purpose of the meeting is not to investigate but to establish
whether there are grounds for the allegation.

o Where grounds are established, Devon Social Services should be
contacted (contact details above).

Agenda page 193



6. Confidentiality

Confidentiality is crucial to the work of Ottery Help Scheme and the Ottery
Help Scheme confidentiality policy should be adhered to at all times.
However, the welfare of adults is paramount and where abuse or risk of
abuse is suspected, safeguarding the adult in question will take
precedence over confidentiality. Do not keep concerns relating to potential
abuse of adults to yourself.

Confidentiality may NOT be maintained if the withholding of information will
prejudice the welfare of the adult.

7. Safeguarding training

Ottery Help Scheme will offer its volunteers and staff Safeguarding training.

8. Safer Recruitment

Ottery Help Scheme practices Safer Recruitment and any offers of
employment (for either paid or voluntary roles) will be subject to the receipt of
satisfactory references and a clear Enhanced DBS check. All staff and
volunteers will be required to register with the DBS update service.

Where a volunteer/employee has already had an Enhanced DBS check
carried out with another organisation (within the last three years), Ottery Help
Scheme will decide on a case by case basis whether that DBS check is
sufficient for the purposes of the role applied for within Ottery Help Scheme.

Agenda page 194



Name of accountable group: Seaton Town Council

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? N/A
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

Agenda page 195

Agenda Item 10



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 8

Comments: Seaton Town Council, Axmouth Parish Council and Seaton Visitor Centre Trust will be working
together to design and distribute the Sidmouth to Seatown leaflet. Will probably bring in other organisations
as it develops. Will be working with Seaton Visitor Centre Trust and Axmouth Parish council on the Goat
Island leaflet too.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 3
Comments: Local residents and visitors to the area will be able to see how accessible the South West coast
path is. Will encourage outdoor walking which benefits health and wellbeing. The guides will highlight the
area and what it has to offer, benefitting the local economy.

3 The need for the project. 5 3
Comments: TIC’s receive a lot of queries from members of the public on local walks.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 3
Comments: Is well planned up to the making of the leaflets, but haven’t mentioned publicity, distribution or
online availability.

Total Score: 25 17

ASSESSOR Comments:

Agenda page 196



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Seaton Town Council

£3,652 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Seaton Town Council £730.40 Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 3,652.00

Seaton Town Council, Axmouth Parish Council and Seaton Visitors Centre Trust will
work together to produce a leaflet for walkers / information for walks from Sidmouth
to Seatown, highlighting Seaton. A leaflet will also be produced with information
specifically about Goat Island, unclear how this will be working together. Both will be
branded to link with the ‘Around Seaton’ heritage trail leaflet. All the information will
also be available online.

ITEM SCORE
1. 8
2. 3
3. 3
4. 3

TOTAL SCORE: 17

£0

£0

£2,921.60

Agenda page 197



East Devon District Council and Devon County
Council
Communities Together Fund Application Form
2018 / 2019
Devon County Council and East Devon District Council have allocated a sum of money to
be given in grants. This equates to £1.10 per elector in the District. The fund exists to
encourage communities to work together; identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.
Applications are welcome from community projects benefiting, enhancing and making a
difference to communities.

Please read the guidance notes thoroughly before completing the application form.
All applications must be with us by midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.

IMPORTANT- If your application is incomplete by the deadline, it will not be assessed and will be returned to you.
Please ensure that all sections are complete and any supporting documentation sent by email or post either before or
shortly after submitting your application.
Data Protection
Any personal information which you provide will be held and used by East Devon District Council for the purpose of your grant application. Your
information will be held temporarily by SNAP Surveys Ltd who provide the software used for the application. Your information may also be shared
within East Devon District Council for the purposes of carrying out our lawful functions. Otherwise your personal information will not be disclosed to
anybody outside East Devon District Council without your permission, unless there is a lawful reason to do so, for example disclosure is necessary
for crime prevention or detection purposes. Your information will be held securely and will not be retained for any longer than is necessary. There
are a number of rights available to you in relation to our use of your personal information, depending on the reason for processing.

All applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your application, and details of any funding allocated will be published on the
East Devon District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. Personal information will be removed. Names and contact details of
organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects will need to complete an evaluation form, which will
also be published on our website in the same way.

Further detail about our use of your personal information can be found in the relevant Privacy Notices which can be accessed online:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy  SNAP Surveys Ltd Privacy Policy: https://www.snapsurveys.com/survey-software/privacy-policy-uk

Section A - Your contact details

1. Names of all the organisations involved in submitting this application:
Seaton Town Council, Axmouth Parish Council & Seaton Visitor Centre Trust

If you are a voluntary or community group where someone like a town or parish council has agreed in writing
to be accountable for the project and bankroll it please put both your groups details and the accountable
organisations details.

Please nominate one lead person involved and fill in their details below. This nominated person will receive all
communications about the funding and will receive and be responsible for any funding received on behalf of
all involved.

2. Main contacts name, organisation they represent, and address (including postcode):
Town Clerk to Seaton Town Council, Marshlands Centre, Harbour Road, EX12 2LT

3. Main contacts phone number:

4. Main contacts e-mail:

Agenda page 198



5. Is the lead organisation (the one who will be accountable for the funding):
Although voluntary and community groups and clubs are eligible, they must work with a lead organisation who would
be accountable and must fit into one of the categories below.

A charity registered with the
Charities Commission

A Community Interest
Company registered with
Companies House

A town or parish council

If the lead organisation is a registered charity, please put your charity number below:
If the lead organisation is a Community Interest Company please put your registration number below:

Agenda page 199



Section B - Eligibility checklist

6. If you answer 'No' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:

Does your project benefit two or more town or parish council areas
within East Devon? Exmouth, as part of a pilot scheme, are
managing their own funding so must not be included when counting
how many town or parish council areas your project benefits.

Yes No
Does not

apply

Does your project show communities working together; identifying
new ideas for their mutual benefit?
Does your project benefit, enhance and/or make a difference to
communities?
Have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and
community groups to either identify and/or carry out the proposed
project? For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest
Companies, registered charities, other voluntary and community
groups.
Do you already have a minimum of 20% of the total costs of your
project from elsewhere?

Are you applying to us for funding of between £400 and £30,000?
Do you have one written quotation if the total cost of your project is
under £5,000, three written quotes if it is between £5,000 and
£100,000, or five written quotes if it is over £100,000?
Will any grant money awarded be able to be spent and claimed within
12 months of receiving your grant offer letter in around March 2019?
If you aren't a town or parish council, do you have or will you get the
written support of one or more of the parish or town councils in the
area your project will benefit and send it in with your application?
Have you let the relevant EDDC Ward Councillor(s) know about your
project?
Are you; a town or parish council, Community Interest Company
registered with Companies House, registered charity, or a voluntary
or community group where someone like a town or parish council has
agreed in writing to be accountable for the project and bankroll it?
If you are a town or parish council, are you submitting this application
jointly on behalf of two or more parish or town councils?
If your project is working with vulnerable people do you have a
Safeguarding Policy and appropriately trained staff/volunteers?
Taking into account likely funding, is your project viable in the long
term, or is it in a transition phase with documented evidence of how
the project will become sustainable post transition?

7. If you answer 'Yes' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:

Is your project eligible for our Community Buildings Fund?
eastdevon.gov.uk/grants-and-funding/community-buildings-fund

Yes No
Does not

apply

Has your project received funding from the Parishes Together Fund?
Is your project any of the following; promoting religion or politics, the
direct responsibility or statutory obligation of another statutory
organisation, regular activity such as lengthsman duties, on-going
staff costs or costs for the day to day running of an organisation, to
fund budget shortfalls or pay off debts, to fund a project where
planning permission is needed but hasn't been given.
Will any of the project costs be raised by means of a personal
mortgage or personal security?

Is your project due to start before the end of March 2019?
Are a significant amount of the beneficiaries of your project within the
Exmouth Town Council area? As part of a pilot project, Exmouth
Town Council are managing their own funding so aren't included.

Agenda page 200



 If you are ineligible and feel you should be eligible please call us to discuss on 01395
517569.

Agenda page 201



Section B - About your project
When filling in section B, please remember you will be competing with others for this funding. We can only
assess your application on what you submit, so to have the best chance of being successful please read the
guidance notes, the notes underneath the question and give us as much information as possible.

8. What is your project?
Should be approximately 250 words.
Describe in detail what is involved with your project. What do you intend to do? We want to know what you will do with
the grant and what exactly it will pay for.
This Seaton Town Council project in conjunction with Axmouth Parish Council & Seaton Visitor Centre Trust will
produce information leaflets/walkers guides from Sidmouth through to Seatown and a further guide that will provide
information specifically about Goat Island situated in the Undercliffs, a National Nature Reserve. The Sidmouth to
Seatown guide will provide key information on access points to the South West Coastal path, enabling the walker
to choose the distance and time likely to take on their chose route. Produced as an A3 colour guide, it will include a
map of Seaton town, highlighting Seaton's attractions encouraging the visitor to explore as well as several different
routes e.g. Sidmouth to Branscombe & Charmouth to Seatown. The format of the leaflet would be similar to that of
the Heritage Trail leaflet, including a mix of photographs, illustrations and text. The purpose of the design will be to
make the walk instructions and points of interest, clear and informative. The Goat Island Walk leaflet will be
produced as an A4 colour guide containing a balanced mix of photographs, illustrations and information. The start
of the walk will be Seaton Jurassic to highlight the importance of the centre with information on Axmouth village
and harbour also being included. The walk to Goat Island is a challenging one and the guide will provide the walker
with information around the nature and geology of the area as they make their way along the route. Both guides will
be branded to link with the ‘Around Seaton’ Heritage Trail leaflet.

9. How have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and community groups to either
identify and / or carry out your proposed project, and how are you committed to working together on the
project:
Should be approximately 100 words
For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest Companies, registered charities, other voluntary and
community groups.
Send any accompanying evidence you have of this with your application form.

We have explored working with Axmouth Parish Council as they approached us with the idea for the project and
this was also something that the Seaton Visitor Centre Trust were also looking at. So we worked together on the
project. Discussions were also held with the Tourist Information Centre to find out what the demand is for
information for walkers.

Agenda page 202



10. Why do you want to carry out this project and what difference will it make?
Should be approximately 100 words
Outline what impact / difference the project will have on the quality of life for your users and community e.g. how it will
solve a local issue, improve services or engage more residents in their communities.
The hope is that in producing this leaflet both local residents and visitors to the area will be able to see at a glance
how accessible the South West Coastal path walks in the area are. To encourage walking as an activity is
beneficial to all and has proven health benefits, so giving an indication of distance and times for different routes will
allow individuals to choose suitable walks and may encourage them to go and walk a new section of the Coastal
path. The Guides will also highlight what the local area, with particular focus on Seaton, has to offer and it is
anticipated that this will bring footfall into Seaton, therefore also benefitting the local businesses and economy.

11. How do you know this is needed? Who and how have you consulted?
Should be approximately 100 words
How do you know this is what is needed and wanted by the community? You may wish to include letters of support
from town and parish councils involved, voluntary and community groups, residents, local organisations, businesses,
Councillors etc. Have you undertaken any consultation exercises like Parish Plans, public meetings, other surveys
that support your application. Is there any statistical evidence to support your application?
Tourist Information Centre who have confirmed that they receive a lot of enquiries from members of the public on
local walks.

12. When do you intend to start work on this project and how long is work likely to take?
Funding can only be given to work that has not happened. Do not start spending on your project until we have
confirmed we have received back your signed copy of your official letter offering the grant, which we would normally
send to you around the end of March 2019. We can't pay for the project if it has been started before this has
happened. The project must be completed within 12 months of you receiving a grant offer letter if you are successful.
Project work will commence in April 2019 so that the leaflets can be available before the summer season
commences

13. How is your project sustainable?
Should be approximately 80 words
For example, is it a one off event, will the money pay for buying some items that will stay with the project, is it  some
funding to kick start a project or is it work that the results of will last for a long time. If it is successful and needs
longer term funding how will you make sure the project can carry on, for example by paying for it from main parish or
town council budgets.

If successful this funding will cover the cost of the initial design and first print runs of the guide. Reprints will be
funded through the Town Council and other interested parties

Agenda page 203



Section C - Project costs and match funding

14. Every project needs to include a written quotation from at least one contractor / supplier / provider. If
the total cost of the project is over £5,000 but less than £100,000 you must get a minimum of three written
quotations, or detail why this is not possible e.g. only one supplier that can do the project. If your project
costs are over £100,000 you must provide five written quotations, or detail why this isn't possible. Have you
done this and included it as part of your application?
Please see the rules for the fund for details on the quotation process.

Yes - please detail as part of question 17 and send written quote(s) with your application

No - you need to do this before submitting your application

15. What is the total cost of your whole project, and how have you arrived at that cost e.g. please detail
and include quotes you have received for the project and state which ones you wish to proceed with and
why:
Please note that all of the funding will be passed onto the organisation leading the application and they will be
responsible for it. It will be up to the applicants to distribute from there.
We'll pay grants upon receipt of invoices or receipts, unless you agree an exception to this with us in advance.
The total cost of the project is £3,652. The breakdown of this figure is as follows: Goat Island to Seaton Jurassic
A3 leaflet design= £1,140 - Yes proceed with Cost of printing 10,000 A3 150gsm uncoated copies = £975 - Yes
proceed with Sidmouth to Seatown A4 leaflet design = £1,290 = Yes Proceed with Cost of Printing 5,000 A4 Folded
leaflets = £247 = Yes proceed with

16. Can you claim the VAT back on your project costs?
Yes - please apply for the costs without including the VAT you can claim back

No - please apply for the project costs inclusive of VAT

Agenda page 204



17. Funding
You must already have a minimum of 20% of the total project costs from other sources to be eligible.

Total grant you are requesting from the Communities
Together Fund:

£2,921.60

Other confirmed match funding (please give more details
below of where the funding is coming from and how much it
is for):

£730.40

£730.40 confirmed funding from Seaton Town Council

Other unconfirmed match funding (please give more details
below of funding that has been applied for and how much it
would be for):

0.00

Total cost of project:
£3652.00

Shortfall (please specify below how this shortfall will be met):
0.00

No Shortfall

Agenda page 205



Section D - Checklist

18. Please tick below to indicate that you have understood and agree to your application form and
supporting evidence being used and published in both of the ways outlined below:

- You have understood that we are subject to Freedom of Information legislation. Unless the information contained
with and within this application is legally classed as confidential or protected under current data protection legislation it
will be made public, usually in the form of being published on our website. This will be in the form of the agenda and
minutes of the decision making meeting and to fit in with any other Freedom of Information requests. If any
information you have given is exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, it may be redacted
before the remainder is published. Find out more here: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/access-to-information/freedom-of-
information/
- You are aware of and have understood our Data Protection Policy and Privacy Notices:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy/ This includes all applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your
application, and details of any funding allocated being published on the East Devon District Council website in line
with our Privacy Statement. This includes names of individuals and personal contact details being removed. Names
and contact details of organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects
will need to complete an evaluation form, which will also be published on our website in the same way.

If you don't tick this box your application can't go forward.

19. Checklist. Have you sent the following by email or post to accompany your application including:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station Road, Sidmouth,
EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

The appropriate number and type of quotations for the cost of your project, and any
invitations to tender documents.
Written support from at least one of the town and parish councils in the area your
project will benefit if you aren't a parish or town council.
Any relevant documents as outlined in guidance notes, for example accounts,
governing documents, safeguarding policies.
Have you made the relevant East Devon District Councillor(s) aware of your project
and sent any comments you received back from them.

You may also wish to include the following to support your application:
- Details of offers/ grants from any other funder/ organisation
- Photographs, specifications and drawings
- Extracts from Parish Plan(s) or Neighbourhood Plan(s)
- Evidence of consultation e.g. letters of support

20. Before signing, please read
I confirm that:
- I am authorised by the organisations involved to sign on their behalf.
- Funding will not directly benefit any individual or private business and will only be used for the purposes specified
within the application.
- I understand that funding will only be paid upon receipt of valid invoices/ receipts.
- That we will provide East Devon District Council with information of how the funding has benefitted the community
on request.
Signature of applicant (or type name and this will be counted as a signature):

Date:
15/01/19

Agenda page 206



The closing date for applications is midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.
At this stage Devon County Council have only been able to confirm their funding of this scheme for this year
only.

Please press on 'submit' below to send your completed form to us.

Please send accompanying information clearly labelled with your project details to:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station Road,
Sidmouth, EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

Agenda page 207



Agenda page 208

jbuckley_14
Text Box
  *   Have you made the relevant East Devon District Councillor(s) aware of your project? If not, please could you do so and let me know.Cllrs Burrows and Hartnell are aware of the project
  *   Can I just double check that Seaton Town Council are the responsible organisation for this project and we'll send you the money for you to pass on?Seaton Town Council is the responsible organisation
  *   Will all the information be available online, and publicised there as well, in addition to being in a paper leaflet?We will put the information on the seatondevon.org website and Axmouth Parish Council will publicise on their website
  *   The majority of the benefits of the project must be within East Devon. I see your leaflet will cover up to Seatown. What percentage of the benefits, roughly, will be to East Devon do you think?The majority of benefit will be in East Devon.  The reason for taking the leaflet as far as Seatown was to encourage walkers to walk from east to west into East Devon and also to explore Seaton and the historic village of Axmouth
  *   Please can you let us know how the Goat Island walk leaflet will benefit people from outside of Seaton? And are you working with Seaton Visitor Centre Trust and Axmouth Parish Council on this one as well?The Goat Island walk will enable people to access a rare habit where wildlife and rare plants thrive; and to discover and understand more about the historic significance of the Great Landslip of 1839.  Yes, we are working with the Seaton Visitor Centre Trust and Axmouth Parish Council on this leaflet 
  *   How will each of the leaflets be publicised and distributed?
The leaflets will be available at Seaton and other TICs, at camp sites,  Seaton Wetlands, library, caravan parks, hotels and B & Bs throughout the local area, local businesses, etc.



Agenda page 209



Agenda page 210



Agenda page 211



Agenda page 212



Agenda page 213



Agenda page 214



Agenda page 215



Name of accountable group: Stoke Canon Parish Council

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

N/A

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? N/A
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

N/A

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

Agenda page 216

Agenda Item 11



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 6

Comments: Two parish councils are working together. The work will be carried out by volunteers from both
parishes. They are also talking to the DCC Parish Paths Partnership throughout. Will create a link between
the parishes.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 4
Comments: Will improve access between Stoke Canon and Brampford Speke who each use the others
community facilities. It’s used by school children, dog walkers, accessing facilities such as the post office.
This is the most used footpath in the area.

3 The need for the project. 5 3
Comments: It’s so poor currently that it’s impossible for a lot of people to use it such as prams and
wheelchairs. The only alternative to the footpath is a 13 mile round trip by road. Devon County Council own
the path and are changing the gates but are unable to provide financial help for the path.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 5
Comments: Project is well planned and thought out. There is a quotation. They are in touch with the DCC
Parish Paths Partnership. The people doing the project have recently completed a similar project.

Total Score: 25 18

ASSESSOR Comments:

Agenda page 217



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Stoke Canon Parish Council

£2,450 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Stoke Canon Parish Council £245 Yes
Brampford Speke Parish
Council

£245 Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 2,450

To improve 100m of public footpath between the two parishes, which has become so
degraded people with pushcahirs, buggies, wheelchairs etc can’t use it. The two
parishes regularly need access to each other to use community facilities. The soil
will be removed and road planings laid then a layer of hardcore. DCC own the
footpath and are changing the gates but can’t provide any other financial help.

ITEM SCORE
1. 6
2. 4
3. 3
4. 5

TOTAL SCORE: 18

£0

£0

£1,960

Agenda page 218



Agenda page 219



Agenda page 220



Agenda page 221



Agenda page 222



Agenda page 223

jbuckley_15
Text Box
The footpath belongs to Devon CC. We have approached them and although they have promised to change the gates to allow disabled access they are unable to provide financial help. 



Agenda page 224



Agenda page 225

jbuckley_16
Text Box
£490

jbuckley_17
Text Box
The £490 is £245 from each of the parish councils



Agenda page 226



Agenda page 227



Agenda page 228



Agenda page 229



Agenda page 230



Agenda page 231



Name of accountable group: King George’s Playing Field Uplyme

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? X
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

Agenda page 232

Agenda Item 12



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 6

Comments: King George’s Field (a registered charity) and Uplyme Parish Council are working together with
Devon Air Ambulance to set up a community Devon Air Ambulance night landing site in Uplyme. They will
presumably then have to communicate once it’s put in.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 5
Comments: Project is to make a night landing site for the air ambulance at Uplyme, which could save lives.
The air ambulance site offers access to the local community and neighbouring towns and villages as well as
those travelling through the area. There is also a proposed new school within 1,000 metres. There is easy
access to a car park enabling easy transfer of patients.

3 The need for the project. 5 4
Comments: Could save lives in the community. Enables the air ambulance to deliver a life saving service in
the heart of the community. Not clear if there has been a need for a night landing site in Uplyme until now.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 3
Comments: Is well planned with DAAT and the Parish Council. DAAT have put in many of these throughout
East Devon so far. Only one quotation though.

Total Score: 25 18

ASSESSOR Comments:
Only one quotation but the DAAT have a preferred supplier and are providing a lot of the monies.

Agenda page 233



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

King George’s Field, Uplyme

£8,800 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Lyme Regis Regatta and
Carnival Committee

£2,000 No

Uplyme Parish Council £393.86 Yes
Devon Air Ambulance £3,623.12 Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 3,652.00

Uplyme Parish Council, King George’s Field in Uplyme and the Devon Air
Ambulance Trust are working together to put in a night landing site at the field. This
would potentially enable the air ambulance to land at night to save lives in Uplyme
and surrounding towns and parishes.

ITEM SCORE
1. 6
2. 5
3. 4
4. 3

TOTAL SCORE: 18

£0

£0

£2,783.02

Agenda page 234



A
genda page 235



A
genda page 236



A
genda page 237



A
genda page 238



A
genda page 239

jbuckley_18
Text Box
Councillor Thomas (District Councillor) and Councillor Hall (County Councillor) attend our monthly Full Council meetings which the DAAT funding have been discussed openly, also the District Councillor was officially informed at our meeting on Wednesday, 13/02/2019 (minuted)



A
genda page 240



A
genda page 241



A
genda page 242

jbuckley_19
Text Box
£5,623.12

jbuckley_20
Text Box
Lyme Regis Regatta and Carnival Committee - £2,000, Uplyme Parish Council - £393.86. £3,623.12 - DAAT

jbuckley_21
Text Box




A
genda page 243

jbuckley_22
Text Box
X

jbuckley_23
Text Box
X

jbuckley_24
Text Box
X



A
genda page 244

jbuckley_25
Text Box
£8,800.62

jbuckley_26
Text Box
£0



A
genda page 245



A
genda page 246

jbuckley_27
Text Box
The majority (over 50%) of the benefits of the project must be within East Devon. I see your site will cover Lyme Regis which is in Dorset. What percentage of the benefits, roughly, will be to East Devon do you think? Answer: Devon Air Ambulance has confirmed that 2018 was the busiest year in its 27 years of operation, having assisted 1,109 patients, an increase of 12% from the previous year. Reference: Operations Director for Devon Air Ambulance. Although the proposed site is on the border of East Devon it is estimated that at least 90% of Devon residents nearby, tourists and neighbouring towns, some who pass by this busy village for work and leisure will benefit from this essential emergency service. The landscape of the area is very uneven with narrow rural roads which makes land emergency vehicles very hard to access and give medical assistance in vital time.
•Have you gained planning permission? Answer: EDDC approved planning permission (18/2755/FUL) on 16/01/2019.
•Q14 As in the rules, if the total cost of the project is over £5,000 you need to provide a minimum of three quotes, or give sufficient reasoning as to why you’ve only sent in one quotation. I have only received one quotation, so please could you send me two extra, or justify why you have only sent in one. Answer: Because of the specialised area and the added incentive of knowledge and experience of installing these projects, with the added bonus of additional funding for labour costs which the DAA will be refunded. Also, after contact with other projects, MAT Electrics come highly recommended from other sites to provide a professional and cost effective project. See below  for justifying email from the Managing Director of MAT Electrics, Tim Jones:Further to our earlier conversation regarding the above, we can confirm that we have carried out almost 100 Installations for the Devon Air Ambulance on Night Landing Sites, we have a dedicated team that carry out the installations and were responsible for the design and development of the control system and lighting equipment being used that allows for the remote operation of these lights. We were in competition with other contractors at that time, so we have won the amount of installations we have done, due to the design and competitive nature of our proposal. Due to the quantity of installations we are carrying out, we have preferential discounts on the lights and columns that are used based on the quantities we use,  as well as with the Controls, which we purchase as individual components and construct here in our workshop.I trust the information above is satisfactory, but should you need to have any further clarifications, please do not hesitate to give me a call. I can also confirm that Toby from DAAT will advise on the Grant that he is able to provide for you, which covers the Labour costs for the installation.                                                                   
•Do you know if the air ambulance has needed to land at night in or near Uplyme and hasn’t been able to? Answer: To my knowledge I believe there have been several attempts to land close to medical emergencies in this area, day and night which obviously would make a significant chance of the speed to save lives. ‘Every second counts’ Trauma related incidents, for example, road traffic collisions and accidental injuries, equated to 49% of the patients we responded to, with the remaining 51% being medical emergencies, e.g. heart attacks or breathing problems. We are here for all ages and 121 of our missions (11%) were to under 18s. We also attended two patients who were over 100! Reference: , CEO of Devon Air Ambulance
Q2 Please could you confirm who the main applicant, who the monies would be paid to and would sign the grant offer agreement?Answer: The main applicant is King George’s Field  a registered charity, contact Treasurer Neil Pullinger and main signatory 




Agenda page 247



Agenda page 248



KING GEORGES  FIELD UPLYME - TREASURERS REPORT - 2017

YEAR 2017

INCOME

Donations
Candles on the Cobb 500
Croquet Club 100
Horticultural Society 100
Parish Council 510
Uplyme PCC 100
Village Fete 500

Field Rental 205
Grants 2,780
Tennis Court 1,132

TOTAL 5,927

EXPENDITURE

Administration 2
Buildings Insurance 420
Field Maintenance 1,460
FIT Insurance 109
Hall Rental 42
Tennis Court Clean/Refurbish 15,246

TOTAL 17,279

DIFFERENCE -£            11,352 

FINANCIAL ASSETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Lloyds Bank Account 4,178.48
Cash in Hand 0.00

TOTAL  £         4,178.48 

Agenda page 249



               55 Shearwa
Clerk to Uplyme Parish Council  
  
Tel: 07413 947067        E
Email: clerk@uplymeparishcouncil.org 
 

 

 

Miss Jamie Buckley  
Community Engagement and Funding Officer 
East Devon District Council 
Office: (01395) 517569 
Mobile: 07875 284638 

jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk 

15/02/2019 
 

Re: EDDC Communities Together Fund – DAAT Night Landing site (Uplyme) 
 
I write on behalf of Uplyme Parish Council in support of the King George’s Field Charity proposal to the EDDC 

Communities Together Fund for a grant to fund the Devon Air Ambulance Night Landing Site to provide this essential 

service that provides urgent medical assistance to people in and around the county of Devon.  

We strongly support this funding application and have been actively promoting and fundraising throughout the 

community in partnership with the King George’s Field Charity. 

We have a strong relationship with King George’s Field Charity and work together in improving the facilities and the 

environment of the residents and public in Uplyme Village. 

 We urge you to seriously consider the funding for this project to help us continue to be involved with the 

community to highlight the money needed to fund this important emergency service 

Kind Regards 

 

  
 

Clerk to Uplyme Parish Council  

07413 947 067 

Monday-Thursday 9am-5pm 

55 Shearwater Way, Seaton, Devon, EX12 2FT   

email:      clerk@uplymeparishcouncil.org 

web site:  http://www.uplymeparishcouncil.org/ 

 

Agenda page 250

mailto:jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@uplymeparishcouncil.org
http://www.uplymeparishcouncil.org/


e.

• ---~ ~--- -,
"

DATED 31st DECEMBER 1938-

THE UPLnJ.lE CRICKET & TElITHS CLUB
.LIMIr:J.'ED

-to-

THE NATIONAL PLitYING FIELDS ASSOCIATIOlir

CON V E Y A IT C E

-of-
Cricketj Field and Recreation
Ground at Up1yme in the County
of Devon

We have compared this copy deed
with the original conveyance dated
31st December 1938 a~d we certify

Dated this 14th day of'June 1939

••
•

•
Agenda page 251



...1-

THIS CONVKi.lU\TCEis made the thirty first day of December
One thousand nine hundred and thirty eight BETWEEN THE
UPLY1I!JECRICKET and TEN]HS CLUB LIMrr1.~Dwhose registered
office is situate at Pinhay Lyme Regis in the County of
Dorset (hereinafter called lTthe Clubtt

) of the first part
'I'IIE NATIONALPL.il..YINGFIELDS ASSOCIATION whose office is
situate t 71 Eccleston Square Belgrave Road in the
Count y of London (hereinafter called "the National
Aaso cf.at.Lon" ) of the second part and E
of in the County of Devon Landowner

in the County of Dorset
Landowner
aforesaid Ly

W"".r'..:..1"'REli.S the National As soc t at Lon was incor:porated by Roya.l
Cha.rtier on the eight.eenth day of January One thousand nine
hundred and thirty three '7ith the ob ject (inter alia) of
acquiring by vvay of pur cha se lease or otherwise or co-
operatin€ in the ac qu i sd td on of playi,ng fields and open spaces
fo r the :9ur:Q0ses of outdoor games sports .rid pc.stLmes in any
p_lrt of Gre3.t Brit - in nd Nor-t.h ez-n Ireland and of ho.Ld i ng or
dt apo s Lng of Land for the Association or any of its Branches
for any of the ab ove purposes 11d of applying such :playine
fields and open space s to any of the above purposes A:ND
l!!iJglE.A.8 the Club is seised of the pro:perty described 'in·
the Schedule her-etio .:.nd expressed to be hereby conveyed
rcr an est::..te in fee simple .A.ND ifm::ERK4..S the Club desire in
pursuance of a Special Resolution duly passed at an
Extr ordinary Genex'al Meetin.g held at Waterside Uplyme
aforesaid on the eleventh day' of August One thousand nine
hundr-ed and thirty ei£1ht to t r an sfer the s9..id property to
the N~tional Association to be held by the National
Associo.tion upon trust as a Cricket Field and Recreation
Ground f'o r the Pa.ri sh of Uplyme in the county of Devon for
ever and by the same Resolution the Directors were
authorised to make all necess-ry arrangements 1Nith the
Nati onal. :~ssociation for the t yurT)ose an d to carry out
and complete the t.r-an sf et'

NOWTEIS DEED '!VI Tl'JESSETH

1. IN pu.r suance of the s:.:l.id Resolution and in consideration of
the premises the Club as set.'Glors hereby convey and grant
to the l'J:J.tional Asso c r atri on .iU;L th t piece or parcel of
land described in the First Schedule hereto together with
all buildings now erected thereon TO HOLDunto the National
Association in fee simple upon trust to permit the same to
be used in perpetuity as a Cricket ]'ie1o. and Recreation
Ground for the benefit of the Lnh abf tants of the parish of
Uplyme in the County of Devon under the management and
direction of the Managers or any other person or persons
or Coryoration or public body to whom with the consent of
the Iiia.tional Associ ation such nla.nagernent and direotion may
be transferred

' ..
Agenda page 252



-2-
--'V

2. TlIEMa11agers shall at their own expense in all respects
maintain the said property expressed to be hereby conveyed
as a Cricket Field m1d Recreation Ground in perpetuity for
the benefit of the inhabitant s of the Parish of Uplyme
aforesaid under such rules and regulations for the manage-
ment preservation disposition and care of the said premises
and the government of all persons using Or frequenting the
same as shall be approved by the Natn.ona.LAssociation
PROVIDED ALWAYS tho.tthe IiTanagersShall not incur any
personal liability under this covenant but shall be liable
thereunder only to the extent of such sums of money as
shall from time to time come into their hands as Managers for
the purposes of such maintenance s aforesai.d

3. TrillNat.Lonaf Association shall deliver to the Managers and
the Managers shall accept and take possession of the said
property described in the First Schedule hereto iml11ediately
upon the execution of this Conveyance and thereafter in
January of each year the Managers shall deliver to the
National Associ ation a report setting out the condition
of the said property and of the fences and walls surrounding
the same and of'any'buildings thereon and the manner in
which the said property has been used during the precedingye3.r

4.. ALL rents and moneys (if any) received in respect of the
use of the said property shall be applied solely towards
the upkeep development and maintenance thereof

5.. THE said property having been acquired as a Memorial to
His late Majesty King George V under the provisions of
King Georgets Fields Foundation shall be known as King
George ts Field

6& CHILDRID~ of school age shall be perrlltted to play
oz-gandsed games under proper supez-vt ston in the Northern
part of'the said property within such limits of space and
time as are from time to time prescribed by the Managers

7. WHERE a Manager is dead or remains out of the United
Kingdom for more than twelve months or desired to be
discharged or refuses or is unfit to act or is incapable
of acting or is guilty of any misconduct in connection
with his duties as Manager the National Association shall
have power in writing under the hand: of their General
Secretary or other authorised officer in that behalf for
the time being to appoint a new Manager in his place
PROVIDED i'(f}\ffAYS that during the lifetime of the preseht
meniliersof the Club whose names are set out in the Second
Schedule hereto the said members or the survivors or
survivor of them shall have sole power for a period of
six months to a:ppoint a new Manager in the place of any
Manager representing the Club who for any reason Whatsoever
shall cease to r-eo resent the Club and if the said members
or the survivors or survivor of them as the case may be
shall fail to appoint a new Manager within the said period
then the National Association shall have power to appoint
a new Ms..nager as hereinbefore provided PROVIDED ALSO that
whenever a Mc;.nagerrepresenting a local authority or
organisation ceases for any reaS011whatever to represent·
such authority or organization the local authority or
organisation concerned shall have sole power for a period
of six months to appoint a new r,lanagerin his or her place
and if such local authority or organisation Shall fail to
appoint a new NIs..nage'rWithin the s3.idperiod then the
National Association shall have power to appoint a new
Manager as hereinbefore provided

Agenda page 253



IlT WITNESSwner~o£' the' partie s of the first and second
parts have hereunto c used their ComTilonSeals to be
affixed and the p2.rti es of t.rie third p rt hc.ve hereunto
set their hands and seals the ds.y and year first before
wr~tten

TEE FIRS'!' SCIiEDULEhereinbei'ore referred to
of'

ALL that piece of l2Xld situate in the Parish/Uplyme in
the County Devon containing 5 acres or thereabouts
adjoining the ro~d leading 'from .~~inster to Lyme Eegis
heing the reID&inder of two pieces of land Nod. Part 880

nd J: o , 885 on the Ordnance Survey Ea.}! for the said
Ps.rish a small portion whereof was conveyed by the
Reverend Ernest Brumwell to certain pe rsons for a sit e
for a Village Hall in the ~re8.r 1924 All wht ch property
(including the said site of .the Village Hs.ll) is with
the boundaries and e..buttals thereof (by vray of identification
and not by vray of enl8.rgement) delineated on the plan annexed
to a Conveyance dated the Ll.t h day of .."u§;l1.st1921 and m de
between Ernest Ethelston Peel of the first part Hugh Edmund
Ethelston Peel and Charles Franeis Kynaston Mainwaring of
the second part and the said Ernest Bramwell of the third
part and th ereon eo loured ~nk

THE COMl![ONSEALof
CRICKETAND TErtl~IS
was hereto affixed

THEUPLYME
CLUBLIMITED
in the

Agenda page 254



-4-

Recorded in the books of the Charity CommiSSioners for
England and Wales pur-su.ant to the provisi ons of Section
29 (4) of the Settled Land Act , 1925.

Agenda page 255



Name of accountable group: Upottery Parish Council

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? X
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

Agenda page 256

Agenda Item 13



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 5

Comments: Upottery Playing Fields Association have the support of several other organisations but unclear
how much they are actually working together. Would benefit Upottery Primary School particularly which is
attended by children from other parishes. Upottery Parish Council are contributing the 20%.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 3
Comments: Project is to create safer access to Glebe Park where Upottery Football Club, Upottery Tennis
Club and Upottery Cricket Club are and community events take place.

3 The need for the project. 5 4
Comments: Currently access for walkers is round a blind bend on a road which is often used by large
vehicles, and is dangerous especially in the dark. Would encourage more people, especially the 104 school
children at Upottery Primary to walk to the facility rather than drive, and make the access safer.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 5
Comments: Is seemingly well planned with many letters of support from relevant organisations. Only
quotations for one part of the project, but other parts are payable to Devon County Council which is fixed.

Total Score: 25 17

ASSESSOR Comments:
Only quotations for one part of the project, but other parts are payable to Devon County Council
which is fixed.

Agenda page 257



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Upottery Playing Fields Association

£6,250 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Upottery Parish Council £1,250 Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 6,250

Creating safer access to Glebe Park sports and playing fields as it is currently on a
blind bend. This project will encourage more walking and more people to use the
playing fields and sports clubs, especially school children. It will benefit school
children from parishes outside Upottery.

ITEM SCORE
1. 5
2. 3
3. 4
4. 5

TOTAL SCORE: 17

£0

£0

£5,000

Agenda page 258



Agenda page 259

jbuckley_28
Text Box
The application is from Upottery Playing Fields Association (UPFA) and I am acting on behalf of the Association in my role as the Parish Paths Partnership  coordinator for Upottery Parish.



Agenda page 260



Agenda page 261



Agenda page 262



Agenda page 263



Agenda page 264



Agenda page 265

jbuckley_29
Text Box
•	All projects must benefit two or more parish or town council areas. Please could you tell us more about the benefits of your project to people from outside Upottery? The proposal will benefit a number of groups who have membership across numerous parishes in East Devon:-- Upottery Primary School children who come from Luppitt, Yarcombe, Cotleigh, Awliscombe and Dunkeswell as well as Upottery.- Players and supporters of the various football, cricket and tennis teams that play at the Glebe Park Playing Field who come from parishes all over East Devon.- The Youth Club which draws members from Luppitt, Yarcombe and Dunkeswell as well as Upottery.

•	I can only find three quotations for part of the project, the gates and new entrances. As your project costs over £5,000 we would need three quotations for every part of the project (including the legal costs and safety audits), or at least one and then satisfactory justification as to why three can’t be provided.There are the required 3 quotes for the ground works. The legal costs and Safety Audits are all payable to Devon County Council as it is the sole provider of these services. 
•	Q9. Please could you outline how you have / will be working with other organisations to plan / make the improvements? For example will you have to liaise with Devon County Council / the user groups from Glebe Park etc to carry out the works? Where did the idea for the project come from, was the local community in any way involved in getting it to this stage?  The proposal arose from the local community via the UPFA. The idea was developed by my predecessor as Footpath Coordinator and Parish Council Chairman Mr Chris Hunt (who has since moved from the village). Members of the community, the landowners and the Upottery PC have been fully supportive of the proposal and have made useful contributions during the process of working up the proposal (see supporting letters from PC, school headmaster and UPFA Chairman). We have been working closely with DCC over this proposal, primarily with the Rights of Way department (see supporting letter). Our  Devon County Councillor advised applying to the fund.





Agenda page 266



Agenda page 267



Agenda page 268



Agenda page 269



Agenda page 270



Agenda page 271



Agenda page 272



Agenda page 273



Agenda page 274



Agenda page 275



Agenda page 276



Agenda page 277



Agenda page 278



Agenda page 279



Agenda page 280



Agenda page 281



Agenda page 282



Agenda page 283



Agenda page 284



Agenda page 285



Agenda page 286



Agenda page 287



Upottery Parish Council
Parish Clerk:

Upottery Parish Footpath Warden

8th January 2019

Dear

I am writing on behalf of Upottery Parish Council to confirm their support for
the proposed diversion of Footpath 32.  The parish council have agreed to
contribute a maximum of 20% of the costs of the work up to a maximum of
£1250.

The parish council are supporting this project because it will help provide
improved and safer access to the sports facilities available at Glebe Park.
The sports facilities are used by residents within our parish and beyond.
There is an active and strong cricket team and two football teams based at
Glebe Park.  The members of these teams live in Upottery parish, as well as
Luppitt, Churchinford, Monkton and beyond.  The tennis court and playing
field at Glebe Park are also used by Upottery Primary School whose
catchment area is Upottery Parish, part of Monkton parish and Luppitt parish.
It is felt that the proposed change will increase use of the playing fields by the
school and others using the facilities.

Yours sincerely

Agenda page 288



 

David Surridge - Arboricultural Services 
HNC Arb.       RFS Cert. Arb.      

Willmoreleigh Farm     Farway     Colyton     Devon     EX24 6EQ 

Telephone/Fax : 01404 871564     Mobile : 07778 778685     email : davidsurridge@btinternet.com 

VAT Reg. No. 717 6550 24 

 

 

 

Tree surgery & felling, hedges, conservation works, surveys, inspections & reports   

Public liability - £5 million 

                                                                                                            
 

 

2nd January 2019 

 

 

Dear 

 

 

FP 32 – Revised Option 

 

Further to your request for revised costings to exclude stoning the path, I have re-calculated the costs 

and provide details below. 

 

Supply and install 3 self-closing pedestrian gates to include making good any existing fencing and 

provide steps with handrail where the path exits onto the lane.   

 

Total cost including materials and labour                         £2,250.00 (£1,875.00 ex VAT) 

 

Where the path exits onto the road I have allowed for 3 or 4 basic board and gravel steps with a 

handrail going down on to the lane and a short 90o at the bottom for safety. 

 

If you have any queries or require any further information please don’t hesitate to contact me. 

 

  

 

Yours sincerely          

 

Agenda page 289



BANKS CONSTRUCTION 
& Country Contractors  

Flays Farm 
Farway 

Colyton, Devon EX24 6EG 
Phone 01404 871338 Mobile 07971 567260               V.A.T. REG. No: 665137624 
 
10 January 2019 

P3 Coordinator  
Upottery Parish 

 
Dear
 
Subject: Proposed FP32 diversion Upottery Parish 
  
Installation of 3 metal self closing gates with fencing to side as required, alowing for 
the Moving of a straining post and installation of new straining posts to allow the 
fitting of the  new gate. 
Creation of three steps down from one of the self-closing gates with handrail to one 
side.   
At this time I  have allowed for a gate cost of £150 plus VAT each, If Devon county were 
to supply the gates this cost would be removed from the final bill. 
 
 
Cost of £1626.00+ VAT   
 
 
 
 
 
  
Many thanks 
 
 

 
Stage payments may be required and additional work not mentioned above would be charged as extras. Full 
and final payment will be due on day of completion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda page 290



QUOTE
upon

Date
11 Jan 2019

Expiry
11 Aug 2019

Quote Number
QU-0098

Reference
Footpath Diversion

VAT Number
275 7556 59

Garden & Countryside
Maintenance Limited
Homefield Farm
Brooklands Cross
Venn Ottery Road
Newton Poppleford
Devon
EX10 0BY
Tel: 01395 567783
E-mail:
gardencounrysidemainten
ance@gmail.com

Description Quantity Unit Price VAT Amount GBP

Supply 3 self closing metal gates 3.00 150.00 450.00

Supply all Labour and materials to install 3 x self closing
metal gates .Create 2 new pedestrian entrances and lay a
hardcore slope down to the lane

1.00 2,250.00 2,250.00

Subtotal 2,700.00

TOTAL GBP 2,700.00

Agenda page 291



For the attention of

As per our conversation please find detailed below the price for work to be
undertaken as discussed:

10 x 3x3 posts £34.60
Post Concrete £48.00
3 footpath gates £540
Railway sleepers £100.80
Hardcore £44.38
2x rails £9.36
Nails/ screws £15
Labour x 2 men £990
( including taking away rubbish)

TOTAL £1782.14

If this price is acceptable, please could you notify me,

Regards,

DMS Landscaping And Fencing
07702694488

Agenda page 292



Agenda page 293



E mail of support from Ward Counsellor. 03.01.19

Footpath Warden for Upottery PC)

I fully support the application as applied for with the Communities Together
Fund. The footpath is a very necessary path to allow the public a safe walkway
to the new and well supported playing fields from the village instead of having
to drive their cars approx.800 metres to be sure of safety.
As the Ward member I cannot be more convinced of support which is for health
and safety reasons.
Kind regards
Cllr. David Key (Otterhead Ward)

Agenda page 294



Agenda page 295



9th December 2018

Ref: Diversion of Footpath FP32 to Glebe Park

Dear

I am writing to formalise our recent discussions regarding a possible diversion to the above mentioned foot-
path.
Glebe Park is a multi sports site consisting of Upottery Football Club, Upottery Tennis Club and Upottery
Cricket Club but is also used year round for other community based events such as the Community Apple
Day. The site is utilised by many surrounding communities and visiting sports clubs and engages people of
all age groups.
The current access to Glebe Park from Upottery Village relies upon walking down a narrow section of road
which consists of a blind bend. This road is frequently used by large HGV’s and Agricultural vehicles and as
such we believe the route to be potentially unsafe, particularly in the months where natural light is an issue.
We would like to see this section of access diverted through the field as laid out in your proposal.

Thank you for your support in this matter.

Kindest Regards

Upottery Playing Fields Committee Chairman.

Agenda page 296



Name of accountable group: West Hill Parish Council

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

N/A

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? N/A
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

Agenda page 297

Agenda Item 14



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 6

Comments: Has got West Hill Parish Council working with / talking to West Hill Wasps, The King’s School
and various other parish and town councils in the area. Although once the football goals have been bought
the working together on this project would end really.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 4
Comments: The current goals are at the end of their life and need replacing soon if football provision is to
continue. There are 150 members of West Hill Wasps, and The King’s School is of a significant size. The
goals would be in use daily throughout the school year.

3 The need for the project. 5 4
Comments: The goals are at the end of their life and are in daily use. Without them there would be less
formal / informal football provision which encourages health and wellbeing in children and young people.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 5
Comments: Project is well planned and thought out. There is a plan in place for taking the old goals out and
putting new ones in. There is a quotation.

Total Score: 25 19

ASSESSOR Comments:

Agenda page 298



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

West Hill Parish Council

£1,976 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

West Hill Wasps £198 Yes
King’s School PTFA £198 Yes

Total (if we give our grant) £ 1,977

To purchase full size portable football goals for the use of The King’s School in
Ottery St Mary and West Hill Wasps junior football club. They will replace a current
set of fixed football goals that are at the end of their life. The portable goals will also
allow flexibility for better football coaching. They’d be used daily throughout the
school year and for West Hill Wasps (who have 150 members) on training nights and
match days. The goals will enhance sports provision in the area.

ITEM SCORE
1. 6
2. 4
3. 4
4. 5

TOTAL SCORE: 19

£0

£0

£1,581

Agenda page 299



Agenda page 300



Agenda page 301



Agenda page 302



Agenda page 303



Agenda page 304



Agenda page 305



Agenda page 306



Agenda page 307



Agenda page 308

jbuckley_30
Text Box
X



Agenda page 309



Communities Together  - West Hill 
 
 
Q8.  What is your project? 
 
The project is the purchase of full size portable football goals for The King's School Ottery 
PTFA and West Hill Wasps junior football club. They are to be located at The King's School 
football ground. They will replace a current set of fixed football goals at the site which are at 
nearing the end of their useful life. The photos of the current goals, submitted in support of 
this application provide evidence of the poor state of their condition. They no longer have 
stantions and few net pegs on the cross bar. Because they are fixed they leave holes on the 
ground which have to be covered during athletics. The proposed goals would provide greater 
flexibility for good quality football coaching - as they are not fixed they could be set up 
anywhere on the field for example when the goal mouths are too wet. They would also 
reduce the maintenance needs and costs with the site team putting them up and down. 
 
The goals would be usable by the school daily throughout the school year and for the West 
Hill Wasps on training nights and weekend match days. West Hill Wasps currently train and 
play matches on the King's School field.   The King's School catchment includes children 
from Ottery St Mary, West Hill, Aylesbeare, Talaton and Feniton. There are around 150 
children (boys and girls) from numerous parishes, including West Hill, Ottery St Mary, 
Aylesbeare, Gittisham and Rockbeare who are members of the West Hill junior football club. 
Around 70-80 of these children attend the Kings School. West Hill Wasps is an entirely 
volunteer run club, with no paid employees. It is a standard Football Assocation Club. The 
chair of West Hill Wasps i was recognised as 
one of East Devon District
 
 
Q10.  Why do you want to carry out this project and what difference will it make? 
 
West Hill Parish Council believes that these new goals will enhance the football experience 
for both pupils of the King's School and members of the West Hill Wasps.  Players and 
managers of the different Wasps teams as well as external referees have commented on the 
low standard and quality of the existing goals. West Hill Parish Council believes that it is vital 
to support and encourage children who play sport, and assist where it can and that 
improving the quality of equipment will remove barriers to participation in sport and will 
ultimately increase participation in sport. 
 
The new goals will also make it easier for football coaches to set up the goals and this would 
mean that more time can be spent actually coaching. The level of rust on the current goals 
means that setting up the nets means that coaches get rust in their eyes and one of the 
current goals was only made good by butchering other goals. 

Agenda page 310

jbuckley_31
Text Box
EMAIL FROM THE HEAD OF PE AT KING'S SCHOOL: I am aware of the current condition of the fixed goal posts. I do agree that they are nearing the end of their life span. You will be aware that schools face significant financial restrictions moving forward and as such my budget request has been returned as a 'flat line' budget for the last 2 years. However, I am also aware that this is still fairly healthy compared to similar schools locally. 
This year, I have requested and prioritised the purchase of a set of rugby posts which has been approved by SLT. These are in a worst state than the football goal posts and one set has only been made good by the ground staff 'butchering' old posts together. Last year we finished the playing season with one set completely dismantled. Without the successful award of  grant funding the purchase of additional football goals would not go ahead at this time.




Agenda page 311



Agenda page 312



 MARK HARROD LTD                                                                                             
  Unit 41/42/43 Ladfordfields Industrial Estate,  

Ladford Covert 
 Seighford 

 Staffordshire 
 ST18 9QL 

                Tel: 01502 710039  
 Email: mikeb@markharrod.com 

Website: www.markharrod.com 

QUOTE  

 

West Hill Junior Football Club 

 

Quote Ref: MHQ.Mike0104 

Date; 10/01/19 

 

 

24 x 8 Football goals 

X 1 FOT-600 Self-weighted easy-lift package, consisting of 100mm x 110mm powder 
coated aluminium frames, zinc plated internal weights, non-puncture easy-lift wheels, 
32mm zinc net & brace supports, 3mm white nets, clips & all fittings. 

                                                                      ……………...…………… £1,976-00p per pair 

Delivery  

FA Included                                                                                                                      

 

Total                                                            …………………………...... £1,976-00p + VAT 

 

All goals conform to BSEN748/BS8462:2012 and FA Guidelines 

 
Delivery approximately 2-3 weeks from date of order 
 
All prices excluding VAT 
 
If you need any more information please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kind Regards 

rk Harrod Ltd 

Agenda page 313



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
To Whom it may concern 
 
 
 
 
I would be very grateful to the Communities Together fund and the West Hill, Ottery St Mary and 
Gittisham Parish Councils for supporting the joint bid between the Kings School and West Hill 
Junior Football Club for some portable football goals to replace some fixed goals at the end of their 
life. 
 
The goal swill enable more boys and girls from years to come develop their interest in sport and 
play at school during the week and at weekends for West Hill Wasps. Wasps are volunteer run and 
administered and entirely run by parental donations; a local team drawing players from across 
three parishes and many of whom are already at the Kings School or will be before long. 
 
Without the support of this fund we would not be able to consider this purchase that will bring 
many parents and children together. 
 
I really hope you will be able to support us. 
 
Many thanks 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

West Hill Wasps Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda page 314



       
 
 
Thursday 13th December 2018 
 
 
 
 

Dear Sir/Madam 
 

I am writing as the Chairperson of the King's School PTFA, to ask for the support of 
West Hill Parish Council in submitting an application to the Communities Together 
fund.  This would be a joint application along with West Hill Wasps, for the 
replacement of the current full sized football goals, and if successful The PTFA 
agree to meet the required 10% contribution towards the cost. 
 
I understand from the PE department at The King's School, that their current full size 
goals are reaching the end of their life.   Unfortunately they are unable to allocate 
any of their budget in the near future to replace them, due to other more urgent 
requirement needs. 
 

The replacement goals would benefit The King's School students by allowing access 
to use them during the school week, plus occasional after school matches, and the 
West Hill Wasps to use them at the weekends.   
 

Football is a hugely popular sport in the local community, and essential for our young 
people to engage them in being part of a team, belonging to a Club and keeping 
them active. 
 

Thank you in advance for your consideration 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
The King's School PTFA  
    

Agenda page 315



Subject: Re: Communi�es Together proposal for considera�on

From:

Date: 10/12/2018, 13:54

Hello  Gittisham parish councillors resolved at their meeting on 5th

December to support this bid.

If you need anything more formal, please let me know.

Kind regards

On Wednesday, 5 December 2018 16:58:29 GMT, Clerk <clerk@westhillparishcouncil.gov.uk> wrote:

Good afternoon

Please see below some information about a bid West Hill is supporting for Communities Together funding. Cllr Jessica

Bailey would appreciate it if the proposal could be considered by Gittisham Parish Council and if possible resolve to

support it along with OSMTC and WHPC. If you have any queries about it, please contact Cllr Jessica Bailey direct on

Jessica.Bailey@westhillparishcouncil.gov.uk

Thanks

arish Clerk

The Communities Together Working Group on 12th November discussed a possible bid for the funding

of new football goals for West Hill Wasps. These would be located at the Kings playing field in Ottery

and used by The Kings School during school hours and used by West Hill Wasps at weekends for

training and matches.

Boys and girls from a number of parishes play for the West Hill Wasps, including Ottery, Talaton,

Aylesbeare and Rockbeare, as well as West Hill. Children from numerous parishes also attend the

King's School and so would benefit from the goals. Around 70-80 children who play for West Hill Wasps

also attend the King's School.

The intention would be for West Hill Parish Council to submit the bid, and OSMTC has also resolved to

support it.

The current fixed goals are old, covered in rust and close to the end of their natural life. They no longer

have stantions and the net hooks are broken. The proposed bid would be for portable goals which would

provide greater flexibility for good quality coaching. The cost of the goals will be for c£2500 with Kings

PTFA meeting 10% of the cost and West Hill Wasps meeting 10% of the cost. The bid is supported by

the chair of King's PTFA, the chair of West Hill Wasps and the head of sport at the King's School as well

as OSMTC. We hope that Gittisham could also support it. It would not involve any financial commitment,

simply a resolution to support.

--

Re: Communities Together proposal for consideration  

1 of 2 17/12/2018, 10:26

Agenda page 316



Email footer.jpg

Attachments:

Email footer.jpg 12.7 kB

Re: Communities Together proposal for consideration  

2 of 2 17/12/2018, 10:26

Agenda page 317



Subject: Re: Communi�es together bid

From:

Date: 17/12/2018, 11:00

To: Clerk <clerk@westhillparishcouncil.gov.uk>

Dear

I hope that you are well.

I can confirm that Feniton Parish Council are in support of the OSMTC Kings School PTFA and West Hill

Wasps funding under Communi�es Together as resolved at the Feniton Parish Council mee�ng on

Monday 10th December.

Should you require any more than this please do not hesitate to let me know.

Kind regards,

Clerk to Feniton Parish Council

On Mon, Dec 17, 2018 at 10:18 AM Clerk <clerk@westhillparishcouncil.gov.uk> wrote:

Morning 

West Hill is suppor�ng a bid with OSMTC, Kings School PTFA and West Hill Wasps for funding under

Communi�es Together. It is for new mobile goal posts for the Wasps. The lead Councillor is Cllr

Jessica Bailey who is pu7ng the bid together. Susie Bond is aware of the bid. Jessica told me that

Susie emailed her that Feniton PC agreed at its last mee�ng to support in principle (there is no

financial commitment). Would you mind emailing me something to that effect, confirming Feniton's

support? What O=ery did was just email me the extract from their minutes to the effect that "it was

resolved to provide support for the bid..."

I just need something on record to show support from Feniton.

Thanks!

Kind regards

--

Re: Communities together bid  

1 of 2 17/12/2018, 11:21

Agenda page 318



Re: Communities together bid  

2 of 2 17/12/2018, 11:21

Agenda page 319



Subject: Provisional Communi�es Together Mee�ng - 11th December 2018

From: <admin@o erystmary-tc.gov.uk>

Date: 04/12/2018, 13:18

Please see the below from the draft Minutes of the Full Council Meeting last night. At the last meeting, a provisional

date for a meeting on Tuesday 11th December 'if necessary' was arranged, but please could you confirm if you have

any business requiring this meeting to go ahead?

COMMUNITIES TOGETHER

•           CONSIDERATION BY THE TOWN COUNCIL TO SUPPORT A PROPOSED BID BY THE HELP SCHEME

FOR FUNDING FOR A DEMENTIA INITIATIVE

It was understood that the League of Friends was happy to support this bid and provide 10% match funding (£1350).

After some discussion it was RESOLVED that the Council would also support the bid by providing £500 of  match

funding

•           CONSIDERATION BY THE TOWN COUNCIL TO SUPPORT A JOINT BID WITH WEST HILL PARISH

COUNCIL FOR THE FUNDING OF MOBILE GOALPOSTS

The cost of the goalposts were in the region of £2,500.  Kings PTFA and West Hill Wasps would provide match funding

of 10% each.  It was noted that West Hill Parish Council would submit the bid and in response to its request,  it was 

RESOLVED that the Council would  provide support for the bid.  It was noted that this would have no financial

implications for the Council

Many thanks

Regards

Assistant to the Town Clerk

O�ery St Mary Town Council

The Old Convent

8 Broad Street

O�ery St Mary

EX11 1BZ

Contact Mon/Tues 01404 812252

t by the Council may contain confiden�al or legally privileged informa�on and are

Provisional Communities Together Meeting - 11th December 2018  

1 of 2 17/12/2018, 10:31

Agenda page 320



only intended for the addressee.  If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the message to the intended

recipient, any onward transmission of the email is strictly prohibited. If you have received the email in error, you should delete the message and

any a�achments immediately, including any backups and temporary files and no�fy:   enquiries@o�erystmary-tc.gov.uk

Access: As a public authority, the Council is subject to the provisions of the Freedom of Informa�on Act. Under this legisla�on the Council may be

required to disclose the content of an email (or a response to it) unless the informa�on it contains is protected from disclosure under an

exemp�on in the Act.

If you have any queries please contact: enquiries@o�erystmary-tc.gov.uk

Provisional Communities Together Meeting - 11th December 2018  

2 of 2 17/12/2018, 10:31

Agenda page 321



TALATON PARISH COUNCIL 

Email: clerk.talatonpc@btinternet.com  

 

 

 

                                                                                                                    9th December 2018 

 
Communities Together Fund 2018 
 
Talaton Parish Council confirms that it wishes to support the bid from Ottery St Mary Town 
Council to support the help scheme for funding for a dementia initiative.  
Talaton Parish Council confirms that it wishes to support the joint bid from Ottery St Mary and Westhill 
for a set of mobile goalposts. 
 
 
 

Regards 

Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

Yours  

 

 

 

Clerk 

 

Agenda page 322



Subject: Communi es Together - West Hill Applica on
From: Parish Clerk <clerk@westhillparishcouncil.gov.uk>
Date: 11/01/2019, 16:28

Dear Councillors

Communi es Together

I am wri ng to no fy you formally that West Hill Parish Council is submi ng an applica on for
funding under the Communi es Together scheme to East Devon District Council. The sum applied for
is £1,581.00  and it is in order to acquire new football goals which will be used jointly by members of
West Hill Wasps Junior Football Club and students who a end the Kings School.  The goals will be
located at the Kings School Playing Fields where the West Hill Wasps play matches and train. The
applica on is supported by the chair of the West Hill Wasps and the chair of the Kings School PTFA.
Each of these organisa ons are contribu ng 10% of the cost of the goals.

West Hill Parish Council is very grateful to have received support from O ery St Mary Town Council,
Feniton Parish Council, Gi sham Parish Council and Talaton Parish Council.

Under the terms of the scheme West Hill Parish Council is no fying you as ward members for the
par cipa ng parishes.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you would like to have any further informa on on the grant
applica on

Yours sincerely

--

Communities Together - West Hill Application  

1 of 1 11/01/2019, 17:40

Agenda page 323



Safeguarding Children Policy and Procedures

Football Club Safeguarding Children Policy

1.               Football Club 
acknowledges its responsibility to safeguard the 
welfare of every child and young person who has been 
entrusted to its care and is committed to working to 
provide a safe environment for all members. A child or 
young person is anyone under the age of 18 engaged in 
any club football activity. We subscribe to The Football 
Association’s (The FA) Safeguarding Children – Policy 
and Procedures and endorse and adopt the Policy 
Statement contained in that document. 

2. The key principles of The FA Safeguarding Children 
Policy are that:

•	 the child’s welfare is, and must always be,  
the paramount consideration

•	 all children and young people have a right to be 
protected from abuse regardless of their age, gender, 
disability, race, sexual orientation, faith or belief

•	 all suspicions and allegations of abuse will be taken 
seriously and responded to swiftly and appropriately

•	 working in partnership with other organisations, 
children and young people and their parents/carers  
is essential. 
 
We acknowledge that every child or young person 
who plays or participates in football should be able to 
take part in an enjoyable and safe environment and be 
protected from poor practice and abuse. 
              Football Club 
recognises that this is the responsibility of every adult 
involved in our club.

3.               Football Club has 
a role to play in safeguarding the welfare of all children 
and young people by protecting them from physical, 
sexual or emotional harm and from neglect or bullying. 
It is noted and accepted that The Football Association’s 
Safeguarding Children Regulations (see The FA 
Handbook) applies to everyone in football whether in a 
paid or voluntary capacity. This means whether you are 
a volunteer, match official, helper on club tours, football 
coach, club official or medical staff.

4. We endorse and adopt The FA’s Responsible Recruitment 
guidelines for recruiting volunteers and we will:

•	 specify what the role is and what tasks it involves
•	 request identification documents
•	 as a minimum meet and chat with the applicant(s)  

and where possible interview people before  
appointing them

•	 ask for and follow up with 2 references before 
appointing someone

•	 where eligible require an FA accepted Enhanced 
Criminal Record Check (CRC) with Barring List Check  
in line with current FA policy and regulations.

All current                Football 
Club members working in eligible roles, with children 
and young people - such as managers and coaches are 
required to hold an in-date FA accepted Enhanced  
CRC with Barring List check as part of responsible  
recruitment practice1. 

If there are concerns regarding the appropriateness of an 
individual who is already involved or who has approached 
us to become part of     
Football Club guidance will be sought from The Football 
Association. It is noted and accepted that The FA will 
consider the relevance and significance of the information 
obtained via the CRC Process and that all suitability 
decisions will be made in accordance with legislation and  
in the best interests of children and young people. 

It is accepted that The FA aims to prevent people with  
a history of relevant and significant offending from  
having contact with children or young people and the 
opportunity to influence policies or practice with children 
or young people. This is to prevent direct sexual or 
physical harm to children and to minimise the risk of 
‘grooming’ within football.

Using this Policy 
This policy template is provided so that you can add  
your club name to the relevant sections. It is important 
that this policy is discussed by the committee. The club 
needs to be sure it is clear about its responsibilities and 
that it adheres to this policy in full. Having a proactive Club 
Welfare Officer is an integral requirement of this policy.

Club Template

TheFA.com/football-rules-governance/safeguarding Let’s make football safe – not sorryAgenda page 324

http://www.thefa.com/football-rules-governance/safeguarding


Safeguarding Children Policy and Procedures

5.               Football Club 
supports The FA’s Whistle Blowing Policy. Any adult or 
young person with concerns about a adult in a position 
of trust with football can ‘whistle blow’ by contacting 
The FA Safeguarding Team on 0800 169 1863, by writing 
to The FA Case Manager at The Football Association, 
Wembley Stadium, PO Box 1966, London SW1P 9EQ,  
by emailing Safeguarding@TheFA.com or alternatively 
by going direct to the Police, Children’s Social Care or 
the NSPCC. 
              Football Club 
encourages everyone to know about The FA’s Whistle 
Blowing Policy and to utilise it if necessary.

6.               Football Club 
has appointed a Club Welfare Officer in line with 
The FA’s role profile and required completion of the 
Safeguarding Children and Welfare Officers Workshop. 
The post holder will be involved with Welfare Officer 
training provided by The FA and/or County FA. The 
Club Welfare Officer is the first point of contact for all 
club members regarding concerns about the welfare of 
any child or young person. The Club Welfare Officer will 
liaise directly with the County FA (CFA) Welfare Officer 
and will be familiar with the procedures for referring 
any concerns. They will also play a proactive role in 
increasing awareness of Respect, poor practice and 
abuse amongst club members.

7. We acknowledge and endorse The FA’s identification 
of bullying as a category of abuse. Bullying of any kind 
is not acceptable at our club. If bullying does occur, 
all players or parents/carers should be able to tell 
and know that incidents will be dealt with promptly. 
Incidents need to be reported to the Club Welfare 
Officer in cases of serious bullying the CFA Welfare 
Officer may be contacted.

8. Respect codes of conduct for Players, Parents/ 
Spectators, Officials and Coaches have been 
implemented by        
Football Club. In order to validate these Respect 
codes of conduct the club has clear actions it will take 
regarding repeated or serious misconduct at club level 
and acknowledges the possibility of potential sanctions 
which may be implemented by the County FA in more 
serious circumstances.

9. Reporting your concerns about the welfare of a 
child or young person. Safeguarding is everyone’s 
responsibility if you are worried about a child it is 
important that you report your concerns – no action  
is not an option.

i. If you are worried about a child then you need to 
report your concerns to the Club Welfare Officer.

ii. If the issue is one of poor practice the Club Welfare 
Officer will either:
•	 deal with the matter themselves or
•	 seek advice from the CFA Welfare Officer

iii. If the concern is more serious – possible child abuse, 
where possible, contact the CFA Welfare Officer first, 
then immediately contact the Police or Children’s 
Social Care.

iv. If the child needs immediate medical treatment take 
them to a hospital or call an ambulance and tell 
them this is a child protection concern. Let your Club 
Welfare Officer know what action you have taken, they 
in turn will inform the CFA Welfare Officer.

v. If at any time you are not able to contact your Club 
Welfare Officer or the matter is clearly serious then 
you can either:
•	 contact your CFA Welfare Officer directly
•	 contact The FA Safeguarding Team on  

0800 169 1863 or Safeguarding@TheFA.com
•	 contact the Police or Children’s Social Care
•	 call the NSPCC 24 hour Helpline for advice on  

0808 800 5000 or text 88858 or email  
help@nspcc.org.uk

NB – The FA’s Safeguarding Children Policy and 
Procedures are available via – www.TheFA.com/football-
rules-governance/safeguarding – click on ‘Raising 
Awareness – Best Practice Downloads’, the Policy and 
Procedures document is within the resources area. The 
policy outlines in detail what to do if you are concerned 
about the welfare of a child and includes flow diagrams 
which describe this process. How to make a referral is 
also covered in the Safeguarding Children workshop. 
Participants are given the opportunity to discuss how 
this feels and how best they can prepare themselves to 
deal with such a situation. For more information on this 
workshop contact your County Welfare Officer.

10. Further advice on Safeguarding Children matters can 
be obtained from: 
• 
T:  
E:  
• 
 
County Football Association’s Welfare Officer 
T:  
E: CountyWO@ 
•	 www.TheFA.com/football-rules-governance/  
 safeguarding  
•		 Emailing	–	Safeguarding@TheFA.com 
•		 The	FA	Safeguarding	Children	general	enquiry	line		
 0845 210 8080

1 The FA’s policy on Disclosure and Barring Service CRCs is 
subject to change. CRC information and guidance can be found 
at www.TheFA.com/football-rules-governance/safeguarding/
criminal-records-checks 

TheFA.com/football-rules-governance/safeguarding Let’s make football safe – not sorryAgenda page 325

http://www.thefa.com/football-rules-governance/safeguarding
http://www.thefa.com/football-rules-governance/safeguarding


Name of accountable group: Seaton Town Council

Application Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the application form complete? X
Is the form signed? X
Has the group let the relevant EDDC Ward Member(s) know about the project /
application?

X

Group Eligibility
Criteria Yes No
Is the accountable organisation; a charity registered with the Charities
Commission, a Community Interest Company registered with Companies House,
or a town / parish council?

X

Is there a copy of the accountable organisation’s most recent annual accounts
unless they are a town or parish council?

X

Is there less than one year’s running costs in reserve? N/A
If the project involves working with vulnerable people have they included a
Safeguarding Policy and details on how volunteers / staff are appropriately
trained?

X

If not a town or parish council, is there at least one letter of support from a town or
parish council in the relevant area?

X

If a town or parish council, is the project joint between two or more town or parish
councils?

X

Project Eligibility
Does it benefit two or more town or parish council areas, not including Exmouth? X
Are the majority / all of the benefits of the project within East Devon but outside of
Exmouth?

X

Is it an admissible type of project? X
Is the project; sustainable, in a transition phase with evidence of how it will
become sustainable, or a short term project?

X

If planning permission is needed has it been gained? N/A
Will the project not start until after March 2019? X
Will any grant money awarded be spent and claimed within 12 months from time of
approval?

X

Is the project ineligible for the Community Buildings Fund? X
Has the project not previously received funding from the Parishes Together Fund? X

Costs Eligibility
Are there the required number and type of quotations, with a written tender
specification?

X

Is the grant requested between £400 and £30,000? X
Is the grant requested no larger than 80% of the overall project costs? X
Has the applicant obtained at least 20% match funding from elsewhere? X
Do funding gained (once our grant is added) and total project costs match? X

Agenda page 326

Agenda Item 15



Minimum score for each = 0

ITEM Max.
Score

Score
Given

1 Working with other groups and communities to either identify and / or carry out
the project, identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.

10 4

Comments: Seaton Town Council are proposing the project, Beer Parish Council support the project and
Seaton Majorettes are the beneficiaries. There will be some communication between them but this would be
minimal.

2 Benefitting, enhancing and / or making a difference to communities. 5 4
Comments: Benefits to the 50 Seaton Majorettes - Physical exercise of baton twirling. Benefits to health,
wellbeing, learning and interpersonal skills. Helps to combat childhood obesity. They regularly perform at
community events. Not sure about the benefits of the batons, other than allowing Seaton Majorettes to
continue – have asked.

3 The need for the project. 5 2
Comments: The project is to purchase batons for Seaton Majorettes, as they need to replace their current
batons.

4 How well is the project planned? 5 3
Comments: The project involves purchasing of batons, so is well planned. Have asked them to get another
quote as seems a significant amount for batons. Do not have customs and import costs which would be
significant. They are currently £420 short but this will be raised through fundraising.

Total Score: 25 13

ASSESSOR Comments:

Agenda page 327



Name of accountable
organisation:

Total Project Cost: Award Requested Recommendation

Funding Package:

Unconfirmed Funds:

Shortfall:

Priority Scoring:

Assessment Summary:

Seaton Town Council

£4,200 £

Funds Applied For or
Raised

Amount In hand? Yes, No,
or Unsuccessful

Seaton Majorettes
fundraising

£420

Total (if we give our grant) £ 3,780

To purchase 30 new batons for Seaton Majorettes. Seaton Majorettes is of benefit to
50 young people at the moment, and improves their health and wellbeing as well as
taking part in local community events. They do not have customs and import costs
included in the project. There is a £420 shortfall. Is a significant cost for the batons
they need.

ITEM SCORE
1. 4
2. 4
3. 2
4. 3

TOTAL SCORE: 13

£420 – will be
fundraised

£0

£3,360

Agenda page 328



East Devon District Council and Devon County
Council
Communities Together Fund Application Form
2018 / 2019
Devon County Council and East Devon District Council have allocated a sum of money to
be given in grants. This equates to £1.10 per elector in the District. The fund exists to
encourage communities to work together; identifying new ideas for their mutual benefit.
Applications are welcome from community projects benefiting, enhancing and making a
difference to communities.

Please read the guidance notes thoroughly before completing the application form.
All applications must be with us by midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.

IMPORTANT- If your application is incomplete by the deadline, it will not be assessed and will be returned to you.
Please ensure that all sections are complete and any supporting documentation sent by email or post either before or
shortly after submitting your application.
Data Protection
Any personal information which you provide will be held and used by East Devon District Council for the purpose of your grant application. Your
information will be held temporarily by SNAP Surveys Ltd who provide the software used for the application. Your information may also be shared
within East Devon District Council for the purposes of carrying out our lawful functions. Otherwise your personal information will not be disclosed to
anybody outside East Devon District Council without your permission, unless there is a lawful reason to do so, for example disclosure is necessary
for crime prevention or detection purposes. Your information will be held securely and will not be retained for any longer than is necessary. There
are a number of rights available to you in relation to our use of your personal information, depending on the reason for processing.

All applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your application, and details of any funding allocated will be published on the
East Devon District Council website in line with our Privacy Statement. Personal information will be removed. Names and contact details of
organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects will need to complete an evaluation form, which will
also be published on our website in the same way.

Further detail about our use of your personal information can be found in the relevant Privacy Notices which can be accessed online:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy  SNAP Surveys Ltd Privacy Policy: https://www.snapsurveys.com/survey-software/privacy-policy-uk

Section A - Your contact details

1. Names of all the organisations involved in submitting this application:
Seaton Town Council, Beer Parish Council and Seaton and District Majorettes

If you are a voluntary or community group where someone like a town or parish council has agreed in writing
to be accountable for the project and bankroll it please put both your groups details and the accountable
organisations details.

Please nominate one lead person involved and fill in their details below. This nominated person will receive all
communications about the funding and will receive and be responsible for any funding received on behalf of
all involved.

2. Main contacts name, organisation they represent, and address (including postcode):
Town Clerk, Seaton Town Council,

3. Main contacts phone number:

4. Main contacts e-mail:

Agenda page 329



5. Is the lead organisation (the one who will be accountable for the funding):
Although voluntary and community groups and clubs are eligible, they must work with a lead organisation who would
be accountable and must fit into one of the categories below.

A charity registered with the
Charities Commission

A Community Interest
Company registered with
Companies House

A town or parish council

If the lead organisation is a registered charity, please put your charity number below:
If the lead organisation is a Community Interest Company please put your registration number below:

Agenda page 330



Section B - Eligibility checklist

6. If you answer 'No' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:

Does your project benefit two or more town or parish council areas
within East Devon? Exmouth, as part of a pilot scheme, are
managing their own funding so must not be included when counting
how many town or parish council areas your project benefits.

Yes No
Does not

apply

Does your project show communities working together; identifying
new ideas for their mutual benefit?
Does your project benefit, enhance and/or make a difference to
communities?
Have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and
community groups to either identify and/or carry out the proposed
project? For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest
Companies, registered charities, other voluntary and community
groups.
Do you already have a minimum of 20% of the total costs of your
project from elsewhere?

Are you applying to us for funding of between £400 and £30,000?
Do you have one written quotation if the total cost of your project is
under £5,000, three written quotes if it is between £5,000 and
£100,000, or five written quotes if it is over £100,000?
Will any grant money awarded be able to be spent and claimed within
12 months of receiving your grant offer letter in around March 2019?
If you aren't a town or parish council, do you have or will you get the
written support of one or more of the parish or town councils in the
area your project will benefit and send it in with your application?
Have you let the relevant EDDC Ward Councillor(s) know about your
project?
Are you; a town or parish council, Community Interest Company
registered with Companies House, registered charity, or a voluntary
or community group where someone like a town or parish council has
agreed in writing to be accountable for the project and bankroll it?
If you are a town or parish council, are you submitting this application
jointly on behalf of two or more parish or town councils?
If your project is working with vulnerable people do you have a
Safeguarding Policy and appropriately trained staff/volunteers?
Taking into account likely funding, is your project viable in the long
term, or is it in a transition phase with documented evidence of how
the project will become sustainable post transition?

7. If you answer 'Yes' to any of the following questions you are not eligible for this funding:

Is your project eligible for our Community Buildings Fund?
eastdevon.gov.uk/grants-and-funding/community-buildings-fund

Yes No
Does not

apply

Has your project received funding from the Parishes Together Fund?
Is your project any of the following; promoting religion or politics, the
direct responsibility or statutory obligation of another statutory
organisation, regular activity such as lengthsman duties, on-going
staff costs or costs for the day to day running of an organisation, to
fund budget shortfalls or pay off debts, to fund a project where
planning permission is needed but hasn't been given.
Will any of the project costs be raised by means of a personal
mortgage or personal security?

Is your project due to start before the end of March 2019?
Are a significant amount of the beneficiaries of your project within the
Exmouth Town Council area? As part of a pilot project, Exmouth
Town Council are managing their own funding so aren't included.

Agenda page 331



 If you are ineligible and feel you should be eligible please call us to discuss on 01395
517569.

Agenda page 332



Section B - About your project
When filling in section B, please remember you will be competing with others for this funding. We can only
assess your application on what you submit, so to have the best chance of being successful please read the
guidance notes, the notes underneath the question and give us as much information as possible.

8. What is your project?
Should be approximately 250 words.
Describe in detail what is involved with your project. What do you intend to do? We want to know what you will do with
the grant and what exactly it will pay for.
This joint project between Seaton Town Council, Beer Parish Council and Seaton Majorettes is to fund the
purchase of new batons for the Seaton Majorette troupe.

9. How have you explored opportunities to work with other voluntary and community groups to either
identify and / or carry out your proposed project, and how are you committed to working together on the
project:
Should be approximately 100 words
For example; town and parish councils, Community Interest Companies, registered charities, other voluntary and
community groups.
Send any accompanying evidence you have of this with your application form.

This project is jointly supported by Seaton Town Council and Beer Parish Council

Agenda page 333



10. Why do you want to carry out this project and what difference will it make?
Should be approximately 100 words
Outline what impact / difference the project will have on the quality of life for your users and community e.g. how it will
solve a local issue, improve services or engage more residents in their communities.
Seaton Majorettes has about 50 young people as members and they meet regularly to practice and perform. The
exercise is of benefit to the young people as, not only is it physical exercise assisting with their health and wellbeing
but it also stimulates the brain due to the nature of the routines performed with the batons. The physical exercise
reduce the likelihood of childhood obesity and the mental stimulation also helps the young people concentrate and
benefits them in their day to day life. Many of the young people do not go to the same school so it also improves
the interpersonal skills of the young people and builds their confidence. The Majorettes also provide a wider
community benefit as they regularly perform at events in a number of town centres and in local carnivals.

11. How do you know this is needed? Who and how have you consulted?
Should be approximately 100 words
How do you know this is what is needed and wanted by the community? You may wish to include letters of support
from town and parish councils involved, voluntary and community groups, residents, local organisations, businesses,
Councillors etc. Have you undertaken any consultation exercises like Parish Plans, public meetings, other surveys
that support your application. Is there any statistical evidence to support your application?
Seaton Majorettes

12. When do you intend to start work on this project and how long is work likely to take?
Funding can only be given to work that has not happened. Do not start spending on your project until we have
confirmed we have received back your signed copy of your official letter offering the grant, which we would normally
send to you around the end of March 2019. We can't pay for the project if it has been started before this has
happened. The project must be completed within 12 months of you receiving a grant offer letter if you are successful.
The batons would be purchased early summer enabling the Majorettes the time to fundraise for the remainder of
the money

13. How is your project sustainable?
Should be approximately 80 words
For example, is it a one off event, will the money pay for buying some items that will stay with the project, is it  some
funding to kick start a project or is it work that the results of will last for a long time. If it is successful and needs
longer term funding how will you make sure the project can carry on, for example by paying for it from main parish or
town council budgets.

The funding will be a one off but the results of the funding will last for a long time and will assist with the
sustainability of the Majorette troupe in Seaton. The Majorettes raise funding themselves as well so they are a
sustainable proposition

Agenda page 334



Agenda page 335

jbuckley_32
Text Box
Q - Have you made the relevant East Devon District Councillor(s) aware of your project? If not, please could you do so and let me know. A - Yes both Cllr Burrows and Hartnell are aware of the project and were at the Council meeting when it was signed off
Q - Can I just double check that Seaton Town Council are the responsible organisation for this project and we’ll send you the money for you to pass on? A - Yes Seaton Town Council is the responsible organisation for the project and will pass the money on to the Majorettes
Q - Why do the majorettes need these new batons? For example have the old ones worn out? Do they not have enough for everyone that wants to join? What will the benefits of these new batons be over and above their current batons?  A - The batons are not taken home by the Majorettes so they will 100% remain the property of Seaton Majorettes even if people leave the troupe.Yes the principal reason for the application is that the old batons are wearing out and the lighting is not good.  They have to buy new light sticks each time they use the baton and this is wasteful and expensive.  The glow light sticks are plastic so this also adds to plastic waste.  The new batons remove the need to keep buying new glow light sticks and will reduce waste plastics.
Q - I know Councillors will query the significant cost of the batons. Due to this please could you send me at least one more example quotation for the batons (or just example print offs from the internet of prices for similar batons), details of why these particular batons have been selected and why they are being ordered from America and not from within the UK?   
Q - Is there a reason why there is no customs included on the quotation? I thought items shipped from America were subject to customs?  




Section C - Project costs and match funding

14. Every project needs to include a written quotation from at least one contractor / supplier / provider. If
the total cost of the project is over £5,000 but less than £100,000 you must get a minimum of three written
quotations, or detail why this is not possible e.g. only one supplier that can do the project. If your project
costs are over £100,000 you must provide five written quotations, or detail why this isn't possible. Have you
done this and included it as part of your application?
Please see the rules for the fund for details on the quotation process.

Yes - please detail as part of question 17 and send written quote(s) with your application

No - you need to do this before submitting your application

15. What is the total cost of your whole project, and how have you arrived at that cost e.g. please detail
and include quotes you have received for the project and state which ones you wish to proceed with and
why:
Please note that all of the funding will be passed onto the organisation leading the application and they will be
responsible for it. It will be up to the applicants to distribute from there.
We'll pay grants upon receipt of invoices or receipts, unless you agree an exception to this with us in advance.
The total cost of the project is £4,200 The breakdown of the costs is: 30 new batons at a cost of £140 each

16. Can you claim the VAT back on your project costs?
Yes - please apply for the costs without including the VAT you can claim back

No - please apply for the project costs inclusive of VAT

Agenda page 336

jbuckley_33
Text Box
1. In terms of the customs duty and import tax they're not sure how much this will cost until they arrives in the UK but Seaton Majorettes have confirmed that they would pay this amount. This is not included in the £4,200 costs.  
2. There is no other firm in this country that do the same that is why I need to get them from America. And as far as i can see no other in America. 




17. Funding
You must already have a minimum of 20% of the total project costs from other sources to be eligible.

Total grant you are requesting from the Communities
Together Fund:

£3,360

Other confirmed match funding (please give more details
below of where the funding is coming from and how much it
is for):

0.00

Other unconfirmed match funding (please give more details
below of funding that has been applied for and how much it
would be for):

Total cost of project:
£4,200

Shortfall (please specify below how this shortfall will be met):
£840

The Majorettes have been fundraising and plan to do
further fundraising in the next few months to cover the
shortfall of £840

Agenda page 337

jbuckley_34
Text Box
Seaton Majorettes fundraising.

jbuckley_35
Text Box
Seaton Majorettes fundraising - £420

jbuckley_36
Text Box


jbuckley_37
Text Box
£420

jbuckley_38
Text Box
£4,200 plus customs duty and import tax



Section D - Checklist

18. Please tick below to indicate that you have understood and agree to your application form and
supporting evidence being used and published in both of the ways outlined below:

- You have understood that we are subject to Freedom of Information legislation. Unless the information contained
with and within this application is legally classed as confidential or protected under current data protection legislation it
will be made public, usually in the form of being published on our website. This will be in the form of the agenda and
minutes of the decision making meeting and to fit in with any other Freedom of Information requests. If any
information you have given is exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, it may be redacted
before the remainder is published. Find out more here: http://eastdevon.gov.uk/access-to-information/freedom-of-
information/
- You are aware of and have understood our Data Protection Policy and Privacy Notices:
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/privacy/ This includes all applications including any supporting evidence you send in with your
application, and details of any funding allocated being published on the East Devon District Council website in line
with our Privacy Statement. This includes names of individuals and personal contact details being removed. Names
and contact details of organisations and businesses will be published as part of your application. Successful projects
will need to complete an evaluation form, which will also be published on our website in the same way.

If you don't tick this box your application can't go forward.

19. Checklist. Have you sent the following by email or post to accompany your application including:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station Road, Sidmouth,
EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

The appropriate number and type of quotations for the cost of your project, and any
invitations to tender documents.
Written support from at least one of the town and parish councils in the area your
project will benefit if you aren't a parish or town council.
Any relevant documents as outlined in guidance notes, for example accounts,
governing documents, safeguarding policies.
Have you made the relevant East Devon District Councillor(s) aware of your project
and sent any comments you received back from them.

You may also wish to include the following to support your application:
- Details of offers/ grants from any other funder/ organisation
- Photographs, specifications and drawings
- Extracts from Parish Plan(s) or Neighbourhood Plan(s)
- Evidence of consultation e.g. letters of support

20. Before signing, please read
I confirm that:
- I am authorised by the organisations involved to sign on their behalf.
- Funding will not directly benefit any individual or private business and will only be used for the purposes specified
within the application.
- I understand that funding will only be paid upon receipt of valid invoices/ receipts.
- That we will provide East Devon District Council with information of how the funding has benefitted the community
on request.
Signature of applicant (or type name and this will be counted as a signature):

Date:
15/01/2019

Agenda page 338



The closing date for applications is midnight on Wednesday 16 January 2019.
At this stage Devon County Council have only been able to confirm their funding of this scheme for this year
only.

Please press on 'submit' below to send your completed form to us.

Please send accompanying information clearly labelled with your project details to:
Post: Community Engagement and Funding Officer, East Devon District Council, Knowle, Station Road,
Sidmouth, EX10 8HL
E-mail: jbuckley@eastdevon.gov.uk

Agenda page 339



Agenda page 340



15 February 2019

Jamie Buckley
Community Engagement & Funding Officer
Blackdown House
Border Road
Heathpark Industrial Estate
Honiton
Devon
EX14 1EJ

Dear Jamie

Communities Together Fund: Seaton Majorettes

I am writing to confirm that Beer Parish Council is keen to partner Seaton Town Council
in a bid for Communities Together Funding for new batons for Seaton Majorettes.

Beer Parish Council is happy to contribute its 2018/19 allocation towards the project.

Yours sincerely

Mrs Annie Dallaway
Clerk to the Parish Council

22 Boundary Park
Seaton
Devon

EX12 2UN

Phone: 07593 405161
clerk@beer.eastdevon.gov.uk

E. Devon World Heritage Coast

Beer Parish Council

Agenda page 341



Agenda page 342



Agenda page 343



Agenda page 344


	Agenda
	2 Notes of previous meeting
	4 Communities Together Fund Rules
	5 Budleigh Food Event £2,687.28
	Budleigh Salterton events scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Budleigh event full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-45)
	Budleigh event full application CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-23)
	Budleigh event full application CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-21)
	C of C accounts 2018 income expediture.pdf (p.22)
	C of C accounts 2018.pdf (p.23)

	2019-36-HelenWarren-Estimate_2019.pdf (p.24)
	50 posters.pdf (p.25-27)
	Double sided flier costs .pdf (p.28-30)
	Chamber Constitution -Objectives & Rules.pdf (p.70-75)


	6 Honiton transport to dementia support £4,000
	Honiton transport to dementia support CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-24)
	Honiton Dementia scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Honiton Dementia full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-24)
	Honiton Dementia application CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-11)
	Communities Together Fund Application 2019.pdf (p.12-15)
	Annual Financial Report for Trustees Yr 21017-18.pdf (p.17-20)
	Honiton DAA Safegaurding.pdf (p.21)


	HDAA Aims & Objectives.pdf (p.25-26)

	7 Lympstone flood resilience project £7,700
	Lympstone flooding scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Woodbury flooding full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-19)
	Attachment 1 - Catchment Map.pdf (p.13)
	Attachment 2 - Photos.pdf (p.14)
	Attachment 3 - MatchFunding&Support_Letter_150119.pdf (p.15)
	Attachment 4 - Quotation_WRT_Soil Survey_150119.pdf (p.16-17)


	8 Newton Poppleford air ambulance landing site £6,490.36
	Newton Poppleford air ambulance scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Newton Poppleford air ambulance full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-23)
	Proximity of NP NLS to Sidford NLS.pdf (p.21)


	9 Ottery St Mary Dementia Action Alliance and outreach £10,390
	Ottery St Mary Dementia scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Ottery Help Scheme full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-70)
	Ottery Help Scheme application CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-10)
	Communities Together costings.pdf (p.11)
	Silver Otter letter of support.pdf (p.12)
	Town Council letter of support.pdf (p.13-14)
	Rotary Letter of support.pdf (p.15)
	NHS letter of support.pdf (p.16)
	Library letter of support.pdf (p.17)
	League of Friends letter of support.pdf (p.18)
	Later Life Forum letter of support.pdf (p.19)
	Jane Bradley letter of support.pdf (p.20)
	GPs letter of support.pdf (p.21)
	Feniton Primary letter of support.pdf (p.22)
	Ernest Wilhelm Peters letter of support.pdf (p.23)
	Coleridge Medical Centre Letter of Support.pdf (p.24)
	Cllr Susan Bond  letter of support.pdf (p.25)
	Cllr Roger Giles letter of support.pdf (p.26)
	2018 Annual accounts.pdf (p.27-38)
	Cover page
	Contents
	Company Information
	Directors' Report
	Accountants' Report
	Financial Statements
	Profit and Loss Account
	Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Balance Sheet
	Statement of Changes in Equity
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	1. General information
	2. Accounting policies
	3. Tangible assets
	4. Creditors
	4.1. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year




	OHS Articles of Association.pdf (p.39-62)
	Safeguarding Adults Policy.pdf (p.63-66)


	10 Seaton Walkers leaflets and information £2,921.60
	Seaton walkers leaflet scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Seaton Walkers leaflets full application CTF Jan 19_redacted.pdf (p.4-21)
	Seaton walkers leaflets app CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-10)
	Seaton Town Council quotes for walkers leaflets CT application.pdf (p.11-18)


	11 Stoke Canon footpath £1,960
	Stoke Canon footpath scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Stoke Canon Footpath full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-16)

	12 Uplyme air ambulance landing site £2,783,02
	Uplyme air ambulance landing site CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-19)
	Uplyme air ambulance scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Uplyme air ambulance full application CTF Jan 19_redacted.pdf (p.4-19)
	Uplyme air ambulance full application CTF Jan 19.pdf (p.1-14)
	Communties Together fund App DAA Night Landing.pdf (p.1-11)
	Mat electrics quote DAA Night Landing.pdf (p.12-13)
	King Georges Field Treasurers Report 2017 Final.pdf (p.14)

	DAA Funding Support Letter from UPC 150219.pdf (p.15)


	UPLYME KGF 1938 CONVEYANCE GOVERNING INSTRUMENT0001.PDF (p.20-24)

	13 Upottery playing fields footpath £6,250
	Upottery playing fields scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Upottery playing fields full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-41)
	Application form.pdf (p.1-10)
	FP32 diversion with signatures map.pdf (p.29)
	Upottery parish council match funding.pdf (p.30)
	Upottery FP32v2 Surridge quotation.pdf (p.31)
	Martin Banks quotation.pdf (p.32)
	Garden and Countryside quotation.pdf (p.33)
	Dale Spiller quotation.pdf (p.34)
	DCC letter of support.pdf (p.35)
	E mail of support from Ward Counsellor.pdf (p.36)
	Mr Legg's letter of support.pdf (p.37)
	Toby Dixon letter of support.pdf (p.38)


	14 West Hill football goals £1,581
	West Hill Wasps scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	West Hill Wasps full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-29)
	West Hill Wasps full application CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-23)
	Communities Together - West Hill Wasps bid document.pdf (p.1-10)
	West Hill Submission Form Q8 & 10.pdf (p.11)
	Photos.pdf (p.12-13)
	Mark Harrod  - goalposts quote 10-Jan-2019.pdf (p.14)
	Wasps letter of Support Communities Together Applicastion.pdf (p.15)
	Kings PTFA letter of Support Communities Together Applicastion.pdf (p.16)
	Gittisham email support CT bid.pdf (p.17-18)
	Feniton email support CT bid.pdf (p.19-20)
	OSMTC email support CT bid.pdf (p.21-22)
	Talaton letter of Support Communities Together Applicastion.pdf (p.23)

	Email to District Councillors.pdf (p.24)
	West Hill Wasps template---club-safeguarding-children-policy-procedures.pdf (p.25-26)


	15 Seaton Majorettes
	Seaton majorettes scoring CTF 1819.pdf (p.1-3)
	Seaton Majorettes full application CTF Jan19_redacted.pdf (p.4-19)
	Seaton Majorettes full application CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-13)
	Seaton Majorettes full application CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-11)
	Seaton Majorettes app CTF Jan19.pdf (p.1-10)
	Seaton Majorette's application.pdf (p.11)

	PTFBeer2019.pdf (p.12)

	Seaton Majorettes Paperwork.pdf (p.14-17)



	Insert information here 3: 
	Insert information here 1: 
	Insert information here 4: 
	Insert information here 5: 
	Insert information here 2: 
	Insert information here 6: 
	Insert information here 7: 
	Insert information here 8: 
	Insert information here 10: 
	T: 
	E: 
	Insert information here 11: 
	T_2: 
	E 2: 


